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Introduction

Who we are

Pennon Group Pic is an environmental utility infrastructure
company at the top end of the FTSE 250 which owns
South West Water Limited and Viridor Limited. The Group
has assets of around £4.3 billion and a workforce of over
4,500 people.

Group strategy

Our strategy is to promote the success of the Group

for the benefit of our shareholders, customers and other
stakeholders through our focus on water and sewerage
services, recycling, renewable energy and waste
management. We aim to be a pre-eminent provider

of customer services to high standards of quality,
efficiency and reliability.

What we do
We carry out our business through:

South West Water Limited - the provider of water
and sewerage services for Devon, Cornwall and
parts of Dorset and Somerset.

Viridor Limited — one of the leading UK recycling,
renewable energy and waste management
businesses.

To view our onfine report visit
pennonannualreport2012.co.uk
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Pennon Group

We create value for our shareholders by developing our
two environmental utility infrastructure businesses,
South West Water and Viridor, and by efficient financing
and strong management of the Group as a whole.

Financial highhghts Key Group facts
Revenue Profit before tax Assets
£1,233.1m £200.5m £4.3bn
+6.4% +6.4% Employees

4,500

Strategy

Qur strategy i1s to promote the success of the Group for the benefit of our shareholders,
customers and other stakeholders through our focus on water and sewerage services,
recycling, renewable energy and waste management We aim to be a pre-eminent
provider of customer services to high standards of quality, efficiency and rehiability

Highlights of the year

+ continued to deliver shareholder value - 76% dividend increase

+ further reduction in interest cost from the Group’s effective management
of interest rates

over £1 billon cash and facilibies at 31 March 2012 including over £0 5 billon new/
refinanced facilittes sourced dunng the year

+ winner of the ‘Achievement in Sustainabilty’ award at the 2012 PLC Awards

Strategy in action

We are committed to an annual dwvidend increase of 4% above inflation up to at least
the end of 2014/15

We have strong sustainability credenhals which make a positive impact on
communities and the environment

We maintain hugh standards of ethical business conduct

We foster open and positive relationstups with suppliers, customers and other
stakeholders

We seek to protect and promote the interests of all our employees

Further detalls on page 24




South West Water

The water and sewerage services provider
in Devon, Comwall and parts of Dorset
and Somerset, delivering industry-leading
operational performance.

Viridor
One of the leading UK recycling,

renewable energy and waste
management businesses.

Financial highlights

Financial highlights

Revenue Profit before tax Revenue Profit before tax
£474 Om £141.5m £761.1m £567.6m
+5.6% +9.8% +6.9% -8.4%
Strategy Strategy

South West Water 1s commuitted to its vision of ‘Pure Water,
Pure Service and Pure Environment’, underpinned by a
strategy of stnking the nght balance between

* Investing to improve service

+ customer affordability

s the needs of stakeholders

Vindor's strategy 1s to add value by

+ growing In recycling

* growing in Public Private Partnerships (PPPs)/energy from
waste (EfW)

+ capitalising in the long-term on its strong posttion in the
landfill market

Highlights of the year

Highhghts of the year

s industry-leading performance in tackling leakage

+ 15th consecutive year without water restrictions
{16th expected in 2012/13)

« repeated best ever dnnking water quality at 99 98%

+ further mprovements in Service Incentive Mechanism
(SIM) performance — custormner complaints halved over
two years

= record percentage (95 1%) of bathing waters achieved
EU Guideline standard (excellent status)

Strategy in action

* nvesting for future growth — capital expenditure and
investment in joint ventures of £140 milhon manly to delver
additional renewable power generation and recycling
capacity

¢ acquisition of five high quality recycling, collection and
transport businesses for around £40 million

+ volumes of recyclate traded increased by 7 2% to over
1.8 million tonnes with continuing iImprovement in the
quality and value mix

+ total renewable energy production increased to 760GWh

Strategy in action

Pure Water — providing safe and reliable water supplies

Pure Service — increasing levels of customer satisfaction
and mamntaining reliabiity of assets to protect the service
improvements made over the last 20 years

Contnbution to profits from recovenng the value in waste
grew to around 50% as landfill fell to 18% {from 69% in 2001)

Vindor consolidated s positton as the UK's largest operator
of matenals recycling faciities (MRFs)

Pure Environment - protecting and enhancing the
environment

Construction of Runcorn combined heat and power (CHF)
EfW project on schedule

Financial Management — outperforming the regulatory
contract and rnigorously controling costs with efficient
funding

Construction commenced on Ardley {Oxfordshire) and Exeter
EfWs and on Walpale anaerobic digestion (AD) facility in
Somerset

Further detalls on page 12

Announced as preferred bidder for South London, Glasgow
and South Lanarkshire! PPP contracts

' subject to legal challenga
Further details on page 18
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Directors’ report — Business review Performance

Key performance indicators

Pennon Group Plc

Profit before tax
fm

£200.5m
+6.4%

South West Water

Operating profit
£m

£204.7m
+7.9%

Vindor

Operating profit
plus joint ventures
£m

£75.2m
-9.0%

Earnings per share
before deferred tax
pence

47.3p
+11.8%

Regulatory
Caprtal Value
£bn as at 31 March

£2.827hn
+4.6%

Profits from recovenng
value in waste
%

49%
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Dividend per share
pence

26.52p
+7.6%

Dnnking water quality
% Mean Zonal Comphance
(MZC]) catendar year

99.98%

Recyclates traded
mulhon tonnes

1.8m tonnes
+7.2%

Interest rate on
average net debt
%

3.9%

Service Incentive
Mechanism (SIM}
%

66.9
+15%

Total renewable
energy generation
GWh

760GWh
+1.1%



Bathing water comphance with
EU Mandatory and Guideline

standards % calendar year

H Mandatory
H Guidelne

Renswable energy
generation capacity
MW as at 31 March

136MW

Population equivalent
santary compliance
% calendar year

99.57%

Total waste handled
million tonnes

8.1m tonnes

2010/11 figura ranssessad.

RIDDOR incidence rate
per 100,000 employoes

calendar year

RIDDOR incidence rate

per 100,000 employees
calendar year
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Directors’ report — Business review

Chairman’s statement

Dear shareholder

Our Group financial performance for the year has again
been strong notwithstanding the challenging economic

environment.

Ken Harvey
Chairman, Pennon Group Pl

Revenue Profit before tax
£m £m

£1,233.1m £200.5m
+6.4% +6.4%
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Financial review

Group revenue rose by 6 4% to £1,233 1 millon and our profit
before tax increased by 6 4% to £200 5 millon Our eamings
per share before deferred tax iIncreased by 11 8% t0 47 3p

The Group has substantial cash resources and undrawn facilibies
and 1s well posttioned for the future

South West Water's Regulatory Capital Value (RGV) grew by a
further 4 6% dunng 2011412 to £2 83 bilion RCV has grown by an
average of around 5% per annum since the beginning of the K4
(2005-2010) period Vindor's profit before tax at £57 6 million was
a reduction of 8 4% on the previous year Around 50% of Vindor's
profit contnbution came from recovenng the value In waste

Dividend

The Board 1s committed 0 delivenng consistent retums for our
shareholders and to this end continues with its progressive
dwvidend policy to grow the Group dwvidend by 4% above inflation
per annum up 1o at least the end of 2014/15 This reflects our
confidence that Pennon Group remans well positioned to deliver
strong growth in the medium and long-term

We are recommending a final dnadend per share of 18 30p, which
represents a 6 7% increase on last year's final dwdend This wil
result in a total dividend for the year of 26 52p, an increase of
76% {reflacting inflation of 3 6%) on the total ddend for 2010/11
We will also once again offer a Scnp Dividend Altemative to
shareholders in respect of the final dwdend The tmetable for the
Scrip Dvdend Alternative I1s given on page 113

Business performance

South West Water continued rts strong operational performance
agamnst the 2010-2015 regulatory contract wath further advances mn
operating sfficiency and customer sermce The comparny 1S front-
end loading delivery of the operating cost efficiencies required by
Ofwat {an average 2 8% per annum over the five-year penod) with
an average 5 1% per annum delivered In the first two years These
efficiencies are being achieved through improving operational
ways of working, nght-sourcing and innovative contracting
arrangements, ensrgy procurement and reduced usage, and the
rationaksation of adminisirabon and support services

Vindor grew 1ts profits from recyciing, contracts and joint ventures,
offset by a reduction in the contribution from landfill plus increased
bid costs associated with its developing project pipekne Recyclate
prices fell in the second half of 2011/12 compared wath the first
half year peak, reflecting world economic condiions More than
50% of the mpact was mitigated by actions taken by Vindor to
address costs and, afthough we are cautious about the prospect
for a recovery in recyclate pnces in the short-term, Vindor's
growing Public Private Partnership (FPF} pipeline and energy

from waste (EfW) planmng successes will form the basis for future
growth Renewable energy generation will also remain a significant
contributor to profits



Health and safety

We continue to focus on the safety and well-being of all our
employees There have been a number of ntiatives dunng the
year, such as our TAP (Think, Act, Prevent} behavioural safety
campaign for Penncn and South West Water staff and Vindor's
Safety Information Database, both of which are designed to
ensure high standards of safety across the businesses We are
pleased to see a reduction i the reportable number of Incidents
within bath South West Water and Vindor The Board, together
with the Boards of South West Water and Vindor, remams
committed to fostenng a culture and working ervironment where
accidents are unacceptable The Group's goal Is zero accidents

Sustainability and governance

Our businesses demonstrate a responsible approach to
environmental, social and governance (ESG) matters This was
recogrised when we receved the prestigious ‘Achievement in
Sustainability” award at the annual PLC Awards for our sustainable
actmittes which include renewable energy generation at waste
water treatment worls, landfil gas control and significant funding
being provided for community and ermronmental projects through
the Pennon Emwronmental Fund and Vindor Credits Environmental
Body The Business review and our Group Sustainability report set
out more fully our commitrnent to ESG and the highlights dunng
the year which include carbon reduction, water secunty, water
catchment management and resource secunty and efficiency

The Board has an annual programime which 1s focused on
continuing to develop and ImMprove our govemance structures
and practices This ensures that we apply best practice to enable
us to operate in the best nterests of our shareholders and other
stakeholders

Our business model

One of our key objectives is to ensure that we are at the forefront
of company reporting Overleaf we have set out our business
made! to assist shareholders in understanding how we generate
and preserve value in our businessas | hope it is a useful
Introciuction to this year's Business review and succinctly explams
how our business strategy 1s followed through nto acton

Diversity

The Board 1s committed to promoting equality and diversity and a
culture that actvely values difference and recognises that people
from different backgrounds and expenences can bnng valuable
insights to the workplace at all levels and enhance the way we
work We have an established Workplace Policy which provides
for equal opportunity and diversity throughout the Group In
support of this policy and of the recommendations of the Davies
Review "Women on Boards', the Board has also established

a Boardroom Equality & Diverstty Policy We will endleavour to
achieve a minmum of 25% female representaton on the Board
by 2015 {whilst maintaining our current 14% representation in the
meantme) and achieve a minimum of 25% female representation
n our sermor management team by 2015

Board succession

Two of our three Non-executive Directors are comng towards

the end of therr nine-year tenure The Board wishes to ensure a
seamless transtion and does not wish to lose the considerable
knowledge and expenence of the departing Directors, particularty
as It 1s satisfied that they remain independent n character and
Judgement while continuing I thesr role on the Board 1t 1s therefore
intended that Dinah Nichols will retire from the Board at the 2013
Annual General Mesting (AGM} and Gerard Connell, the Sentor
Independant Director, will retire from the Board at the 2014 AGM
The search for one new Non-executive Director 1s well under way
and a further Non-executive Director wall be sought dunng 2013
This process will ensure that the new members, of what1s a small
board, are fully acquanted with the Company’s practices and
procedures before the two retinng Non-executive Directors leave
the Board

Our customers

A key pnomty for both our businesses 1s providing the highest
possible levels of serices to our customers This 1s also reflected
i our Group strategy

Over the year South West Water has successfully moved into

new temtory In meeting the demand for information, adwice

and assistance from its household and busingss customers

The ‘Source for Business' service is providing extra support for
commercial custormners South West Water 1s now providing online
accounts, a smartphone app and web-based services for all
customers The company recogrses that affordability 1s an 1ssue
for a number of our customers and we continue to provide advice
and assistance through a number of schemes

Within Vindor there 1s a parbedlar need to meet the changng
requirements of our customers where the focus i1s Increasingly on
recychng, energy recavery and the reduction of waste to landfill to
meet Government targets The fact that around 50% of Vindor's
profits are now from recovenng the value n waste demonstrates
that Vindor 1s Iving up to its new branding ‘transforming waste’

Our employees

We know that our success continues to be due to the talent,
commitment and hard work of our employees, and | woulkd ke
o thank every one of them for ther outstanding contrbution to
the Group

In addrtion | am very grateful to my Board colleagues for their
continuing support and sigaificant contnbution to another
successful year

Outlook

The Beard's pnonty continues to be the creation of shareholder
value through its strategic focus on water and sewerage services,
recycling, renewable energy and waste management

South West Water has continued its excellent start to K5 with
robust operational delivery, high standards of customer service
and a strong financial performance

Vindor 1s successfully leading the way n exploting opportunhes
ansing from the Government’s landfill diversion, recycling and
renewable energy targets — around 50% of its profits already come
from recovenng value in waste Although we are cautious about
the prospect for a recovery in recyclate prces in the short-term,
the company’s strong PPP pipaling and major EFW successes
underpin its expected long-term prefit momenturn from 2013414
onwards and are already making a significant contnbution to
Vindor's profitability

1 am therefore confident that Pennon 1s well posrtioned to continue
to succeed inits chosen business areas for the benefit of our
sharghclders and other stakehclders

Y -

Ken Harvey
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Directors’ report — Business review

Our business model

How we generate and preserve value

Our Group business model is driven by our strategy of promoting
the success of the Group for the benefit of our shareholders,
customers and other stakeholders through our focus on the
business areas of water and sewerage services, recycling,
renewable energy generation and waste management. We aim to
be a pre-eminent provider of customer services to high standards
of quality, efficiency and reliability, and to provide value for our
shareholders.

How we create value

We create value for our shareholders by developing our two emvironmental utility infrastructure businesses, South West Water and Vindor,
and by efficient financing and strong management of the Group as a whole

South West Water, the water and sewerage services  Viridor is focused on transforming waste into a

provider for Devon, Comwall and parts of Dorset resource, having developed from being a traditional
and Somerset, 1s focused on delivenng further waste management company to a leading UK
efficiencies, improving operating standards and recycling, renewable energy and resource
providing a high quality service to its customers management business.

South West Water Viridor

Provides water and sewerage services in Devon, One of the leading UK recycling, renewable energy
Comwall and parts of Dorset and Somerset. generation and waste management businesses.
South West Water's business model 1s based Vindor's business model 1s based on growing and adding
on delivenng its *Pure Water, Pure Service value by proactvely expandng its recycling operations,
and Pure Environment’ strategy while ensunng growing its E'W and PPP operations and exploting the
long-term profitability, reslience and sustainability huge potential nherent In waste-based renewable energy

generation, whilst capitalising in the long-term on s
strong postion i landfill waste disposal

6 Pennon Group Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2012




How we manage our businesses to create value

To achieve our strategy we are focused on the key areas of customer satisfaction, financial performance, maximising shareholder retums,
strong governance and employee engagement

Customer
satisfaction

Both South West Water and
Vindor are fully committed
to mesting the needs of
therr custorners which

are kay 1o the success of
each business How we
respond to the needs of
our customers and assess
customer satsfacton s set
out on pages 15, 17, 22 and
36 of the Business review

Financial
performance

Qur Group has set itself
challenging financial targets
Financial performance 1s
measured through a range of
key performance ndicators
nchuding profit before tax,
dmdend per share earnings
per share before deferred
tax and the interest rate on
average net debt. Our focus
on setting such targets

1s to achieve sustanable
performance over the short
medium and long-tarm
Pages 24 to 27 explan in
more detall our finangial
performance

Maximising
shareholder
returns

We are committed to
maximising shareholder
retumns, including our policy
10 grow Lhe Group dmdend
by 4% above mflation per
annum up to at keast the
and of 2014115

Our operating framework and rsk management

Essential to achieving our strategic ams and creating value within our businesses is our operating framework which is based on the
principles of good govemance as described in the Govermance section

Strong
governance

We are aware that our
busnesses can, and do,
have & matenal mpact

on the environment and
communities inwhich

they operate Wetake a
responsible and transparent
approach to environmental,
socal and governance (ESG)
matters Qursustanable
practices not only benafit
communities but also enable
our businessas to be mora
successful More information
on our sustanability targets
and our achievements over
the past twetve months are
set out on pages 34 to 39

In the Group's Sustainability
report

Employee
engagement

We are aware that the
success of our Group 1s due
to the talent, commitmant
and hard work of our
employees and we am {0
be a responsitle employer
Wa are focused on ensunng
workforce well-beng
contnuity, efficiency and
productivity ard we carefully
manage the successiul
integration of employees nto
Vindor following acquistions
Mora information on the
Inatves we have introduced
10 iImprove employee
engagement in each of our
businesses Is set out on
pages 17, 23, 40 and 41 of
the Business review

Our operating framework includes a comprehensive and fully embedded risk management process which
assists us in managing our nsks and opportunrties to deliver the Group’s strategy and the other essential
elements of our business model

Further information on our control and nsk management environment 1s described on page 30.
Our principal nsks and uncertanties and how we mitigate them are set out on pages 28 to 33.

Pennon Group Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2012 7




Directors’ report — Business review

Strategic Q&A

Delivering on our strategy

Overall 2011/12 was another successful twelve months for Pennon.
Group Director of Finance David Dupont, South West Water

Chief Executive Chris Loughlin and Viridor Chief Executive Colin
Drummond discuss a year of achievernent and outline their strategic
approach to the main challenges they face.

What were the highlights of the year
and how do they refiect the Group
strategy?

Dawid Dupont

Group financial performance was once
agamn very strong, notwithstanding tough
economic condiions South West Water's
profit ncrease reflected further substantial
efficiency gams and while Vindor’s profits
were a little iower than last year, this was

in part due to higher bid costs linked to its
growing pipeline of future projects Vindor
achieved some notable contract wins
dunng the year which lay the foundation for
significant growth n the future The Group
continued to effectively manage financing
costs which outtumed at a lower level than
the previous year despite higher average
net debt

Overall the results demonstrate the
successful Group strategy of developing
its Infrastructure utiity businesses,

with South West Water continuing to
outperform the targets set by Its regulator
and Vindor bulding its business through
a combination of long-term contract wins
and construction now under way on four
significant energy from waste plants

In tougher economic times, how
vulnerable are South West Water and
Vindor to an economic downturn?

DD

While neither business 15 mmuns, both
busmesses have demonstrated therr
resiience m recent difficult conditions
South West Water expenenced a small
reduction in demand, but this reflected the
trend in recent years as more customers
switch to meters and our larger users, with
our assistance, focus on improving their
water use efficiency The bad debt charge
increased slightly in the first half of the year
but has since stabiksed

“The Group policy Is to grow the
dividend by 4% above RPl up
to at least the end of 2014/15.”

David Dupont, Group Finance Director

Pennon Group
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As expected, the full year profits for Vindor
ware below those of last year because
the company was impacted by lower
recyclate pnces in the second half of the
year, reflecting world economic condiions
We tock action to recover more than

50% of the mpact of this through cost
reductions and, while we are cautious
about the recovery of recyclate prices In
the short-term, Vindor's recent contract
wins and long-term mnvestment are laying
the foundaton for significant growth in

subsequent years



Your dividend continues to be very
strong in the sector. How long can
you sustarn this performance?

DD

The Group policy 15 to grow the dividend
by 4% above RPI up fo at least the end
of 2014/15 This policy reflects the actual
and expected finanaal performance of
both South West Water and Vindor As
usual the Board expects to review the
dmdend policy at the start of the next
South West Water regulatory review
penod taking account of Ofwat's next
pnce Determination, and the expected
growth from Vindor's long-temm contracts
and energy from waste plants which are
aexpected to come on stream around
thus time

There 1s very substantial
investment going into Vindor.
How will you fund 1t?

DD

At the year-end the Group had cash

and facilhes of £1,084 milhon, including
£123 million restncted cash, with

£566 millon of newfenewed facilities
secured dunng the year These provide
very substantial resources to support the
nvestment in Vindor over the next few
years We are continuing to talk to a wide
range of finance providers and expect to
source the remaining funding required on
a timely basis

South West Water achieved a strong
operational performance last year
What were the key highlights and how
did you achieve them?

Chns Loughlin

South West Water achieved its best ever
leakage control results and mantained
its 15th consecutive year without water
restnctions We had repeated best ever
dnnking water quality and saw a record
number of the region’s bathing waters
meseting the EL's highest compliance
standard

We were able to exceed our leakage
control targets through early detection
and swift response times In addition our
new remote working system allowed our
leak detecton inspectors to work more
dynamically in the field by substanbafly
reducing the amount of time needed to
process leakage reports

South West Water's ongoing programime

of capital investment in water resources
meant we had adequate supplies to prevent
awater shortage Similarly, our rvestment
in both dnnking and waste water treatment
ensured continued high standards

Alongside our strong cperational
performance we achieved a significant
Increase In customer service levels Cur
Service Incentive Mechanism score —
which includes the number of wrtten

“South West Water achieved
its best ever leakage control
results and maintained its 15th
consecutive year without water
restrictions.”

Chris Loughlin, Chief Executive
South West Water

complaints and the results of customer
satisfaction surveys — indicated a 15%
mprovement on the year before and a
78% improverment over the last two years

Earlier this year there was a lot of
comrmentary 1n the press about likely
water shortages in England in 2012,
How are you placed in the South
West?

CL

Based on our current posiion we are
confident of a 16th consecutive summer
without water restnctions As would be
expected, South West Water 1s montonng
the situation and will make the best use of
its resources accordingly

Last year we avoided any shortages
through a combination of utiismng new
resources such as Park and Stannon
reservorrs — both former china clay pits —
and careful resource planrng The region
did expenence a dner winter than average
but we tackled this through the use of
pumped storage schemes This Invoives
abstracting water from nvers while levels

are healthy to supplement the natural
inflow to our reservoirs

The recent national concems over drought
serve to highlight the importance of
efficient water use South West Wateris
commutted to a strategy that ophmises

its use of supphes and assets and we
contrus to raise awareness with our
custorners about how to use water wisely

What has been the impact of the
adoption of prnivate sewers so far?
Do you expect further investment
over the next couple of years?

CL

On 1 October 2011 the Private Sewer
Transfer legislation resulted n South West
Water's sewer network increasing by more
than 50% This had a knock-on benelfit for
the majonty of our customers who are no
longer at nsk of high sewer mantenance
costs and now are only responstible for
drans located within, and serving, ther
properties
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Directors’ report — Business review Strategic Q&A

continued

The company was well placed to manage
the transfer Operational plans to manage
customer contacts and delver service

to our customers through two new
contractors were implemented smoothly
and actmty has been at the lower end

of the expected range

South West Water will continue to maintain
and improve the adopted network over
the coming years starting with a capital
nvestment programme focused on
problematic assets The operating and
caprtal costs incumed so far have been
over £3 million, these efficiently Incurred
costs will be funded through future
adjustments 1o prnice imuts, with the
submission of an application to Ofwat for
an Intenm Determmation of K anticipated
n 2013

How will the funds promised

by Government to help support
customer bills from 2013/14 be paid?
Will shareholders lose out in any way?

CL

Legeslation first proposed n December
2011 will enable South West Water to
recenve funding from the Governiment so
that we can cut all household bills by £50
per year until at least the end of the next
spending review penod

We welcome the reduction which s due
to come into force In Apnl 2013 It directly
benefits custormers — it will be passed
straight through to them and as such
there 1s no iIMpact on the nterests of our
shareholders

What 1s South West Water's position
on targeted efficiency savings?

CL

The Company 1s targeted with achieving a
step-change in operational cost efficiency
for K5 As planned, delivery of the Ofwat
efficiency targets of an average of 28%
per annum is front-end loaded with an
average 5 1% per annum dehvered in the
first two years of this K penod

How will industry reforms, as
signalled by the Government, affect
South West Water?

CL

The direction of Government pobcy and
Ofwat's regulatory reform propesals will
provide new opportunities, challenges and
responsibiltes There 1s a clear emphasis
on the efficient use of water resources,
providing sustanable solutions to water
pollution problems through catchment-
based approaches, the removal of bamers
o competition, secure and stable financing
and customer-centred actnaty In each
case South West Water's long-term
strategy and successes to date mean we
are well placed to delver thase proposals

The signals are that mdustry reform wall
be evolutionary rather than revolutionary,
with timescales for change over a

period to 2025 and beyond To date,

the details of reforms have been mited
However draft legislation is anticipated for
2012/13 with an inttial focus on extending
competition for commercial customers
We are prepanng for the development of
competition in this area and have recently
extended our new ‘Source for Business'
actwities, offenng enhanced services to
our commercial customers

How are you prepanng for the 2014
Penodic Review?

CL

Hawing already reviewed our long-term
strategy as part of the 2009 Penodic
Review, South West Water 1s well placed
for the 2014 Perodic Review (PR14) We
have already rolled out our initiad phases of
customer engagement and work 1S under
way to determine investment scenanos
for the next penod Our dedicated PR14
team 15 continuiNg 1o raise awareness
both intemally and externally about the
review process

A new development has been the recent
implementation of our ‘WaterFuture'
customer challenge panel which
compnses representatives from vanous
stakeholder and consumer groups
Designed to ensure our customers’
pnomties are kept central to our plans, the
panel’'s nvolvement will help shape our
forthcoming updated Strategic Direction
Statement which will provide a long-tenm
context for the five-year, 2015-2020
busmess plan
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What are the key trends currently
impacting Vindor?

Colin Drummond

We are seeing an ntensification of the
long-term frends which have been evident
for the past number of years and upon
which Vindor's strategy 1s built The total
amount of waste generated n the UK s
faling, impacted by Government policies,
public pressure to reduce waste and
current weak economic conditions More
impertantty for Vindor, within the total
amount of waste, the proportion baing
recycled and the demand for recyeling
services continue to grow At the same
time it 15 becoming INcreasingly clear that
the most economic and environmentally
beneficial solution for the residues which
cannot be recycled 1s provded by EfW
facites

The year's results were impacted by
lower pnces for recyclates. What are
the prospects for the coming year
and how do you manage volatility

in this area?

CD

Vindor has seen substantial trend growth in
its recyclate pnices over the past five years
as it continues to mprove qualty, and
customers Increasingly recognise the value
of recyclate as a low-cost raw matenal
201112 was a year of two halves as far

as recyclate prnces were concemed The
first half saw recyclate pnces well above
long-term trends and, as | commented

at the time, this was not sustanable m a
weakening world economy In the second
half prices did indeed fall back, reflectng
weakness in the Burozone economies and
shghtly slower growth in Ghina We were
able to offset more than 50% of the iImpact
of reduced recyclate pnces under the
terms of our customer supply contracts
and from other cost reductions However
we are cautious about any recovery

In recyclate pnces in the short-term as
Eurozone womes continue

What have been the key
achievements this year in developing
your project pipeline?

CcD

We have had a senes of major wins in

our pipeline of long-terrm Public Private
Partnership (PPF) contracts and Efw
faciites The final legal challenge to




our planned EfW facility at Ardley was
successfully resolved and constructon
has commenced meeting the needs of
the Oxfordshire PPP contract The Exgter
PPP contract was signed and construction
of the assoctated EfW 1s under way

We have signed the Engineenng
Procurement and Construction (EPC)
contract for our planned EfW piant in
Cardiff and construction will commence
shortly The final legal challenge agamnst
planning parmission for our proposed
EfW faciity at Avonmouth has also been
successfully resolved

We have become prefened bidder for three
further major waste PPPs These are for
the South London Waste Partnership, for
Glasgow and, subject to legal challenge,
for South Lanarkshire We are down to

one of two shorthsted bidders on five

other waste PPPs

Vindor has been very successful

at secunng contracts to build and
operate new EfW facilities. When wll
Runcom come on stream and 1s it on
target? More generally, how do you
ensure that these new projects are
brought to completion on time and
on budget?

cD

These are mgjor constructon contracts
and we are fully aware of the challenges
mnvolved and have planned accordingly
Qur general policy 1s to invest In madem
robust and proven technologes and to use
hegh qualty suppliers without putting too
much business with any individual one of
them We ensure clear contract terms on
a fixed pnce basis passing back relevant
nsks to our suppliers and back this up
with careful contract management and
Independent certification Thus approach
worked well on our highly successful
Lakeside joint venture project and we are
followang a similar policy for Runcom We
are on track to take over the first phase of
Runcom by March 2013 with the second
phase following in mid 2014 We are taking
a smilar approach on the other projects in
our pipeline

What 1s the scope of the remaining
opportunities with county councils
and other muricipal authorities?
What proportion have not entered
into long-term contracts to manage
their waste?

CcD

Municipal contracts provide the base

load for faciies which can also serve the
somewhat larger commercial and industnal
(C&l) market Much of the long-tenm
municipal procurement for residual waste
treatrment has ertther already taken place
or 1s under way | have already mentioned
some of our recent successes We are on
track in five years’ tme to have a network
of strategic EfW facilities, mainly backed by
municipal contracts with surplus capacity
for the C& market, In most of the major
regions In the UK (including London and
the South East, the North West, the Scuth
West, South Wales, and the central belt of
Scotland)

Do you have the capacrity to take on
many more of these projects?

cD

The key question with any project i1s how
to create shareholder value We believe we
have already targeted many of the most

“We have had a series of major wins
in our pipeline of long-term PPP
contracts and EfW facilities.”

Colin Drummond, Chief Executive

Viridor
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attractive contracts where the market is
large and we can establish a competitve
acvantage f we dentify similar further
opportunities to create shareholder
value, we have the management
resources in place and can continue

to procure addtional consuftancy
experbse as required

What will be the impact on Vindor’s
profitability when all of the current
projects come on stream?

CD

Within the next five yvears our project
ptpeline could more than double
Vindor's EBITDA

Around 50% of Vindor's profits are
now from transformung waste. Do you
expect this percentage to increase in
the coming years?

CD

Yes, this percentage 1s likely to Increase
Vindor's strategy 1s to transform waste

Into a resource Recychng and renewable
energy are good for the emvironment, for
the UK economy and for our shareholders




Drrectors’ report — Business review

South West Water
Investing in quality

Key facts and figures
Revenue Profit hefore tax
£m £m
£474.0m £141.5m
+5.6% +9.8%
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Operational highlights
& strong performance aganst 2010-2015 regulatory contract

+ a 15th consecutive summer without water restnctions in 2011
and a 16th anticipated in 2012

* bast ever lsakage results
+ repeated best ever dnnlang water quality (99 98%)

+ record percentage (95 196) of bathing waters achieving EU
Gurideline standard (excellent status)

+ ncreased customer service (wniitten custormer complaints down
25% and Service Incentive Machanism score up 15% from
2010711}

accelerated pace of delvery for targeted operating cost
reductions and capital programme efficiencies

high levels of dnnking water and sewerage services mantaned

{stable serviceability)

2011/12 notable achievements

= smooth transtion of private sewers adopton on 1 October 2011
Estimated network length mcreased by over 50%

s introduction of specialist ‘Source for Business’ service

s Government support for household customer bills from

2013/14 welcomed

¢ Water Industry Achievement Awards for *‘Upstream Thinking’
{Partnership Intiative of the Year) and ‘BeachLive’ {Communrty
Prgject of the Year)




1.67m 14,710km 645

resident population of sewers waste water treatment works
of water mains dnnking water treatment works

Strategy and performance

The company’s vision of ‘Pure Water, Pure Service and Pure Environment’ represents our
ongoing ambition to achieve and sustain the highest standards possible in every sphere of our
activity. We see innovation and forward-thinking investment as key to our long-term success
and we remain committed to a strategy that values our business, our customers and the world
around us In equal measure

Strategy
Pure Water Pure Service Pure Environment Financial
Providing safe and reliable Increased levels of Protecting and enhancing Outperformance of the
water supplies customer satisfaction the environment regulatory contract
Performance Performance Performance Performance
Repeated best ever dnnking Increased average level of Record high in the number Outperformance of the
water quality and a 15th customer satisfaction score of bathing waters meeting targeted operatng cost
consecutive year without with 25% fewer written the EU's highest standard reductions alongside
water restnctions Best ever complaints than the premous Renewable energy generation Increased operating profit
and mdustry-leading leakage year '‘Source for Business' ncreased with the installation and efficient funding
control performance launched of additional solar, hydro and Capital programme efficiencies
‘Stable serviceability’ wind turbine schemes remain on track o achieve 5%
mantamned outperformance
KPI KPI KPI KPI
Dnnking water quality Customer service Bathing water complhance Operating profit
% Mean Zonal Compliance score Service Incentive with EU Mandatory and £m
(MZC) catendaryear Mechanism (SIM) % Guideline standards %
c¢alendar year
99.98% 66.9 £204.7m
+15% +7.9%
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Drirectors’ report — Business review South West Water

continued

Financial strength and
operational excellence

Top Constructon under way on the new Coswarth Reservorr,
near Newquay, Comwall

Bottomn Mel Setvester, one of our leakage inspectors, checks the
status of mains on Plymouth seafront
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Business performance

South West Water has continued its excellent start to K& with
strong operational delivery and high standards of customer
service coupled with strong financial performance The company
continues to outperform targeted operating cost reductions and
capital programme efficiencies

An increase in revenue and good operational cost control has
resulted in South West Water’s operating profit ncreasing by
£14 9 millon With consistently low financing costs, profit before
tax has increased 9 8% from last year

The company 1s front-end loading delivery of the required 2 8%
per annum average operating cost efficiencies with 51% per
annum delivered in the first two years of this K penod (2010-2015).
This 1s being achieved through changing operational ways of
working, nght-sourcing and innovative contracting arrangements,
anergy procurement and reduced usage, and the rationalisation of
administration and support services

Caprtal expenditure in the year was £131 milion, a 5% increase

on last year The main focus of nvestment remans on the
mantenance of existing assets The relability of our network is
liustrated by our operating assets achieving ‘stable serviceabilrty™
for all operational areas Other key areas are increasing our water
resource avallability and ensunng the resilience of our netwark
even in extreme weather condiions, improving dnnking water
qualty, delivenng environmental improvermnents, and achieving high
standards of bathing water quality

Efficiency performance on the K5 capital programme remans
on track to delver 5%% outperformance of the Ofwat 2009 Final
Determination

Pure Water

Dnnking water qualrty

South West Water pndes itself on achiewng ndustry-leading water
quality resufts In 2011 the qualtty of our water, as measured by
Mean Zonal Compliance (MZC), was equal to its best ever This
marks the third year out of the past five In which a score of 99 98%
has been attaned

The continued high standards of our dnnking water can be
directly atinbuted to our ongoing INvestment and mnovation
m our treatment processes In addiion our water quality has
benefited from a ngorous mans improvernent programme
and the implementation of a taste and odour strategy

In 2011/12 South West Water made significant investments in
dnnking water quality, ncluding upgrades to water treatment
works at Dnft {(Comwall) and Tottford (Devon}

Leakage control

South West Water has maintained its exemplary industry-leading
performance in leakage control, as it has done every year since
targets were infroduced N 2011112 we successfully surpassed our
previous record to achieve a recard low of 81 3 megalitres lost on

{1) 'Serwcesbiity” ks the capabEty of 8 system of assets {0 defver a reference level of service to
customers and 1o the ervironment now and o the future Senvceabiity ks deemed 1o be stable
when tha assessment of rends in 3 defined set of Serice and asset parforrmance ndcators
dermonstrates that sendca is n Enewith the referenca level of sendce and by inference is Rkely
1o reman so Into the huture:

{3 Using 2003 Final Detamnation estimates of Construchon Output Prica index {COPY




South West Water continues
to outperform targeted
operating cost reductions
and capital programme
efficiencies while investing
in the long-term resilience
of its network assets.

average per day over a twehve month penod In additon we have
beaten the rolling three-year average

The strong leakage control performance has been dueto a
number of combined factors including swift leak detecton and
response imes, the efficiency of our remote Phased Utlisabon
of Remots Operating Systems (PUROS), and mproved
communication with our customers using both traditional and
web-based platforms

Water resources

Despite below average rainfall last year, South West Water avoided
putting water restnctions in place for a 15th consecutive summer
This was achieved pnmanly as a result of strategic mvestment in
expanding our reservorr system and distnbution network Now fully
operabonal, Park and Stannon lakes in Comwall played a key role
N ensunng resources were mantaned durng 2011412

In addiion South Waest Water also made use of pumped storage
schemes at Wimbleball, Stthians and Coliford reservors This
nvolves abstracting water from nvers, while levels are healthy,

to supplement the natural Inflow to our resenvorrs

South West Water’s resource network has been further expanded
In tha past year, most notably through the addition of Goswarth
service reservor, near Newquay, Cornwall which wall supply
arourid 9,000 homes  South West Water is also developing its
first new borehole in 18 years at Greatwell, East Devon

Qur 2012 position
The national concemns over drought In 2012 serve to highlight Top Stannon Lake, Cormwall
the mportance of efficient water use South West Water 1s Bottom Bleanor Dodd, helping a customer at the Source

committed to a strategy that maximises the yield of ts supplhes
and assets and we continue to raise awareness about how to
use water wisely

Based on our current posttion we are confident of a 16th
consecutive summer without water restnctions As would be
expected, South West Water 1s monitonng the situation and wall
rmake the best use of ks resources accordingly

Pure Service

Customer satisfaction

At the core of South West Water's ‘Pure Service’ strategy are the
nesads of our customers Since 2010411 customer satisfaction has
been measured by the Service Incentive Mechanism (SIM} This
takes into account vanous customer service measures including
the number of wniten complants and the results of customer
satisfaction surveys

South West Water achieved a 15% improvement in customer
service between 2010/11 and 2011/12 based on its SIM score
(201Q/11 581, 201112 66 9) and a 78% improvement over two
years

There were 25% fewer wntten complants than the previous year
Over the last two years written customer complaints have hatved

customer contact centre at Pennsula House, Exeter, Davon
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Directors’ report — Business review South West Water

continued

Top South West Water's bathing water results reached a record
high last year Bedruthan Steps, Comwall

Bottom Joe Colton-Dyer, one of South West Water's new
apprentices
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Private sewers

On 1 October 2011 the Govemment transferred the ownership of
the majonty of private sewers to water and sewerage companies
As a resutt South West Water's sewer network Increased by

over 50% This had a knock-on benefit for the majonty of our
customers who are nofonger at nsk of high sewer mantenance
costs and are now only responsible for drans located wathin and
serving ther properties

South West Water 1s continuing to evaluate the impact of the
private sewer transfer We are confident that our smoaoth transiion
into the new role was the result of careful planning, an effective
communications strategy and efficient operational actvity

£50 bill reduction for South West Water customers

Since privatisation in 1989 South West Water customers have
effectvely been paying for the protection and upkeep of a third of
the nation’s bathing waters Highlighted in the 2009 Walker Review
and pursued vigorously by South West Water alongside regional
MPs, consumer groups and media orgarisations, this sensitve
regional 1ssue was addressed by the Government in late 2011, with
a pledge to reduce household bills in the region by £50 per year
This reduction is due to come into effect in Apnl 2013

Pure Environment

2011112 was a year of continued investment in ervironmental
projacts and inhiatives In addition to the refurbishment of a
number of waste water treatment works South West Water has
successfully tnalled gnt and screenings composting to reduce
the amount of waste sent to landfil

We also expanded our use of renewable energy through solar,
wind and hydro power schemes at more than 20 of our sites
and we continue to promote energy saving through in-house
campaigns such as 'PowerDown'

Coastal waters

The qualty of beaches and bathing waters in the South West
plays a key role n the region’s economy, culture and Ifestyle
With 144 designated bathing waters along more than 500 miles
of coastline, South West Water's actaties have a potential effect
on more bathing waters than any other water company in England
or Wales

The number of bathing waters in our region now achieving the
EU's highest standard is at an all time high 95 1% of our beaches
are achieving the EU Guideline standard (excellant status) with

98 6% obtaining the Mandatory standard {gocd status)

South West Water corminues to work with a number of partner
orgarusations to protect the coastal environment In June 2011
the company launched its ‘BeachLive’ website to provide lve
inforrnation on bathing water quality around the regron

Energy generation

In 2011/12 our investment in renewable energy nduded the
instaflation of solar panels at 23 of our sites {nineteen S0kW
schemes and four 100kW schemes) and the development of
hydro-electnc schemes at Colliford Dam, Comwall and Avon
Damn, Devon




Our continuing focus for K5
is to strike the right balance
for customers, investors and
other stakeholders.

At Lowermoor water treatment works in North Comwall we
erected a single 100KW wind turbine which 1s expected to
generate approximately 60% of the site’s power needs

Our goal 1s to generate 30GWh from renewable sources by 2015
Uttmately South West Water aims 10 source 50% of its energy
from renewables by 2050

Upstream Thinking

Focused on improving raw water quality in nver catchments in
order to reduce treatment costs, 'Upstrearn Thinking' 1$ an award-
winning South West Watered intiative that seeks to mantan and
improve the ecological health of our region's nver network

Dunng 2011/12 South West Water has continued to work with
partner organisations, the agneultural commurity, landowners,
researchers from the region’s universites and other stakeholders
to Implement a range of projects that target water quality

and water storage at its natural source These include fam
management Improvements and engagement with farmers,
habitat management, and landscape restoration in specific rver
catchment areas

In March 2012 *Upstream Thinking' won the ‘Partriership Inbative
of the Year’ category at the Water Industry Achievement Awards

Our employees
South West Water attaches considerable value to the safety and
franing needs and ambitions of ts employses

In addrion to ngorous attention to health and safety, the company
prowndes thorough franing and support with opporturities for staff
to develop ther careers through a number of schemes These
Include our Internal graduate development programme {(GROW)
and our Management Academy

South West Water 1s a key player in the local economy and we
reman committed to nurtunng fresh talert for the future Dunng
20MA2 our apprenticeship scheme has gathered momentum

and our strategic investment in both people and technology — in
the form of our centrally-operated remote PUROS system and
other Innovations — means we are reaping the rewards of improved
productvity delivered by a highly tramed and motvated workforce

Key relationships

Regulators and cthers

South West Water actively engages with a wide range of
ermaronmental and regulatory stakeholders We take steps to
ensure that communication is handled in the most appropnate
way and that the information we prowde 1s high quality and
consistent We use a range of commercial channels including
traditional and online platforms to communicate wath our
stakeholders

The company contnbutes to national policy on developing 1ssues
through ts membership of Water UK, the industry trade body,
and we work with the Consumer Councll for Water to ensure
that customers’ Issues and concems are addressed and a full
understanding of the comparny’s actvities 1s mantaned

WaterFuture customer panel

As part of the 2014 Penodic Review process, folloming guidance
from Ofwat, we have created an independent "WaterFuture'
customer challenge panel, compnsing a group of representatives
from vanous regulatory, stakeholder and public bodies its role in
the coming year will be to ensure our business plan adequately
reflects an understanding of our customers' pnonties and that our
planned actmties are socially, economically and environmentalty
sustainable

Procurement and supphers

Our procurement strategy 1s focused on partnenng and strategic
allances with 60 key suppliers wha account for the large
maonty of expenditure Wa include all aspects of sustanabilty

In our procurement processes and this 1s a central theme of our
procurement strategy for our supply chains and support of the
regional economy With the start of the K5 regulatory penod we
introduced an innovative ‘mixed economy’ model to source our
capital programme  This means using a significant number of
smaller local contractors to provide spectalised services as well
as developing long-term relationships with more major supply
chan partners No suppler {revenus) accounts for more than 5%
of the company’s revenue and South West Water sources all its
purchases from competitive markets

Looking ahead

In December 2011 the "Water for Life’ White Paper outlined

the Government’s vision for a resilient, customer-focused and

emaronmentally sustainable water sector South West Water

welcomed this commitment from Govermment and we believe that

both our long-term strategy and successes to date are already

making headway in realising these ambitions

The company has delivered substantal efficiencies which

benefit all stakeholders and 18 focusing on continued delivery of

efficencies while satisfyang regulatory and legislative obligations }

and mproving senvices to customers Specifically the strategy |

* targets outperformancs of the regulatory contract

* continues to ngorously control costs

¢ delivers investment in the asset base to secure mprovements
made over the last 20 plus years while preparnng for the next
20 plus years

The company s working towards the next Pnce Review, (PR14),

and is actively engaged in the development of Ofwat's regulatory

reform agenda.

We have already rolled out our iniial phases of customer

engagement and work 1s under way 1o determing investment

scenanos for the next penod

Our 'WaterFuture' customer challenge panel will assist in ensuring

customers’ pnonties are kept central to our plans The panel's

involvernent will help shape our forthcoming Strategic Direction

Statement which will provids a long-term context for the next

business plan
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Directors’ report — Business review

Viridor

Investing for future growth

Key facts and figures
Revenue Profit before tax
£m £m
£761.1m £57.6m
+6.9% -8.4%
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2011/12 operational highlights

* profit before tax decreased by 8 4% to £57 6 rmillon, with
performance less strong in the second half of 2011/12 thanin
the first half of the year reflecting world economic conditions

= contnbubion to profits of recovenng the value in waste grew to
around 50%, as landfill fell to 18% {rom 63% n 2001)

volurmes of recyclate traded Increased by 7 2% 1o over 1 8 millon
tonnes, with continuing IMprovements In quality and value mix

total renewable energy production increased to 760GWh
(752GWh 2010/11)

revenue increased by 6 9% to £7611 mifion

» capital expenditure and iInvestment in joint ventures of £140
mifklon mamnly to deliver addisonal renewable power generation

and recycling capacity
201112 notable achievements.

* acqusition of five high-quality recycling, collection and
transport businessas for around £40 million, strategically
sited to complement exishing UK operations and intemational
recyclate sales

+ announced as preferred bidder for South London, Glasgow and
South Lanarkshire® PPP contracts, and one of last two bidders
for five others

» by the year-end 39 of the 43 new facilities for the Greater
Manchester joint venture FPFl contract were operational

* phases one and two of the construcbon of the combined heal
and power (CHP) energy from waste {EfW) plant at Runcom
on schedule

* construction commenced on Ardley {Oxfordshire) and Exeter
EfwW projects and on Walpole anaerobic digestion facility in
Somerset

» construction contract signed on Cardiff EfW project and

final planning consent achieved on Avonmouth EfW and
recycling faciity

Lakeside joint venture EAN plant, near Heathrow arport,
announced as winner of 2011 Chartered Insttution of

Wastes Management ‘Peel People’s Cup' for best run waste
rmanagement facility in the UK, and of 'EfW Facility of the Year’
and ‘Best Designed Renewable Energy Facility” at the UK
Renewable Infrastructure Awards

subact 1o lega challenge.

Vindor's network of recycling, renewable energy and waste
management operations I1s strategically located across the UK, with
partcular strengths in the South West, South East and North West
of England, East Anglia, South East Wales, and Central Scotland

The company sells its high-quality recyclate in the UK and
nternationally, with established relationships across Europe and
in Asian countnes including China, Indonesia and India



327

operating facirhes

25 3

matenals recycling faciliies (MRFs)

34

langfill gas power plants

8.1

million tonnes of matenal handled
in 2011112

energy from waste (EfW) plants

Strategy and performance - transforming waste

Vindor’s strategy Is to add value by:

* growing recycling capacity and services

* growing energy from waste capacity and
services

s selectively gaining more PPP contracts

¢ capitalising on its long-term strong posttion
in the landfill market.

Vindor consolidated rts position as the UK’s
largest operator of matenals recycling facilities
(MRFs) in 2011/12. The company made five
further acquisitions of recycling, collection and
transfer businesses during the year.

In the short-term Vindor’s financial performance
will continue to be Influenced by trends In
recycling and landfill

Recycling remains a very profitable business
for Vindor and the roll-out of its EfW pipeline
{operations commencing 2013/14 onwards)
could more than double EBITDA within five
years

Strategy

Transforming waste: to grow Vindor's recycling capacity and services

Performance

Vohumes of traded recyclate iIncreased by 7 2% with continuing
improvement in quality and value mix Revenue per tonne was
up 6 8% year on year atthough pnces fell back in the second half
of the year Further acquisiions strengthened recycling capacity
and volume

Performance

Runcorn, Exeter and Ardley EfW facilities and Walpole AD plant
under construction Construction contract signed for Cardiff EAWV
plant Total power generation output Increased o 760GWh

KPI KPI KPI KPl
Recyclates traded Profits from recovenng Renewable energy Total renewable energy
mitlion tonnes value 1n waste % generation capacity generation
MW zs a1 31 March GWh
+7.2% 49% 136MW 760GWh
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Directors’ report — Business review Viridor
continued

A year of investment and progress

Top Lakeside energy from waste facility
Bottom Vindor collection services
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Strategy

The UK 15 required under the EU Landfil Directive to reduce the
amount of biodegradable mumcipal waste going to landfil sites
This 1s being achieved by a major increase in recycling, with
residual waste Increasingly being used for energy recovery The
Government’s man mechanism for diverting waste from landfill
and providing incentrves for recyching and energy recovery Is
landfill tax, supported by a ranga of other palicy and legslative
measures Marny leading corporate orgarisations are also looking
to mprove environmental and business performance through
recycling and resource efficiency All of these factors underine
the key ams and long-term trends in UK waste management that
Vindor has been pre-empting and responding to In its services
and continued business transformation The strategic position and
ability of the company to capttalise an these favourable trends 1s
therefore strong

Business performance

Vindor's revenue increased by £491 milhon to £7611 millon
Acquisiions accounted for £23 1 mifion of this, while existing
business ncreased by £26 0 milion {including an increase In
landfill tax of £17 8 rmillion)

Since 2007408 and up until the first half of 2011/12 our strong
growth in recyching profits had bean more than offsetting the
decline In annual fandfill profits However, recyclate pnces fell in
the second half of the year reflecting world economic conditions,
although Vindor was able 1o offset more than 50% of the mpact
of this fall under the terms of its customer supply contracts and
by other cost reductions The year on year growth in recycling
prafits, combined with strong performances in contracts and
joint ventures, was unable to offset the on-going decling In

landfill coupled with Increased contract bid costs associated

with Virdor's expanding PPP/EfW pipeline Notwithstanding this
the compary produced a robust performance dunng a year of
continuing difficult economic conditions The proportion of our
profits that come through recoverng the value n waste continues
to graw, and was around 50% in 2011412 This compares with just
16% elevenyears ago

Despite the challengng UK and global economic climate, Vindor
remains convnced that embracing the ermaronmental agenda

has been an effective driver for long-term growth Being green is
good for business We are confident that our strategy will continue
to dnve long-term growth and produce value for Vindor and rts
stakeholders Recycling will be key to profits in the next couple of
years, with long-term momentum underpinned by our growing
PPP and EfW pipeline

Investment and awards

2011112 was a year of maor long-term investment from Vindor,
ncluding the completion of a further five acquisions for a total
of around £40 millon, complemeanting the existing business and
In lina with the company’s recycling and collection strategies
These compnsed the acquisiion of Community Waste Recycling
Lirmited for a total of £18 5 mlion, JWS Chumngold Limited for
£14 3 milhon, Storm Recycling Uimited for £1 7 million, and two
separate acquistions of trade waste collection interests of Vieolia
In the South West of England for a combined sum of £8 2 mullon,
the latter bnnging excellent synergistic opportunities for Vindor's
business in that region




Viridor continues its
transformation into a
progressive recycling-led
resource management
business, with a growing
focus on recovering the value
in waste through materials
recycling and the generation
of renewable energy from
waste sources.

Investments in the future capabilities and strength of our bustiness
included capital expenditure and investment in joint vertures of
£140 milion, of which £93 million was for new projects in E(W,
recycling and waste freatment infrastructure This included

£58 3 million on Phase |l of the Runcom EfW combined heat and
power {CHP) faciity An addmional £13 4 milhion was invested in
joint ventures

Dunng the year Vindor's Lakeside EfW jont venture, near
Heathrow arrport, won the Chartered Institution of Wastes
Management's Peel Peoples Cup for the best run waste
management faciity in the UK Lakeside also won the ‘'EfW Facility
of the Year' and 'Best Designed Renewable Energy Facilty'
categones at the Renewable Infrastructure Awards 2011 Vindor,
along with West Sussex County Council, Horsham Distnct Council
and sub-contractor, Clus, also won the Association for Organic
Recycling’s Partnership Award

These awards, and the robust position and performance of the
business, are recogriton of the commitment, professionalism,
innevation and hard work of our employees, for which we
thank them

Recycling

Year on year growth in recyckng volumes and profits continued,
reflecting organic growth, acquisitions and an improved mix
between higher and lower value recyclates praduced

Volumes of recyclate traded dunng the year increased by 124,000
tonnes {7 2%0) to 1 84 milkon tonnes Higher value recyclate
volumes increased by 188,000 tonnes (17 4%), including 110,000
tonnes through acquisiions, whils lower value recyclates
decrsased by 74,000 tonnes (12 8%) Vindor continues to focus
onirvestments and operatonal improvements to ensure the
highest possible quality of output from ds recycling actviies This
strengthens our long-term relationships with customers via our
global trading platform (Vindor Resource Management) and allows
flenabdity in changing market condiions

The acquistion of Community Waste Recycling Limited ncluded
two MBFs, In Milton Keynes and Oxfordshire, and a business
procassing up to 90,000 tonnes of recyclates Storm Recycling
bimited brought an additional 20,000 tonnes of quality recyclates
Into the business in the North West of England The acquisttion
of two trade waste collection businesses of Veoha in parts of the
South West reflected the increasing role that Vindor's collection
fleet has in feeding the company's recyclng operations

The long-term economics of recycling fand energy recovery) are
enhanced by tha rate of landfill tax increasing by £8 a year from

the current £64 per tonne to £80 per tonne by 1 Apnl 2014 The
profit per tonne in recycling remans appreciably higher than the
level in landfil operations Quality recyclates also remain attractively
pnced commodities when compared wiath virgn maternals

Contracts and joint ventures

2011412 was the third year of operation of the 25-year Greater
Manchester Waste PH contract, a jont venture that remams the
UK's largest combined recycling-focused waste and renewable
energy proiect Some 39 out of the 43 now planned facilites
required to service the contract are now operational The project
ams 10 recycle over 50% of Greater Manchester's waste and
divert at least 75% from landfill

Phase i of the Runcom EfW CHP plant, whichis being
constructed to treat solid recovered fuel produced from Greater
Manchester's residual waste, 1s on schedule to open at the end of
2012413 Phase [l of the Runcom facity s also under construction
and 1s scheduled to open dunng 2014 This addmional capacity

1s designed to serve the North West market more generally
Runcorn will be ane of the largest and most efficient EfWW CHP
plants in Europe

Towards the end of the year Vindor completed ds £45 million
investment in Infrastructure to serve the West Sussex County
Council recyckng and waste handing PFl contract The opening
of the final recyciing site at East Gnnstead completed a seven
year programme to deliver a network of modem recycling facites
across the county The contract 1s on track to deliver its target of a
45% recycing rate, three years ahead of schedule The acguistion
of JWS Churngold Limited strengthened contract services in the
North West

201112 was the second full year of operation of the Lakeside EfW
plant, a jont venture with Grundon Waste Management, with a
capactty to treat 410,000 tonnes of residual waste a year and an
electncity generaticn capacity of 3TMW This 1s the first of Vindor's
pipeline of EAW plarts ark it has performed consistently strongly
In terms of #s electneal output and its on-going profitability, with

a total contnbution of £7 8 mullion

The total contnbution from Vindor joint ventures increased by 4 5%
to £11 5 milhon

Landfill gas power generation

Vindor has 34 landfill gas power plants generating renewabie
power by hamessing methane produced as organic matenal
which is anaerobically troken down in contained landfill cells
The total power generated by these plants in 2011/12 rose
slightly to 576GWh (from S66GWh in 2010/11} The average pnce
achieved per MWh was also up slightly (196) at £83 50 but this
was offset by unit cost increases, leaving profits flat year on year

Vindor estimates that its landfil gas power generation I1s
approaching peak cutput The company had an overall generating
capacity of 107MW! on 31 March 2012 Electncity produced s
sold under the Govemment's Renewables Obligaton Certrficates
{ROCs), or the older Non-Fossil Fuel Obligation (NFFO) schemes
The proportion of electneity generated at Vindor plants sold under
the higher value ROCs, increased from 69% to 74% dunng the
year, with the remaining 26% sold under NFFO contracts Around
60% of the NFFO component will migrate to ROCs in 201314,
with the remaining balance migrating by 2016/17

1 Exchudes 3WMVY capadity Bt sub-oomract sies n Sutiok.

Landfill and collection services

Landfil continues to prowde an important disposal option for

a significant — but declinng - proportion of UK wastes Total
wvolumes receved at Vindor sites decreased by O 4 millon tonnes
{11 4%} to 31 mullion tonnes, broadly it line with the UK market
Approximately half of this decline n volume was accounted for by
the closure of Horton landfill in West Sussex, with the remainder
frormn reduced third party ndustnal and commercial inputs
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continued

Average gate fees at Vindor sites increased by 5 8% to £23

per tonne, but the gan was offset by Increased costs on lower
volumes Consented landfill capacity fell from 69 0 million cubic
metres at 31 March 2011 to 65 4 millon cubic metres at 31 March
2012, reflecting usage dunng the year

Profits from collection services were flat year on year Two
acquisiions dunng the year (of Veola trade waste collection
busingsses) strengthened capacity in core service areas This
reflects our drive for controlled growth in industnal and commercial
collection within key areas, to provide matenals for our recycing
and EfW operations

Renewable energy developments

Vindor believes that there s potential for the UK to generate up
to 6% of its total electnoity from energy denved from waste as
fuel {from current contrbution approaching 2%) Energy secunty
remans a vitally important 1ssue for the UK and utiising waste to
generate renewable power presents opportunities for diversity
of supply, with the addional benefits of landfill dversion and
carbon reducton Vindor currently has a generating capacity

of 136MW and 1s confident that it can grow this capacity to
over 300MW in four years This would represent 3-4% of

UK renewable energy supply

To that end, Vindor's strong pipeline of cpportunities in the EfW
and renewable energy sector continues to progress The Runcom
faciity, for example, will have a total capacity of 750,000 tonnes a
year and a CHP capaaity of 120MW (a proportion of which will be
provided under joint venture)

Dunng the year Vindor secured planning consent for its Ardley ERW
facility Construction has now begun on this plant which will largely
serve the Oxfordshire PPP contract, treatng 300,000 tonnes of
residual waste a year with an electneity generating capacity of
24MW The construction of the Exeter EPW facility also began
dunng the year It i1s designed to treat 60,000 tonnas of residual
waste for Devon County Councll with a generating capacity

of 3MW

At the end of the year Vindor signed an EPC contract for the
Tndent Park EfwW scheme in Cardiff, wath construction beginning

in the first half of 2012/13 This facility will have a waste treatment
capacity of 350,000 tonnes a year, and an electnarty generating
capacity of 28BMW The carmpany also has planning consent for
two further EfW projects in Dunbar and Avonmiouth and 1s seeking
consent for a further plant at Beddington in South London

Towards the end of the year a contract was signed for the
construction ¢f an anaerobic digeston (AD) facility at Walpole
in Somerset This plant will be capable of treating up to 30,000
tonnes of organic waste, mostly saurced from the existing
PPP contract with Somersat Waste Partnership, and will

have an elecincity generating capacrty of over 1MW Vindor

18 commussioning four other AD plants as part of the Greater
Manchester waste PFl contract
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PPP pipeline

Vindor's bidding team for long-term PPP contracts has performed !
strongly in recent years Dunng 2011/12 we were announced

as preferred bidder for the South London Waste Partnership’s
25-year PPP residual waste contract for the treatment of up to
200,000 tonres of residual waste Similarty the company achieved
preferred bidder status for the Glasgow PPP contract requinng
treatment and disposal of up to 200,000 tonnes of residual waste
a year via an energy recovery faciity

Vindor was also named preferred bidder for the South Lanarkshire
PPP contract {currently subyect to legal challenge) and 1s one of
the last two bidders for contracts iIn Peterborough (for recycling
and for residual waste), West Lothian {residual waste), South East
Wales fresidual waste), Central Bedfordshire fresidual waste) and
Edinburgh and Midlothian {food waste)

Key relationships

Ervironmental permits are required for all waste and recycling
faciities in England and Wales, with waste management licences
or pollution, prevention and control PPC) permits required in
Scotland These are 1ssued and monitored by the Environment
Agency and the Scottish Emvaronment Protection Agency
respectively Vindor mantains a positrve working relationship
with the regutators by means of proactive hasson and 1ssues
management, at both a site and strategic level

The comparny has developed an innovative data shanng portal
named ‘Openspace’, with the Emaronment Agency m England,
which supphes online envircnmental montonng data lve to the
regulator, replacing the need to supply huge volumes of written
quarterty and annual reports This ground-breakang project Is part
of the Agency’s ‘better regulation’ agenda and has substantal cost
and resource saving potential

Local authonties remain Vindor's largest single customer group
accounting In total for 32% of the company's revenue, atthough
no indnadual authorty accounts for more than 11% Vindor's
ROC energy contracts account for 6% of revenue, pnmarnly
with one customer

No supplier accounts for more than 5% of Vindor's revenue
The company sources from competitive markets

Our employees

We are proud of the achievements of our employees Vindor's
operational pnonty remains the safety, health and positive
professional development of our employees It 1s the on-going
commitment, motvation and professionalism of our employees
that enables the company to continue to grow, develop and
delver results Particular attention has been paid dunng the year
to improving further training capacity and personal development
opportunities and to health and safety Our overall RIDDOR
incidence rate has fallen by 43% dunng the year

The company continues 1o focus on supporting new employess
loining Vindor to ensure quick and effective ntegration into our
company culture, especially our health and safety and business
management systems This also enables all new employees to
contnbute to the company’s success from the begnning of ther
Vindor career




Looking ahead we intend
to increase further the
proportion of profits
generated by recovering
the value in waste.

Recycling operations will

be key to profits in the
short-term with Viridor’s
pipeline of PPP/EfW projects
underpinning its long-term
profit momentum.

Looking ahead

Dunng the year the UK Government completed its Waste Policy
Review for England — wath similar themes enshrined in the Scottish
and Welsh ‘zero waste' strategies and plans These underline

the govemments' commitment to moving towards a ‘zero waste
economy’ via higher levels of recycling, energy recovery and
resource efficency Vindor awans with interest the National Waste
Management Plan (due in 2013) setting out updated guidance

on the delivery of waste Infrastructure There has already been
good progress In the delivery of planning consents for recycling
and waste facilites and we believe that the current market-frendly
approach to recycling and generatng energy form waste should
continue 1o be encouraged

The seventh Environment Action Programme (EAP) 1s also due
to be adopted by the Europaan Commission (EC) in 2012 This
will emphasise the need for waste prevention, recycling and
greater resource efficiency, as well as better implementation

of erronmental legiglation at aff levels — including waste
management

Within the context of EC policy and legislative trends, we believe
that Vindor 1s well placed to benefit from addtional requirements
10 Increase renewable energy generation, carbon reduction and
overall resource efficiency

The waste sector will continue to be dnven by a regulatory
ermvronment in which Vindor has been able to take an
entrepreneunal approach As we target further growth, particularty
In our recychng and EfW businesses, we believe it 1s important
that the current light touch 1s mamtained to give us the operational
freedoms we need to benefit our clients, the emvironment at large
and our investors

Looking ahead we intend to Increase further the propartion of
profits generated by recovenng value in waste The company
strategy has been successful to date and recycling operations

will be key to profits in the short-term Long-term profit momentum
will be underpinned by our growing PPP and EfW pipeline This
gres us confidence that Vindor can continue to debver long-term
growth in shareholder value

Around 50% of profits from recavenng value in waste (including
more than 2% energy generation/recycling in Jvs and Contracts
and othe)

Anaerobic digestion faciity, Greater Manchester
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Directors' report — Business review

Financial review

Pennon Group continued to deliver revenue and profit

growth in 2011/12

Performance overview
Profit before tax Earmings per share before Interest rate on Dwidend per share
£m deferred tax pence average net debt pence
%

£200.5m 47.3p 3.9% 26.52p
+6.4% +11.8% +7.6%
Reconcibation of eamings per share 201112 2010711 GruMh%

p P
Eamings per share - pence
Statutory earmings per share 4581 484 06
Deferred tax 08 1)
Earrings per share before deferred tax — pence 473 423 18

Note. Eamungs per share figures in this Business review exciuda defarred tax, The Directors bebave that this measure pravidas a more usatul compartson on business trends and perfomance

sinca defermed 1ax distorts eamengs per shars through the effacts of changes N corporabion 1ax rates and the level of long term ceptiatinvestment.
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Continuing interest outperformance coupled with
raising cash and facilities to fund future growth:

£1,084 million cash and facilities at 31 March 2012,
including £566 million of new/refinanced facilities

sourced during the year.

The year’s financial huighlights

Pennon Group performed well overall South West Water recorded
a strong performance compared with the 2010-2015 regulatory
contract Continuing growth 1n Vindor recycling, contracts and
Joint ventures was offset by a reduchon in landfill contnbution plus
increased bid costs associated with ts developing project pipekine

Dunng the year we secured further funding to finance continuing
growth By the year-end we had £1,084 milion in cash and
faciites in place to fund major growth in Vindor's project pipeline
and South West Water's K5 (2010-2015) capital programme

We have secured funding at a cost that 1s low in absolute terms The
Group nterest rate on average net debt improved to 3 8% 2010/11
419%) In addition South West Water's interest rate of 4 1% (pre-tax,
nominal) 1s substantially lower than the 6 2% assumed by Ofwat

for the 2010-2015 regulatory penod This 1s a significant advantage
compared wrth a number of our competrtors which will help drve
value for the Group and our shareholders for years to come

The prncipal measures we use to assess the Group’s financial
performance are profit before tax, eamings per share before
deferred tax and the interest rate on average net debt

Revenue
Group revenue Increased by 6 4% to £1,233 1 mullion

South West Water's revenue rose by 5 6% to £474 0 millon as
aresult of tanff ncreases and new connections, partially offset
by a further reduction m revenue from customers swiiching from
unmeasured to metered charges and from lower demand

Vindor's revenue rose by 6 9% to £761 1 million Approximately half
of the Increase was accounted for by acquisiions

Operating profit

Group operating profit Increased by 3 0% to £268 8 millon with
South West Water up by 79% to £204 7 million, but Vindor down
by 11 0% to £63 7 milion

Net finance costs

We continued our effectve management of interest rates in

2011412 with net interest payable on averags net debt equating to

3 9% {2010/11 4 1%). Dunng the year net finance costs (excluding
pensions, net interest, discount unwind on provisions and (FRIC 12
contract interest recenvablg) were £74 9 miion 2010411 £77 2 millon}
covered 3 6 tmes (2010411 3 4 tmes) by Group operating profit.

Profit before tax

Profit before tax was £200 5 millon, an increase of 6 4% Pages 12
and 18 give a detalled descnption of the financial performance of
each company

Taxation

The Group's UK corporation tax charge for the year was £309
rrilhon (2010/11 £38 6 millon) Defered tax for the year was a
credit of £2 8 milion (2010/11 credt £21 7 milion), which included
a credrt of £26 4 rmulkon from the impact of the reduction in the rate
of corperation tax from Apnl 2012

Earnings per share

Earmings per share before deferred tax ncreased by 11 8% to

47 3p The weighted average number of shares in 1ssse dunng the
year was 358 7 millon {2010/11 354 6 mifllon) Net assets per share
at book value at 31 March 2012 were 228p

Dividends and retained earnings
The statutory net profit of £172 4 million has been transferred
toreserves

The Drrectors recommend the payment of a final dvdend of 18 30p
per share for the year ended 31 March 2012 With the intenm
dvdend of B 22p per share pard on3 Apnl 2012, this gives a total
ddend for the year of 26 52p, an Increase of 76% over 2010/11
{reflecting 4% real growth plus RPI of 3 6% at March 2012)

Proposed dvidends fotalling £95 9 million are covered 1 8 tirnes by
net profit {excluding deferred tax) 2010/11 17 times) Dmdends are
charged aganst retaned eamings in the year in which they are paid
Dividend policy

The Board’s previously announced intention 1s to increase the
dmdend each year by 4% above inflabon up to at least the end

of 2014/15 The Group 15 well postoned to meet future challenges
and to continue delivenng shareholder value We remain
committed to this Increase

Operating costs
Operating costs for the year totalled £964 milion The most
significant areas of expenditure were

Expendrture £m
Landfil tax 166
Manpower 155
Depreciation 146
Raw matenals and consumables' 102
Transport 63
Power 27
Business rates 7
Abstraction and discharge consents 8
! Exchudss elements of transport costs.

Asset value opinion

In the opirion of the Directors, the cument market value of the
Group's land and bulldings 1s not significantly different from the
holding cost shown in the financial statements

Group investment

Dunng the year the Group's caprtal expenditure on property,
plant and equipment mcreased by 29% to £257 millien (2010/11
£199 millior) The mayor categones of expenditure for both main
businesses are shown on page 24
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continued

Cash flow

In 2611/12 the Group cnce agan had a strong operating cash flow
Net bomowangs ncreased by £171 milkon pnmanly due to capital
Investments and acquiIsiions

201112 2010711
£m £m

Summansed cash flow

Cash inflow from operations 374 412
Pension contnbutons @9 (36)
Net cash nflow from operations 325 378
Net nterest pard ) B4
Drndends and tax paid i) (100)
Capital expenditure (258) (186)
Acguistions/investment in joint ventures 43 38
Loan repayments recenved from oint ventures 4 4
Net cash outflow (144) ®
Shares 1ssued 2 2
Deht acquired with acquistions - 22)
Debt indexation/interest accruals (20) {in
Increass in net bomowngs {171 {39

Liquidity and debt profile

The Group has a strong quidity and funding position with £1,084
miflon cash and facihes at 31 March 2012 Thig includes cash and
depostts of £425 milion {including £123 million of restncted funds
representing deposits with lessors against lease cblgations) and
undrawn facilites of £659 millon These totals include £566 millon
in new or renawed debt faciiies armanged dunng the year, being

s £125 milllon European Investment Bank loan for South
Waest Water
« £205 millon leasing facities
= £181 million of new term loans and Revoiving Credit Facilties
= renewal of £55 million Revolving Credit Facilty
The Group’s financing structure gives us the scope and flexibility

we heed to mplement our strategic obyectives and mavarmise value
for our shareholders

At 31 March 2012 the Group’s loans and finance lease abligations
totalled £2,530 million After the £425 milion held i cash this gives
a net debt figure of £2,105 million, up by £171 milkon dunng the
year

Debt incurred for the construction in progress of Vindor's portfolio
of EfW plants at Runcom Phase [l, Ardley — Oxfordshire PPP and
Exeter Increased by £97 milion 1o £143 rmdion at 31 March 2012

Major components of the Group’s debt finance at
31 March 2012

The Group's debt has a matunty of up to 45 years, with an
average matunty of 23 years
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The Group has fixed or put swaps In place to fix the interest rate
on at least 50% of South West Water's debt for the entire K5
penod up to 2015, at an average interest rate of 3 4% A further
24% of South West Water's debt 1s index-linked to 2041-2057, at
an overall real rate of 166% As aresult of these nmatives, South
West Water's cost of finance 1s amongst the lowest in the industry

Dunng the year the Group recorded fair value losses of

£25 million on swaps (2011 nil, as ndicated in the Statement of
comprehensive ncome on page 63 These swaps are expected to
be held to matunty and hence these losses will reverse over ime
Pennon Group Pic's and South West Water's interest rates on
average net debt for the year to 31 March 2012 were 3 9% and
41% respectvely

Just over half of the Group’s gross debt 1s finance leasing, gving
us a long matunty profile with interest payable benefiting from
the fixed credit margins which wera secured at the inception

of each lease

At 31 March 2012 the farr value of the Group's non-curmrent
bomowings was £200 million less than its book value (2010/11
£261 milkon) as detaled in note 26 to the financial statements

Caprtal structure — overall position

At the end of the financial year the Group's net debt of £2,105
milkon gave a ratio of net debt to {equity plus net debt) of 71 9%
(2010/11 71 3%)

South West Watar's debt to Regulatory Caprial Value (RCV) was
56 1% at 31 March 2012 2010411 57 1%) which is within Ofwat's
optmum range of 55% — 65%

Vindor 1s funded by a combination of Pennon Group equity and
debt (raised by Pennon Group) and direct borrowang by Vindor
At the year-end Vindor's net debt was £517 millon (2010/11 £487
millon) equivalent to 47 tmes EBITDA 2010/11 4 2 tmes)

Treasury pohcies

The role of the Group's treasury function 1s to ensure that we have
the funding to meet foreseeable needs to maintain reasonable
headroom for future contingencies and to manage interest

rate nsk The Group enters into certain structured financing
transactions that have and are expected to prowvide an improved
retum on surplus funds and overall interest rate performance

It operates only within policies approved by the Board and
undertakes no speculative trading activity

The Board regularly monitors expected financing needs for at least
the next 12 months which are ntended to be met for the coming
year from existing cash balances, loan faciiies and operating
cash flows

The Group has considerable financial resources and a broad
spread of business actviies The Directors therefore beleve that
it 1s well placed to manage its business nsks despite the ongoing
uncertainties of the current economic environment

Internal berrowing

South West Water's funding is treated for regulatory purposes as
effectively nng-fenced This means that funds raised by, or for, the
company are not available as long-term funding for other areas of
the Group

Going concern

The Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group has
adequate resources to continue ks operational existence for the
foreseeable future They therefore have continued to adopt the
going concem basis In prepanng the financial statements




Taxation abjectives and policies

Our tax strategy, as approved by the Board, is to enhance
shareholder value by legally mmimising the taxes we pay while
hawing regard to our long-term relationship with the tax authonties
We will consider bona fide arrangemenits which are integral to our
business and which qualify for tax exemption or relief

Tax contnbution 2011/12

The total tax charge for the year of £281 milkon was less than
the charge which would have ansen from the accounting profit
before tax of £200 & million taxed at the statutory rate of 26%
A reconciliation is provided in note 8 to the financial statements

The Group made a net payment of £41 4 million of UK corporation
tax n the year (2010/11 £43 2 million}

The Group's total tax contnbution extends significantty beyond
the UK corporation tax charge

Total taxes amounted to £339 milion of which £55 million was
collected on behalf of the authonties for net VAT and employee
payroll taxes

In addhon to corporation tax the most significant taxes involved
together with therr profit impact were

= landfill tax of £166 milion was collected by the Group on behalf
of HM Revenue & Customs (HMRC) Landfill tax 1s an operating
cost which 1$ recovered from customers and is recognised in
revenue In addtion the Group meumed landfill tax of £22 millon
on the disposal of waste to third partes  This 1s an operating
cost for the Group and reduces profit before tax

Value Added Tax (VAT) of £21 million {net) collected by the
Groun and paid to HMRC, VAT has no matenal impact on profit
before tax

business rates of £27 millon paid to local authorties Thisis a
drrect cost to the Group and reduces profit before tax

employment taxes of £47 millon including employees’ Pay As
You Earn (PAYE) and total National Insurance Contnbutions
(NICs} Employer NICs of £13 million were charged
approximately 94% to operating costs with 6% caprtaksed to
property, plant and equipment

* Fuel Excise Duty of £12 milkon related to transport costs

This reduces profit before tax

The corporation tax rate for 2011/12 used to calculate the current
year’s tax Is 26% The corporation tax rate, as enacted into law
on 26 March 2012, has been reduced to 24% for 2012/13 and 1s
expected to fall by a further 1% per annum until the financial year
2014/15 when the rate will be 22%

Pensions

The Group operates defined benefit pension schemes for certan
employess of Pennon Group, South West Water and Vindor

The mam schemes were closed to new entrants on or before

1 Apnl 2008

Funding raised to support ongoing capital investment
Top Sewage treatment works, Polperro, Comwall

Bottom Mechanical biclogical treatment facility, Greater
Manchester

At 31 March 2012 the Group's pension schemes showed a deficit
{before dseferred tax} of £99 million (2010/11 £86 mullon) Net
labies of £75 millon (after defered tax) represented less than
3% of the Group's total market capitaisation at 31 March 2012

The last actuanal valuation of the main scheme was at 31 March
2010 South West Water's cash contnbutions to the scheme
reman within Ofwat's Final Determination for the K5 penod

Dunng the year the Group recorded losses of £52 milion (2011
gain of £2 miton} in the Statement of comprehensive Income on
page 63 from changes in actuanal assumptions, being pnncipally
the reduction in the net discount rate of 0 63%, reflecting lower
AA bond yields

Insurance

Pennon Group manages its property and third party lability nsks
through insurance policies that manly cover property, motor,
business interruption, public lability, environmental poliution and
empioyers’ habiity

The Group uses three tiers of nsurance to cover operating nsks

» self-insurance — Group companies pay a moderate excess on
most clams

= cover by the Group's subsidiary (Perunsula Insurance Limited)
of the layer of nsk between the self-nsurance and the cover
provided by external Insurers

» cover provided by the extemal msurance market, arranged
by our brokers with Insurance companies which have good
credit ratings
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Principal risks and uncertainties

The risks and uncertainties set out in this section have

been identified from our risk management process as
potentially having a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition, results of operations and reputation.
They are managed as described but are not wholly within
our control and may still result in a material adverse impact
on the Group. Factors beside those listed could also have a
material adverse effect on our business activities.

How we manage nsk

We operate a well established and fully embedded Group wide nsk management process from which we seek to identify significant nsks
at the earliest possible stage and determine whether they are acceptable nsks which we can manage and mitigate satisfactenly More
detall on our nsk management process 1s set out on Page 50 in our Corporate Governance Report

Risk Commentary Mrtigation Change
Law and regulatory There 1s a wide range of laws and The general dwecton of travel of
Changes in law, regulation or regulations and policy decisions of Govemnment pohey in both business areas
decisions by Governmental govemment and regulators which 15 known and each company 1S actively
bodies or regulators could could have a matenally adverse Involved m consultations on regulatory
have a matenal adverse effect  ©ffect on the resulis of operations of changes
on our financial results or both South West Water and Vindor
operatons. Examples of laws and regulatory
changes Include
The transfer of private sewers to Operational plans to manage customer
South West Water which took place contacts and deliver service to customers e
on 1 October 2011 and the further were Implemented smoothly and actraty

adoption of pnvate pumping stations has been at the lower end of the range

which1s due to take placeup to 2016 Appropnate nsk management actvities
are undertaken to monitor progress and
a strategy 1s In place to manage for the
further adoption of pumping stations
Operating and capital costs incumed
efficiently will be funded by future
adjustments 1o pnce Iimits

Key

€ Unchanged dunng year Risk Level The colounng (red, amber, green) is the

1 Increased dunng year Green - Low Group’s estmate of the mherent nsk level to

L Reduced dunn 9 ar Amber — Medium the Grroup after mitigation it is mportant to
gye role that nsks are difficult to estimate with

Red - High accuracy and therefore the nsks may be
more or less significant than indicated
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Risk

Commentary
Performance of South West Water
agamst key regulatory outputs

Mitigation Change
They are monitored on a monthly basis
and where performance falls short, J’
comective programmes are developed

and implemented to target recovery in
specific areas Intermal monitonng and
assurance programmes are undertaken
through the year and annual data is
supported by external venfication through
the South Wast Water external auditors to
provide assurance on comphance

The Govermment's Water White Paper
signals an evolutionary approach

to market and regulatory reform

over a pencd to 2025 and beyond
Legislation 1s required for a number

of the changes and draft legslahon

15 anticipated in 2012/13 The
development of greater competiion

In the water ndustry could reduce
South West Water's revenues

As part of ts nsk management and
business strategic planning processes, e
the company evaluates developrments

and proposals for competition which
could provide opportunrhes for business
expansion South West Water 1s prepared
for the development of retall competition,
with the launch of 'Source for Business)',
offenng enhanced services to commercial
customers The company has evaluated
proposals for regulatory reform and
contnbuted fully to the Ofwat consultations
on regulatory price seting and other
forms of dialogue with regulators and
stakeholders in order to effectively convey
its views

Ciimate change and resutting
increased regulatory standards could
mncrease costs for South West Water

The company has plans ready and will
adapt the way it conducts its business
to respond effectively to the changing
weather conditions

The UK has landill dversion,
recycling and recovery targets which,
together with the impact of both
WEEE Regulations, higher Producer
Respensibility cbkgations and pre-
freatment requirements, plus nsing
landfill tax, will continue to further
reduce landfill volumes for Vindor
and potentially, over time, landfil
asset values

Vindor's strategy 1s to grow in recycling
and energy from waste where margins
per tonne are much higher than in landfill
Increasing landfilt tax ncreases the
economic attractiveness of recyciing and
energy from waste The new Resource
Efficiency Agenda emanating from the
EU and the UK Govemment's attention
to resource and electnety secunty are
expected to provide further opportunities

T

for Vindor
The ever increasing demand for higher  These issues for South West Water are
standards, in areas such as heatthand  addressed in the five-year regulatory 9

safety, emvronmental performance
and employee welfare increase costs
for both South West Water and Vindor

pnce review mechanism through future
adjustments to pnce imits but there s a
nsk that some addrtional costs wili nct be
funded immediately, in part or at all

Within Vindor higher costs are sometimes
but not always recovered through (—)
contractual arrangements with waste
authonhes and other customers
Addrionally Vindor continues to develop
its Business Management Systems

to address costs and mantan high
standards of compliance by improving

its management controls Vindor also
maintains a close interest in ndustry
developments wvia the waste sector trade
associaton and therefore 15 often at the
forefront of planned changes
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Directors’ report — Business review Principal risks and uncertainties

continued

Risk
Economic conditions

Economic condrhons could
materially affect the Group's
revenues and profitabilrity.

Commentary

The Group does have exposure 1o
reduced economic acbwty, inflabon/

deflabon and the mpact of the current

Eurozone uncertantes However
South West Water's revenues are
econcmically regulated through the
pnce review mechanism and Vindor

has a diversified revenue stream which

includes exports to countnes such as
China and Incha whose economies
are more bugyant than the UK and
Europe Exampies of specific areas
of impact are

Mrtigation

Change

South West Water's revenues can be
impacted by higher bad debts and
customer affordability

In addrtion to existing debt reduction
strategies (such as WaterCare+, Restart
and the Fresh Start Fund), which are kept
under review, the company continues

to implement new iniatives to iIMprove
and secura cash callection, including the
use of thard party collechon agencies and
introduction of a new biling and collection
business 'Source Contact Management’
The Government's commitment to tackle
‘unfarness’ 1Issues for the company's

bill payers, where 3% of the population
pay for 30% of the UKs bathing waters,
has also moved forward with legislation
passed for a £50 reduction in bils for
householders from 2013/14

South West Water has 73 4% of its
domestic customer base metered
and as a result the revenue from
these customers can be more volatile
from changes N usage which can

be affected by a number of factors
including

- abnormal weather impacts
- ncreased water efficiency

- recession Impacting commercial
customers

The financial impact of changes In
customer demand are mitigated through
the regulatory Revenue Correction
Mechanism, whereby shortfalls in revenue
in one five year regulatory pncing penod
are adjusted in the following pencd

A number of the company’s other income
strearms are vulnerable to downtums

in econormic actmty, paricularty in

the property market affecting new
connections, searches and mans
diversion activty

Vindor has seen residual waste landfill
and collecton volumes reduce due
1o the recession and the long-term
trend towards recycling and energy
from waste

Vindor's strategy s focused on growing

in recycling and energy from waste where
marging per tonne are much hugher than
n landfil

Vindor's commodity trading arm
(VRM) trades where the market 1s
most favourable However, Vindor
remains suscephble to global
economic demands and the
weakness of the Eurozone is having
a depressing effect on the prices

of intemationally tradled recyclates
A breakdown of the Euroczone would
ntensify the downward pressure on
pnces In addition competrion for
recyclables from other contractors
via aggressive pncing has been

a recent trend

Under the terms of its customer supply
contracts and by management acton
Vindor has been able to offset more than
50% of the mpact of pnce reductions in
recyclates

- ¢ T ¢
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Risk

Commentary

The Government’s spending Review
has put pressure on tocal authonty
servicas, including household waste
recycling centre operations which is
expected to have a short-term impact

Mrtigation Change

Vindor provides best value services and
competitive procurement beds to its public e
sector custorners

Finance and funding

Access to finance and funding
costs may be adversely
affected by perceived credit
rating and prolonged penods
of market volatility or hiquidnty.
There are covenant imits

and restnctve obhigations

on borrowing and debt

The Group may be unable to raise
sufficient funds to finance tts actvittes
or such funds may be only avallable at
higher cost

‘The Company has robust treasury policies

in place which include always having pre- e
funded surplus cash and/or cormmitted

facihies 1o cover at least one year's

estimated cash flow and arranging for no

more than 202 of net bormowing to mature

In any one year In addon in respect of

South West Water the economic regulator

has a statutory duty to ensure that it 15

able to finance its functons in the normal

arrangements
course The Group has to date obtaned
funding at lower effective average interest
rates compared to many other companies
i its sector and 1s well placed to meet the
funding requirements of both South West
Water and Vindor in the foreseeable future
The Group had £1 tilion of cash and
facilities as at 31 March 2012 including
over £0 5 billon of new/refinanced faciities
sourced dunng the year

Operating performance Poor operating performance for

Poor operating performance both South West Water or Vindor

or a failure or interruption of could resuft in enforcement action,

our operating systems or the prosecutions, loss of permits and cwil

nability to carry out network action wiech could all resutt in negative

operations or damage to publicity, regulatory penalties, loss

infrastructure may have a of customer confidence due to poor

matenal adverse impact on
both our financial posrion
and reputation.

performance and eventually, reduced
demand for services and increased
fixed costs

Within South West Water a major
network failure or interruption may

be suffered or the company may nct
be able to carry out cntical network
operations Operational performance
could be matenally adversely affected
by a falure to mantan the health of
the system or network which could
cause South West Water to fal agreed
standards of service or specified
quality standards

Specific measures taken by South West

Water iInclude e

* anumber of schemes in place to
mantain water resources (such as
pumped storage for certain reservoirs)
and the promation of conservation
measures and customer water
efficency measures

= a3 Water Resources Plan prepared
every five years and which 1s reviewed
annually for a range of chmate change
and demand scenanos The current
Water Resources Plan indicates that no
new reservorrs are requred before the
planning honzon of 2035 However, due
to the impacts of cimate change, this
posiion 1s reviewed frequently
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continued

Risk

Commentary

Mitigabon

* astabished procedures and controls
In place, as well as contingency plans
and incident management procedures
The company also mantans Nsurance
policies m relation to these ngks,
although there can be no assurance
that all or any of the costs associated
with these nsks would be covered
or that coverage will continue to be
avaiable in the future

* monitonng of significant assets by
automated and remote operation
and routine contrals and operating
procedures that are constantly kept
under review Asset management
techriques are employed to pre-empt
the fallure of assets to maintain stabls
serviceabilty and avoid regulatory
penalties

Change

From 2011/12 a financial reward/
penalty coud be applied to South
West Water at the next pnce review
under Ofwat's Service Incentive
Mechanism (SIM) This depends on
South West Water's customer service
performance relative to the iIndustry
average over the remaining K5
regulatory penod

While the company has seen
improvements in customer service
particularty through reduced wntten
complaints, there 1s uncertainty over
South West Water’s relative position in
the industry However there is a strategy
for 2012/13 in place to mprove customer
sarvice further

Vindor operates in a competitive
marketplace where pnce and service
are key precursors to success

Sound policies and accredited procedures
are In place with intemal and extemal
Inspections, to maintain operations and
achieve performance standards set

Caprtal investment

The failure or ncreased

costs of capital projects or
acquisthions or joint ventures
not achieving predicted
revenues or performance could
have a matenal adverse effect
on both our financial position
and reputation.

South West Water may not carry
out its capital programme withun the
price imits and with the efficiencies
determined by Ofwat

The company does have a track record
of delivenng its capital programme in
accordance with regulatery requirements
and progress 1s regularly monttored and
reviewed

7

Within Vindor there are nsks of project
delays, cost over-runs or contract
failure which could be as a result of
falure or msolvency on the part of
contractors or ther subcontractors,
or due to a new technology failing
performance requirements There

1s also a nsk of overpaying for an
acquistion With the increase n
Vindor's project pipeling, Vindor
recogrises that this nsk s ncreasing
and 18 addresaing it

The company has expenenced and
dedicated project/contract teams, detaled
due diligence on all projects, supplies,
technologies and acquisthons 1s camed
out by expenenced and qualified staff,
and wherever possible back-to-back
agreements with and guarantees from
supplhers are entered into There 1s also
regular monthly reporting on performance
on maor contracts and post project
appraisals are camed out which all

assist In being able to improve future
periomance
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Risk
Competitive pressures

A reduced customer base,
increased competihion affectng
pnces or reduced demand for
services could have a material
adverse impact on our financial
position.

Commentary

Vindoer I1s expenencing increased
competitrve pressures In a number
of areas of s business including

in parhcular on recyclate volume
and pnces, landfll gate fees and
bidding for Public Private Partnership
contracts {PPPs} Recycling has
been recognised as an attractive
busness by an mcreasing number
of competitors

Competitive pressures N respect of
South West Water are referred to In
the first nsk set out at the beginning
of this section

Mrigation Change
Vindor prowdes recycling and waste
management services which are locally T
delivered services from locally managed

facihes and a significant proportion

of its revenue 1s contracted over the
mediumn or long-term With regard to
major competrive projects being pursued
there are bamers to entry due to planning
permissions being difficult to obtan and
signficant Investment requirements

Business systems

Information technology and
business continuity systems
and processes may fall which
may cause matenal disruption
to the Group’s businesses and
could have a matenal adverse
impact on both our financial
position and reputation.

There always remains a nsk of The company has well developed
interruption, fature or third party IT systems and continuity systems ¢
intervention that could have amatenal  inplace The further mpact of a
adverse mpact on the operations of systemn farlure or disruption to the
South West Water's business company has been reduced with the
refurbishment of the data centre at iis
head office and the establishment of a
geographically separate altemative data
centre, which is hosted by a third party
communicatons provider
Some of Vindor's IT systems Vindor has increased rts IT management
require replacerment, development and technical resources accordingly It e

or upgrading to meet the growing
requrements of the business and
N some areas new technology
being introduced may not operate
or perform according to stated
specification requirements

also has a comprehensive development
programme and plans in place to address
the deficiencies identified and seek to
ensure busness continuity I the event

of falureg

Forward-looking statements

This Business review contams forward-locking statements regarding the financial pestion, results of operations, cash flows, dvdends,
financing plans, business strategies, operating efficiencies, capital and other expenditures, competitve posiions, growth opportunities,
plans and objectives of management, and other matters These forward-looking statements, including, without mitation, those relating

to the future business prospects, revenues, working caprtal, kquidity, capital needs, interest costs and income In relation to Pennon Group
and its subsidianes, wherever they oceur in this Business review, are necessanly based on assumptions reflecting the views of Pennon
Group and its subsidiary companies, as appropnate They involve a number of nsks and uncertanties that could cause actual results

to differ matenally from those suggested by the forward-looking statements  Such forward-ooking statements should, therefore, be
considered in the Iight of relevant factors, including those set out in this ‘Group nsk review’ section
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Directors’ report — Business review

Sustainability report

Pennon is one of the largest environmental and resource
management groups in the UK. Sustainability is at the
heart of our business. The provision of high quality water
and waste management services is fundamental to the
well-being and sustainability of our society. Ensuring the
availability of plentiful clean water which is used wisely and
not wasted, together with effective waste water treatment,
is South West Water’s business. Transforming waste into a
resource by recycling and generating renewable energy is

Viridor’s business.

Substantial rvestment in our water and sewerage actvities

and infrastructure enables us to deliver both high levels of
performance and senice, as well as long-term secunty of supply
In our recycling and waste management business we continue

to invest in facilities and services to transform waste into quality
recycled matenals and renewable energy, helping customers from
all sectors to meet ther own recycling and waste management
objectives, while addressing the longer term strategic imperatives
of resource efficiency, protecting the emvironment and presenang
natural resources

We beleve that a well-managed and responsible Group, with
sustainabilty both at the core of its operations and fundamental

to its business philosophy, will deliver strong performance and
lasting value for our stakeholders We contnbute to the well-being
of the communities that we serve, and of the envronment in which
we operate Our commitment o sustainability 1s embedded in

our operational and business practices, our relatonships with our
stakeholders, and n our long-term strategy

Pennon was delighted that this commitment was recognised
when the Group won the ‘Achieverment in Sustainabilty’ award
at the annual PLC Awards in February 2012 This award
recognises accomplishments in key areas of economic,
environmental and social sustainabilty Judges highlighted our
performance in renewable energy power generation at our waste
water treatment works and landfill gas control, as well as our
funding for community and ervironmental projects

Our commitment to economic, social and environmental
sustainability 1Is embedded in our strategic cbjectives to
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« manage Pennon Group as a sustanable and successful
business for the benefit of shareholders and other stakeholders

aim to ensure that all our business activibies have a positive
econcmig, social and environmental impact on the communities
n which we operate

engage with all our stakeholders and foster good relationships
wrth them

+ sinve for the highest standards of health and safety in the
workplace s0 as to minirmise acaidents, incidents and lost tme

= develop and motivate our employees, treat them farty and
ensure that they are fully engaged in all aspects of the Pennon
Group's objectives

aspire to leadership in rmimimising ermissions that contnbute
to cimate change, and develop climate change adaptation
strategies

aspire to leadershp 1n all aspects of waste prevention and
rasource efficiency

Key environmental issues

Chmate change and resource efficiency

Chmate change and excessive resource use are two fundamental
challenges for society which are being addressed by developments
In the UK's water, waste and renewable energy polices Pennon

1s proactvely approaching these key ssues with strategies that
underpin the sustanable performance of the business

Group programmes mncrease the resiience of both South West
Water and Vindor by protecting our assets, reducing enmissions,
harmessing renewable energy and maxamising matenals recovery

Demand for safe dnnking water and water secunty, and for
recycling, renewable energy and resourca efficlency will continue
to grow as chmate change impacts start to make themselves felt

Renewable energy and carbon reduchon

Both subsidianes have detaled energy efficiency and carbon
reducton plans in place Vindor's five-year plan ams to increase
energy efficiency by more than 20% by 2018, equivalent to an
overall reduction of 4% in total emissions per annum South
Wast Water's energy and carbon management strategies to
2030 include plans for a structured energy efficiency pregramme
and ambrhons to further develop and exploit opportunities




Green energy On-site Carbon
generated electnecity use in Disclosure
Gigawatt hours Pennon Group Project score
(GWh) Gigawatt hours %

(GWh)

for renewable energy schemes The company’s 2015 carbon
reduction target Is to cut operational emissions from energy use
by 18% compared with 2009/10 levels, with further reductions
targeted in the longer term in ine with national strategy

Pennon partcipates in the UK Govermment's Carbon Reduction
Commtment and has an ambrtious strategy and programmes

In place to continuously Improve energy efficiency across the
business In the first year of audited performance, we were ranked
230th out of 2,013 participating companies

Pennon also voluntanly partcipates in the intemationally
recognised Carbon Drsclosure Project, coming 53rd out of the
236 FTSE 350 companies that responded, with an mproving
percentage score

Pennon s a net producer of renewable energy, largely due to
Vindor's power generation from its landfll gas and energy from
waste (EfW} operations In 2011 around 30% of renewable energy
generated n the UK was denved from landfill gas and municipal
sold waste combustion Vindor’s landfill gas power generation

Is now approaching peak capacity and will be replaced by
Increasing contnbutions from EAW and anaerobic digestion (AD)
facimes South West Water 1S also increasing its renewable power
generahon capactty using hydro-electnc, combined heat and
power (CHP) from biogas, and solar and wind installatrons This
overall generation capacity will continue to offset the Group's
energy use

Vindor mvested £93 millon mn renewable energy and recycing
plants dunng 2011/12 It now has a generating capacity of
136MW [t plans to have 300MW of installed capacity by 2016
The Runcom EfW plant currently under construction will be the
largest waste-generated CHP plant in the UK, with hugh energy
efficiency levels

As Vindor continues to expand its recycling capacity, so a growing
proportion of its operations rely on energy-ntensive processing
equipment - though recycling generally provides net carbon and
enargy benefits

South West Water's core operations also require considerable
amounts of energy to treat both dnnking and waste water to
high standards and to pump it around the region The cost of
South West Water's energy use 1s around £20 million a year, and
around 80% of the company’s carbon emissions are associated
with energy use, underining the mportance of enargy efficiency
in the business  The company’s ongoing pump efficiency and
‘PowerDown’ programmes are helping to reduce energy use

Dunng the year Vindor achueved ds target of three accredtations to
the Carbon Saver Gold Standard, most notably one for the whole
of its Scottish aperating region This reflected the achievement of
a 10% absolute reduction in enengy-related carbon emissions in
Scotland over the last three calendar years

South West Water continues its accreditation to the Certified
Emissions Measurement and Reduction Scheme (CEMARS}

Resource secunty

In spite of two years of significantly reduced ranfall, resuting in
the Emvironment Agency declaration of an emvironmental drought
m Apnl 2012, South West Water has ensured secunty of supply
by nvesting in its abilty to transfer water and corverting two
former china clay pits Into reservoirs This, together with our
industry-leading leakage control, has led to the 15th year without
water restnctons

South West Water aises extensively with Defra, other regulators
and landowners to promote catchment management as a tool to
improve raw water qualty The company's flagship environmental
project ‘Upstream Thinking' ncludes micorand restoration
projects on Exmoor and Dartmoor, and catchment sensttive
farming programmes to improve land management, delvered

N partnership wath the Westcountry Rivers Trust and the Deven
and Comwall Wildlife Trusts Defra endorsed the company’s
approach in its Water VWhite Paper published in December 2011,
and ‘Upstream Thinking’ won the ‘Partnership Iniative of the
Year' category at the Water Industry Achievement Awards in
March 2012

Vindor's range of services has changed to ensure they are aligned
to the waste hierarchy that 1s enshnned in European and UK waste
policy legislation This reflects the overall environmental benefits

in the pnonty options for managing waste it gives top pnonty

to waste prevention, followed by re-use and recycling Disposal

by landfill is the least favoured option Vindor now transforms
waste into valuable, high qualty commodries wheraver possible,
using a range of treatment technologies, ncluding advanced
matenals recycling faciities, mechanical-brological treatment,
composting and household waste recycling sites, often combiring

Peat bog restoration under way on Exmoor as part of South West
Water's award-winning ‘Uipstream Thinking' inatrve
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continued

Top Bilingshurst household waste recycling centre, West Sussex

Bottom Customer service at a Vindor household waste
recychng centre
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the provision of these faciiies in Integrated waste management
contracts It subsequently looks to recover energy from non-
recyclable and residual wastes using energy from waste and
anaerobic digestion technologies to offset fossil-fuel based
energy generation

Dunng the year Vindor continued to increase its recycling capacity
through both acquisiion and arganic growth, recychng 2 3 milion
tonnes of matenal 2 1 millon tonnes in 2010/11), with 1 8 million
being traded recyclates (1 7 milllon tonnes in 2010/11)

Key social Issues

Commrment to communities

Pennon Group recogrises that it 1s part of, and has a
responsibility towards, the communities in which it operates and
it strengthened its community relations and investment policy
dunng the year It ams to ensure that business actmvties have
overall positve community benefits The Group recognises the
importance of developing open and transparent engagement
with communities and other organisations and its employees
take part In a range of volunteer projects Sponsorships and
partnerships with community organisations also help deliver on
our commitment in this important area, such as the ‘Keep Bntan
Tidy' ‘BeachCare’ iniaive

Bathing water quality 1s wvitally important to local communities and
visitors across the region Singe prvatisation in 1989, South West
Water has invested £2 bilion in 140 new waste water treatment
works via our ‘Clean Sweep' programme As a result 98 6% of
our 144 EU-designated bathing waters now meet or exceed the
EU's ‘Good’ standard compared with 96 5% in 2010 and 95 1%
are deemed 'Excellent’ compared with 90 3% in 2010

in 2011 South West Water launched its ‘BeachLive’ website
This award-winning initative was developed in partnership with
Surfers Against Sewage and others, and enables beach users
to check real-time bathing water nformation at 21 Blue Fag or
popular beaches In Devon and Comwall every day The number
of beaches covered 1s being extended in 2012413

The mvestment required to deliver the bathing water
iImprovements has resulted in higher bills than in other regions
The company understands that some customers have problems
paying, and has developed an industry-leading ‘Affordability
Toolkt' compnsing a range of practcal measures, including a
free debt helpline, payment plans, and water meter and water
conservation advice lts ‘WaterCare+' scheme has helped

its 10,000th customer since it was established in 2007 The
company has also established a ‘FreshStart’ fund of up to

£1 milkon, administered by Plymouth Citizens Advce Bureaux
{CAB), to help those in financial cnsis due to circumstances such
as bereavement South West Water partners with chanties and
agencies such as local Citizens Advice Bureaux and Age UK

to find and help thosa in the most need Our work in this area
was recogrised n the GAB publication, ‘How to do the Right
Thing" The company is supporting the business community by
sponsonng local ‘Battle the Bills' sesstons which help up to 1,000
small and medium-sized businesses by offenng advice on water
and energy use




Challenging economic conditions lead Vindor's local authonty

and business customers 1o scrutinise costs and demand value
for money in all aspects of service Economic drivers such as

the Landfill Tax, public and private sector procurement practices,
as well as Vindor's customer service partnerships and provision of
waste audits, ensure that the compary remains keenly compstitve
for the benefit of #s customers

In 201112 Vindor {wa an independent distnbutive Environmental
Body, Vindor Credits) provided £10 3 mulion of funding for
commurity, amenty and envronmental projects In areas close
fo 1ts landfill faciites through the Landfil Communities Fund
The company also provides direct sponsarship and community
support in its operatonal areas

Vindor has active community iaison groups at all of its major
operational faciiies, ensunng effective dialogue with local
community representatives It also consults extensively with local
communes and stakeholders when looking to develop new
facilities, in order to keep peaople informed and to enable ther
full involvernent in the planning process Dunng the year Vindor
opened another two education centres N Greater Manchester,
helping to promote understanding and best practice in waste
prevention, recychng, recovery and resource management The
company now operates or supports 10 such centres across the
UK and welcomed mors than 13,000 visitors dunng the year

Vindor and South West Water are responsible for the management
and stewardship of substantial landholdings, particularty at
reservorrs and landfill stes, ncluding 26 closed landfill stes and 17
Sites of Specia Scientrfic Interest These areas can have significant
benefits and the companies work in partnership with the Wildlife
Trusts, local communities and employees to enhance biodiversity

Five Vindor sites have now attained the Wildlife Trust's Biodiversity
Benchmark standard, with one awaiting accreditaton Three sites
of low biodtversity have been identified for fve-year mproverment
plans and a biodiversity strategy covenng all sites will be
developed dunng 2012/13 South West Water's resenvorr sites
are managed by the Scuth West Lakss Trust, the region’s largest
combined environmental and recreational chanty, which delivers
awide range of facities, such as wisitor centres and watersports
facities These amentties aftract around two million visrts every
year Four flagship sites have receved the gold standard in the
Green Tounsm Business Scheme's prestigious awards

Engaging wrth other stakeholders

Pennon and its subsidianes aim to be open and collaborative,
fostenng posttive relationships with stakeholders and delvenng
long-term benefits and added-value South West Water's Chuef
Executive has just completed four years as Chair of Water UK

He 1s now Char of the Comwall and Isles of Scilly Local Enterpnse
Partnership, and the Vice President of the institute of Water
Vindor's Chief Executive 1s curently Chair of the Government's
Lrang with Ermronmental Change Business Adwsory Board and
of the Environmental Sustainability Knowledge Transfer Network

Both companies inform Government policy in respect of pertinent
industry issues For Vindor in 2011/12 this included baison and
responses to consultabons on the Waste Policy Review for
England and Wales, Scotland’s Zero Waste Plan and regulation,
and the London Waste Strategies Vindor's ‘OpenSpace’
innovatve data-shanng portal has been developed with the
Environment Agency in England, meeting therr 'better regulation’
agenda This ground-breaking project to supply environmental
monrtonng data kive to the regulator has substantial cost and
resource saving potential going forward

The 2009 Walker Review highlighted the huge emaronmental
costs water customers in the South West of England, making up
just 3% of the UK populaton, have been paying for the clean-up
and protection of 30% of the nation's bathing waters since 1989

St Helens waste electricals recycling facility

For four years, South West Water has worked closely alongside
MPs of all parties and consumer groups to press the South West's
case at the highest levels In November 2011 the Chancellor of the
Excheguer confirmed that the Government will be reducing the
annual bills of household customers in the company's service area
by £50 each, untll at least 2020

Dunng the year Scuth West Water embarked on a comprehensive
research and engagement programme with customers,
community and environmental representatives as part of s
preparation for the 2015-2020 business plan and pnce setting
The Waterfuture Customer Panel has been established to assist
with this process

Commitment to employees

Employees are at the heart of the work we undertake at Pennon
Group Aiming for best practice in recrutment, training and
development, talent management, health and well-being, retention
and succession planning 1s therefore of crucial mportance for the
health and sustainability of the business Both companies am

1o be good employers and recognise that employees make the
difference which helps us to achieve our corporate goals

Both subsidianes have a range of family frendly policies, equal
opportundy policies and policies to ensure a healthy work-Ife
balance The companies undertake regular employes surveys

to obtain feedback on employee satisfaction and to identify key
issues for mprovement Vindor conducted a survey in 2011/12
focusing in parbcular on s health and safety cutture This showed
good levels of employee satisfaction and identified important areas
for mprovemnent including internal communicatons, procedures
and traning Employee representation is faciitated through frade
urion membershep and, for Socuth West Water, by an elected
Staff Councit

A safe and healthy workforce will always be a pnonty for the
Pennon Group Group companies’ health and safety policies and
procedures are delivered through programmes which integrate
with other areas of the businass including operatons, compliance,
human resources and quality For example South West Water
troduced rts Think, Act, Prevent (TAP} campaign in 2011, which
delivered behavioural safety training to ts employess ‘RIDDOR'
ncident rates in both companies reduced dunng the year,
although netther company i1s complacent and zero acadents

15 our goal

Penncn encourages talented people to join the Group, and to stay,
by matching the nght people to the nght roles and by ensunng
professional development opportunities throughout therr careers
within the Group We have a range of traning programmes aimed
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at different levels across the orgarisation For example Scuth
West Water's ‘Managing for Success’ programme and Vindor’s
‘Fundamentals of Management’ and subsequent ‘Management to
Leadership’ programmes, try to equip our managers of the future
with the necessary skills

South West Water and Vindor appointed 22 apprentices and
graduate tranees dunng 2011, and South West Water will be
creating 20 more apprenticeships in 2012, at a tme when youth
unemployrment 1s gromng

Key economic i1ssues

Commitment to regional economies

Pennon's investrment for long-term sustainable growth s delivenng
value for shareholders and stakeholders The Group companies
provide significant suppoert for regional economies by working with
hundreds of local suppliers to deliver essential infrastructure and to
delver and improve serices for customers

As one of the largest employers in the region, South West Water
employs 1,400 people, both directly and through its contact
centre subsidiary, Source Contact Management Limited South
West Water supports regional employment through a vanety of
extermal contracts with a particular focus on small businesses,
as well as large service providers Through its £2 bilion Clean
Sweep nvestment, undertaken since privatisation, the company
has added significant value to the region’s tounism industry by
enhancing the natural emaronment

South West Water's PUROS programme enables remote
management of assets and centralised plannng PUROS has
helped the company to deliver operational efficiencies and
outperform Ofwat's Final Detenmination, the pnce mits and
expendrture plans determined by Ofwat for South West Water
for a five-year penod

Vindor's operations and continued growth also prowide significant
regional economic and community benefits throughout the UK
The company directly employs over 3,000 people and provides
significant suppher opportuniies Vindor's investrent programme
— to gradually replace landfill ssrvices with increased recycling and
renewable energy generation — creates greater value in terms of
jobs and skdlls For example, the Runcorn EfW facility will directly
employ and provide training for up to 70 highly skilled people in the
North West {compared wth around 15 people required to landfill
the equivalent waste volume) The construction of the project has
employed a daly average of 325 people on site, nsing to 700 at its
peak, and many more through the supply chain

Achievements

In addtion to the 2012 PLC Sustainability Award, and to the
achievernents listed under each subsidiary company’s business
review, Pennon is isted in the FTSE4AGood index In March 2012
the Group scored 3 8 out of 5 in the FTSE4Good Environmental,
Social and Governance ratings assessment ft was also the top
ranked utlity in four categones of the 2011 ‘Bntain's Most Admired
Company' awards

In January 2012 Pennon was listed as one of the 100 most
sustanable companes in the world by Corporate Knights the
company for clean caprtalism
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Governance

The Pennon Sustainabity Committes {previcusly Corporate
Responsibiity Committes) 1s chared by a Non-exscutive Director
and compnses the Chief Executves of South West Water and
Vindor plus two further Non-executive Directors It is served
and attended by sentor management from both subsidianes
The Commitiee oversees the Pennon Group's requirement to
conduct its business in a responsible manner Consequently
the Committee reviews the strategies, policies, management,
inhatives, objectves, targets and performance of the Pennon
Group of companies in respect of envronmental, social and
governance aspects Dunng 2011/12 the Committee developed
a new community relations and investment policy, scrutinsed
both companes’ approach to carbon management, examned
sustamnability 1n supply chains, and mantaned s focus on
improving health and safety

Both subsidianes develop annual sustanability targets as part of
business planning and budgeting, putting sustanability at the core
of the business Performance aganst these targets i1s reviewed
quarterly at executive management meetings, and by the Pennon
Group Sustainabiity Committee

Delvery of sustainability targets forms part of the remuneration
package of Pennon's senior executives and emplayees throughout
the Group

Venfication

Pennon's sustanability performance for 2011/12 has been
audited by Acona Parthers LLP, an independent management
consultancy that specialises in the areas of sustanability and
corporate responsibility

South West Water and Vindor Sustainability reports
The full 2012 Sustainability Reports for South West Water
and Vindor will be published in July and August respectively
and will be avallable to view at pennon-group co uk and also
on the subsidianes’ websites




Tngon landhll restoration, Dorset

Sustainability KPls

Reed bed at West Penwith

South West Water
Renewable Greenhouse gas Recycling Community RIDDOR Capttal
energy emissions data volumes support, incidence rate mvestment
generation tCO,e tonnes of sponsorship per 100,000 fm
GWh dry solids and donations employees
£ calendar year
|
|
Viridor
Renewable Greenhouse gas Recycling Community RIDDOR Capital
energy emissions data volumes support, incidence rate investment
generation 1COe million tonnes sponsorship per 100,000 £m
GWh and donathons employees
£m calendar year
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Directors' report Qther statutory information

Principal activities

and business review

The pnncipal activities of the Company and its subsilianes

('the Group'} are the proviston of water and sewerage services,
recycling, waste management and renewable energy Information
regarding the Group, including events and its progress dunng the
year, events since the year-end and likely future developments 1s
contained in the Business review set out on pages 2 to 39 of this
Directors’ report

In addtion the Business review contains a farr and balanced review
of the business of the Group, including its position and prospects,
Key Performance Indicators and a descnption of the pnncipal

nsks and uncertainties facing the Group in accordance with the
requirements of the UK Corporate Governance Code and Section
417 of the Companies Act 2006 In addrtion in accordance with
the ABI Corporate Social Responsibility Guidelnes, statements are
included on any significant ervironmental, social and governance
(ESG) nsks and the actions taken in mgating these nsks within
the Business review on pages 28 and 29 Further information on
ESG aspects of the Group's business are included in the Group
Sustanability report on pages 34 to 39 The pnncipal subsidianes
of the Company are isted in note 38 to the financial statements on
page 108

Corporate governance and Directors’ responsibilities
statements

The Drrectors’ responsibilities statements, a report on the review
of, and a statement on, the Group's system of iIntermal controls
and the disclosures required by Part 6 of Schedule 7 of the Large
and Medium-sized Companies and Groups (Accounts & Reports)
Regulations 2008 and FSA Disclosure and Transparency Rule

7 2 are set out In the Company's Corporate govenance and
internal control report on pages 42, 43 and 46 to 51 of this Annual
Report which are hereby included within this Directors’ report

by reference

Financ:al results and dividend

Group profit on ordnary actvities after taxation was £172 4 millon
The Directors recommend a final dividend of 18 3p per Ordinary
share to be paid on § October 2012 to sharehclders on the
register on 10 August 2012, making a total dwdend for the year
of 26 25p, the cost of which will be £95 9 milion, leaving a credrt
to reserves of £76 5 million The Business review on pages 24 to
27 analyses the Group's financial results in more detall and sets
out other financial information, inchuding the Directors' opiricn on
asset values on page 25

Directors

I accordance with the provisions of the UK Corporate
Govemance Code (the Code) all Directors are offenng themselves
up for re-election at this year's Annual General Meeting The
Board continues to believe that sach Director makes an

effective and valuable contnbution to the Board, demonstrating
cantinued commitment to his or her role The Non-executve
Directors, Gerard Connell and Martin Angle, are considered to be
independent in accordance with the provisions of the Code Dinah
Nichols, subject to her re-election at this year's Annual General
Meeting, will have served as a Non-executive Director for more
than nine years The Board has determined that Dinah remains
Independent as she demonstrates independence of character and
judgement in her conduct of matters with the Board The Non-
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executve Directors do not have service contracts The Chairrman,
Ken Harvey, also does not have a service contract but he does
have a contract for services which is terrminable upon 12 months’
notice The Executive Directors, David Dupont and Chns Loughiin,
have service contracts which are due to expire when they reach
age 60 (the unexpired term for David Dupont and Chns Loughlin
1s until 10 June 2014 and 20 August 2012 respectively) In respect
of Coln Drummond, who has reached age 60, his contract now
continues subyect to 12 months’ nohce The other Executive
Directors’ contracts are also expected to continue after they reach
age 60 Formal resolutions for the above Directors' re-glection

will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting The Directors'
biographies are set out on pages 44 and 45

No Drrector has, or has had, a matenal interest, directly or
indirectly, at any time dunng the year under review in any contract
significant to the Company’s business A list of all the Directors
dunng the year 1s set out In the emoluments table on page

57 Further details relating to the Directors and their service
agreements or contracts for services are set out on pages 55
and 57 and details of the Directors’ interests in shares of the
Company are given on pages 58 to 80

Directors’ insurance and indemnities

The Directors have the benefit of the Indemnity prowsions
contained in the Company's Articles and the Gompany has
mamntained throughout the year Directors’ and Officers’ lliability
nsurance far the benefit of the Comparny, the Directors and its
Officers The Company has entered into qualifing thurd party
ndemnity arangements for the benefit of all its Directors in a form
and scope which comply with the requirements of the Companies
Act 2006 and which were In force throughout the year and remain
n force

Statement as to disclosure of information to auditors

a) So far as each of the Directors in office at the date of the signing
of the report 1s aware, there 1s no relevant audrt information of
which the Company’s auditors are unaware, and

b) Each of the Directors has taken all the steps each Director
ought to have taken indmdually as a director in order to make
themsehves aware of any relevant audit information and to
establish that the Company's audrtors are aware of that
wiormation

Financial instruments

Detals of the financial nsk management objectives and policies of
the Group and the exposure of the Group to price, credit, iquidity
and cash flow nsks are set out Inthe Business review on pages 26
and 27

Employment policies and employee involvement

The Group has a cutture of continuous improvernent through
nvestment i people at all levels within the Group The Group s
commutted to pursuing equalty and dversity i all its employment
actwvities including recrutment, training, career development and
promotion and ensunng there 1s ne bias or discrimeinaton inthe
treatment of pecple In particular, applicatons for emplayment
are welcomed from persens with disabies and special
arrangements and adjustments as necessary are made to ensure
that applicants are treated fairty when attending for nterview or for




2012 Annual General Meeting business

In addition to routine business, resolutions will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting to
* renew the existing authonties to 1ssue a imited number of shares and to purchase up to 10% of the 1ssued share capital

of the Company

» seek authonty to make pohtical donations under the Political Parties, Elections and Referendums Act 2000, as
amended. (It 1s not the Group's policy to make political donations This 1s a precautionary measure which 1s followed
by many companies to ensure that there 1s no inadvertent breach of the law)

* re-glect Mr K G Harvey, Mr M D Angle, Mr G D Connell, Mr C I J H Drummond, Mr D J Dupont, Mr C Loughtin and

Ms D A Nichols as Directors of the Company

* seek authonty to continue to call general mestings other than an annual general meeting on not less than 14 clear days'
notice (Pursuant to the EU Shareholder Rights Directive shareholder authonty s required to continue to call meetings
on at least 14 clear days' notice Such authonty would only be exercised by the Directors in exceptional circumstances
and if they considered that it was in the best interests of shareholders and the Company as a whole to do so)

pre-employment apiitude tests Wherever possible the opportunity
15 taken 1o retrain people who become disabled dunng their
employment in order to maintain theirr employment within the
Group The Group also has a Boardroom Diversity Policy and
encourages gender diversity in particular Further details are set
out in the report of the Nomination Committee on page 49

Employees are consutted regularty about changes which

may affect themn erther through therr trade union appointed
representatives or by means of the elected Staff Council which
operates in South West Water for staff employees

These forums, together with regular meetings with particular
groups of employees, are used to ensure that employses are
kept up to date with the operating and financial performance
of therr employer

The Group also uses a monthly imformation cascade process
to prowde employees with important and up o date information
about key events and to recenve feedback from employess

Further information about employment matters relating to
the Group are set out on pages 17, 23, 37 and 38 of the
Business review

The Group encourages share ownership amongst its employees
by operating an HM Revenue & Customs approved Sharesave
Scheme and Share Incentve Plan At 31 March 2012 around one-
third of the Group's employees participated in these plans
Research and development

Research and development actvitres within the Group invalving
water and waste treatment processes amounted to £0 2 milion
dunng the year (2010/11 £0 2 million)

Pennon Group donations

Dunng the year donations amounting to £73,992 (2010411
£78,678) were made Further detalls are ncluded on page 37 of
the Group Sustainability report No political donations were made
(21011 il

Tax status
The Company I1s not a close company within the meaning of the
Income and Corperation Taxes Act 1988

Payments to suppliers

it 15 the Group's payment policy for the year ending 31 March
2013 to follow the Code of The Better Payrment Practice Group
on suppher payments Information about the Code can be
obtaned from the webstte payontime ¢o uk The Compary will
agres payment terms with indmadual suppliers in advance and
abnde by such terms The ratio, expressed in days, between the
amount nvoiced to the Company by its supphers dunng 2011/12

and the amount owed 1o its trade creditors at 31 March 2012, was
16 days

Purchase of own Ordinary shares

The Company has authonty from shareholders to purchase up

to 109 of its own Orcdinary shares (as renewed at the Annuat
General Meeting in 2011) which was valid as at 31 March 2012 and
remans currently valid Of the 4,309,567 shares held in Treasury at
31 March 2011, 676,862 were subsequently re-issued under the
Company’s employee share schemes for proceeds of £1 9 mullion

Major shareholdings

Detalls of major shareholdings notified to the Company in
accordance with the FSA Disclosure and Transparency Rules 5
are set out on page 113 “Shareholder Information’

Independent auditors

PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP were apponted auditors untl

the conclusion of the twenty-third Annual General Meeting A
resolution for therr re-appointment upon the recommendation of
the Audit Committee of the Board will be proposed at the Annual
General Megting

Appomted business

South West Water Limited 1s required to publish additional
financial Information relating to the ‘apponted business’ as water
and sewerage undertaker In accordance with the Instrument of
Appointment from the Secretary of State for the Environment

A copy of this nformation 1s available on the website
southwestwater co uk or upon application to the Group Company
Secretary at Peninsula House, Rydon Lane, Exeter EX2 THR

Annual General Meeting

The twenty-third Annual General Meeting of the Company will

be held at the Sandy Park Conference Centre, Sandy Park Way,
Exster, Devon EX2 7NN on 26 July 2012 at 11 00am Details

of the resolutions are summansed above and set out n the
separate Notice of Annual General Meeting which 1s circulated

1o sharsholders with this Annual Report or provided by electronic
comrmunication via the Company’s website pennon-group co uk

Information required by Sechon 311A of the Companies Act 2006
i1s also on the Company’s website
By Crder of the Board

Ken Woodier %\K\ o

Group General Counse ompany Secretary
18 June 2012
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Govemance

Chairman’s introduction
to governance

The Board is committed to the highest standards
of corporate governance in the best interests of its
shareholders and other stakeholders.

Dear shareholder
f am pleased to introduce the Caonporate Govemance Report for
2012 on behalf of the Board

The Annual Report remains the pnncipal means of reporting to
our shareholders on the Board's govemnance policies This

Report sets out how the main and supporting pnnciples of good
corporate govemance set out n the UK Corporate Govemance
Code (June 2010) have been applied in practice The Code s
publicly avarlable on the Financiad Reporting Council {FRG} website
frepublications com

Role of the Board and its effectiveness

My pnmary role as Chaimnan 1s to prowde leadership to the Board
and to provide the nght environmant to enable the Directors

and the Board as a whale to perform effectively to promote the
success of the Company for the benefit of its shareholders

In doing so we take account of the interests of our customers,
employees, suppliers, communities n which we operate and
other interested stakeholders

| firmly believe that we have good governance in place and that we
operate effectively as a Board However there I1s always room for
improvement and each year we carry out a detalled performance
evaluation of the Board and each of the Commitiees as well as
of the Directors and the Group General Counsel & Company
Secretary Further details of the review, which was facilitated by
an extemal govermnance consultancy for the first time, are set out
later in this report | remain mindful of the need to ensure that

the Non-executive Directors continue to have appropnate up to
date knowledge and understanding of both South West Water
and Vindor as they develop and pursue new intiatives Last year
the Board had a number of wigits 1o key sites within both South
Woest Water and Vindor and met and discussed the then current
1Issues with managers and employees across the Group This
year the Board has concentrated on recemng presentations from
senior management on matenal developments In the businesses
including our energy from waste plant projects, landfill gas
management, energy producton from landfill, and regulatory and
legislative changes proposed by Ofwat and Government

Ken Harvey
Chairman,
Pennon Group Plc
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Remuneration

The Board and the Remuneration Comrmuttee reman mindful of
shareholder and the Govemment's concems regarding some
companies’ remuneration practices

We have always pursued a remuneration policy of seting pay

at a level which is just sufficient to attract and retain high catibre
management and providing incentives which are fully aligned
with creating shareholder value We have reviewed our pay and
benefits practice agan this year and are satisfied no changes are
necessary to mamntan this policy

Shareholder engagement

The Directors and | recognise the mportance and value of
regular communications with our shareholders This ensures that
we understand thair needs and wishes and hopefully that we
provide them with confidence that we have the nght govemance
structures, processes and systems in place to assist us in
achieving our stated objectives

A regular dialogue with the Company’s iInstitutional shareholders
1S maintained through a comprehensive INvestor relations
programme Duning the year some 60 mestings with institutional
shareholders {including with prospective shareholders) were
held and attended by the Group Cirector of Finance and the
Company’s Investor Relations Manager The Chief Executve

of South West Water, the Chief Executive of Vindor and | also
participated when appropnate The Group Director of Finance
reports to the Board regularly on major shareholders' views about
the Group and every six months the Company’s Brokers give a
presentation to the Board on equity market developments and
shareholder perceptions

| alsc actvely encourage the participation of shareholders at our
Annual General Meeting and as usual at our 2012 Annual General
Meeting on 26 July all our Directors aim to be present together
with a number of directors and executives of South West Water
and Vindor to meet with shareholders to discuss the business of
the Group

Comphance with UK Corporate Governance Code

and other requirements

| am pleased to report that throughout the year the Company
complied with the provisions and apphed the mamn prnciples set
out in the UK Corporate Governance Code with no exceptions

to report

My introduction to this Gorporate Govermance Report and the
following sections are made in comphiance with the UK Corporate
Governance Code, FSA Listing Rule 9 8 6 and FSA Disclosure and
Transparency Rules 71 and 7 2 and cover the work of our Board
and its Committees, our intermnal control systems and procedures
including nsk managerment, our corporate governance statements
relating to share capital and conitrol, and our Gong concemn and
Directors’ responsibtiies statements

Ken Harvey
Chairman |
18 June 201

Guide to the contents
of the Governance report
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Governance
Board of Directors

Chairman

Kenneth George Harvey CBE, BSc
Chalrman

Committaes

Nomination {Chairman)

Appointed on 1 March 1997 Ken was formery charman and chief
executive of Norweb Ple He was charrman of Nattonal Gnd Holdings

In 1995 and was previously deputy chairman of London Electneity and
earhar 1ts engineenng drector He has also been charman of a number
of imited and private equity funded companies Currently he is the senior
ndependent non-executive director of Natona) Gnd Ple

Non-executive Directors

Martin David Angle BSc Hons, FCA, MCSI
Non-executive Director

Commitiees

Audtt, Sustainability, Nomination, Remuneration (Chainrmary

Appointed on 1 December 2008 Martin currently holds non-executive
drectorships with Savills plc, OAO Severstal, Shuaa Capital PSC and
The National Exhibition Centre where he 1s Charrman In addition he

sits on the Board of tha FIA Foundation where he is a vice-chairman
Formerly he held senior positions with Terra Firma Capital Partners and
vanous of tts portfolio companies, including the executive charmanship
of Waste Recycling Group Limited Before that he was the group finance
director of TI Group plc and held a number of semior investment banking
positions with 8G Warburg & Co Ltd, Morgan Stanley and Dresdner
Kleinwort Benson
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Executive Directors

Colin Irwin John Hamslton Drummond OBE, MA, MBA, LTCL, CCMI
Chief Executive, Viridor

Commuitiees

Sustanability, Executive

Appointed on 1 Apal 1992 Pnor to joining the Company Colin was

a dmvisional chuef executive of Coats Viyella, having previously been
corporate development director of Renold plc, a strategy consultant with
the Boston Consulting Group and an official of the Bank of England

He ts chairman of the Government's Living with Environmental Change
Business Advisory Board and of the Environmental Sustainability
Knowledge Transfer Network He 1s a senior visiting research fallow in
Earth Sciences at Oxford University and a Past Master of the Worshipful
Company of Water Conservators

Gerard Dominic Connell MA

Senior Independent Non-executive Director
Commitiess

Audit (Chairman), Sustainability, Normination, Remuneration

Appointed on 1 Cctober 2003 Gerard currently 1s also a non-executive
director and chairman of the audit committee of the Defence Science
and Technelogy Laboratory and the independent drector, finance and
investment, of the Nuclear Dacommissioning Fund Company Limited
He was previously group finance director of Wincanton Plc Before that
he was a director of Hill Samuel ard a rmanaging dirgctor of Bankers
Trust, having trainad onginally at Pnce Waterhouse In addition he has
held other corporate finance and busness development positions

in the City and in industry He s also a governor of King's College
School, Wimbledon




David Jeremy Dupont MA, MBA
Group Director of Finance
Committeas

Exscutive

Appainted on 2 March 2002 Dawd was formerly ragulatory and financa
director of South West Water Limited, having joined Pennon Giroup Plc
{then South West Water Pic) in 1992 as strategic planning manager
Previously he held business planning and develcpment roles with
Gateway Comporation He s a member of the GBI Environmental Affairs
Committee and the CBI South West Regional Council

Dinah Alison Nichols CB, BA Hons

Non-executive Director

Committeas

Audi, Sustanability {Charrman), Nomination, Remuneration

Appointed on 12 June 2003 Dinah was formerly Director General
Environment at the Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs
and previously held vanous senior appointments within Government,
including being head of the water directorate dunng the penod of water
privatisation She 15 also a Crown Estate Counsellor, a non-executive
dwector of the Land Trust and Keep Bntain Tidy and, until recenily,

a chirector of Aberdeen Smaller Companies High [nvestment Trust

Chrnistopher Loughhin BSc Hons, MICE, CEng, MBA
Chief Executive, South West Water

Committeas

Sustainability, Executive

Appaintad on 1 August 2006 Chns was previously chief operating
officer with Lloyd's Register and earlier in his caraer was an executive
director of Bntish Nuclear Fuels Plc and executive chakman of Magnox
Etectnc Plc He was also a senior diplomat in the Bntish Embassy, Tokyo,
working in both the consulting and contracting sectars Chris started

his carger as a chartered engineer and subsequently held & number

of senior posmons with Brtish Nuclear Fuels Between Apnl 2008

and March 2012 he was chairman of Water UK and cumrently 1s vice-
chairman of the Gornwall Local Enterpnse Partnershup and a member

of the audit committee of the chanty, WaterAid

Company Secretary

Kenneth David Woodier, Solicitor, CMA, DMS, CPE (Law)
Group General Counsel & Company Secretary
Committees

Executive

Appointed company secretary 1o the Board in March 1898 Ken was
formerty the head of group legal services at Pennon Group Ple {then
South West Water Pic) from February 1990 Previously he held senior
legal positions with H P Bulmer (Moldings) Plc, Investors in Industry Plc
(3i) and Severn Trent Water He is a director of the Devon & Somerset
Law Society and a member of its governance commitice
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Governance

Corporate governance

and internal control

The Board and its Committees

The Board

The Directors, independence and responsibiities

The Board of Directors at the end of the year compnsed the
Charman, three Executive Directors and three Non-executive
Dwectors The Non-executve Directors were considered by

the Board to be ndependent throughout the year None of the
relationships or circumstances set out in provision B11 of the
UK Corporate Govemance Code {the Cods) appled to them
Following this year's Annual General Meeting and subject to
re-election, Dinah Nichols will have sarved on the Board for more
than nine years since her first elechon However Dinah has been
determined by the Board to be independent The Board 1s satisfied
that she does and will continue to demonstrate Independence of
character and judgement in the parformance of her role on the
Board All of the Non-exscutive Directors are considered to have
the appropnate skills, expenence in therr respactive disciplines
and personalty to bnng independent and cbjective judgement to
the Board's delberations Ther biographies on pages 44 and 45
demonstrate a broad range of business and financial expenence
Gerard Connell s the Servor Independent Non-executive
Director His duties mclude leading the annual evaluation of the
performance ¢f the Charrman by the Non-executive Directors and
being avallable as an additional point of contact on the Board for
shareholders Gerard 1s also chairman of the Audit Committee
and 1n accordance with the Code's pninciples relating to audit
committee membership he has recent and relevant financial
expenence (as set out in his biography on page 44) Martin Angle
15 also a member of the Audt Committee and he has relevant
financial expenence as set out in his biography on page 44
There is a clear dwision of responsibiities between the roles of
Charman and the Chief Executives of South West Water and
Vindor as recorded in the descnptions of the roles approved by
the Board Al Directors are niow subject to re-election each yearn
accordance with provision B 71 of the Code

The search for an addional non-executive director 1s well under
way The mntention 1s to appoint a director who is considered 1o
be independent and who wilt be a member of the Remuneraton,
Audit, Nomination and Sustainabiity committees

The Dxrectors on the Board and ther attendance at the 11
scheduled meetings of the Board dunng 2011/12 are shown below

Board

Members Appointment date Afttendance
Kenneth Harvey

(Chairman) March 1997 1M
Non-executive Directors

Martin Angle December2008  11/1
Gerard Connell October 2003 11/M
Dinah Nichols June 2003 1M1
Executive Directors

Colin Drummend Aprit 1892 111
Dawvid Dupont March 2002 11/
Chnstopher Loughlin August 2006 1M

46 Pennon Group Ple Annual Report and Accounts 2012

All Directors are equally accountable for the proper stewardship

of the Group's affarrs, with the Non-executive Directors having

a particular responsibility for ensunng that strategies proposed

for the development of the business are critically reviewed The
Non-executive Directors also cntically examing the operational and
financial performance of the Group and fulfil a key role in corporate
accountabilty through their rembership of the Committees of

the Board |n addition the Chairman holds meetings with the
Non-executive Directors, without the Executive Directors present,
to discuss performance and strategic 1Issues

How the Board operates

In accordance with Group polcies the Board has a schedule of
matters reserved for its decision and delegates more detaled
consideration of certain matters to Board Committees, to

the subsidiary boards of South West Water and Vindor; to

the Executive Directors, and o the Group General Counsel &
Company Secretary, as appropnate The matters reserved to the
Board nclude the approval of financial statements, acquisiions
and disposals, major tems of capital expenditure, authorty levels
for other expendsture, nsk management, and approval of the
strategic plan and annual operating budgets

The Board operates by receiving wntten reports circulated in
advance of its meetings from the Executive Directors and the
Group General Counsel & Company Secretary on matters within
their respective business areas n the Group Under the guidance
of the Chairman, all matters before the Board are discussed
openly and presentations and acvice are recenved frequently from
other sentor executives withun the Group or from extemnal adwvisers

Directors have access to the advice and services of the Group
General Counsel & Company Secretary and the Board has
established a procedure whereby Diractors, in order to fulfil
therr duties, may seek Independent professional advice at the
Company's expense

The traning needs of Directors are reviewed as part of the
performance evaluahion process

Performance evaluation

The Board has well developed intemal procedures to evaluate
the performance of the whole Board, each Gommittes, the
Charman, each ndmdual Director and the Group General
Counsel & Company Secretary The evaluation procedure relating
to the Board and s Committees was administered this year by
an extemnal govemance consuttancy, Lintstock  All pariiciparnits’
views were sought via an online questonnare on a range of
questons which were specifically designed by the Charman

and the Group General Counsel and Company Secretary n
conunction with Lintstock to ensure objective evaluation of
performance Responses were then summansed and evaluated
by Lintstock for the Board and each Committes to consider and
determine whether any changes should be made 1o be more
effective A meeting between the Charman, the Group General
Counse! & Company Secretary and Lintstock was then held 1o
discuss the high level findings of the evaluation and to consider
them in the context of governance developments generally While
performance was again considered to be satisfactory, there were
a number of suggestions mada to refine the overall effectiveness
of the Board which the Board agreed should be introduced over




the following months when appropnate For example it was agreed
that performance could be improved further through a number of
muncr changes to Board reports and discussions at the beginning
of each meeting on topical 1Issues

The Chairman's performance was evaluated separately by the
Non-executive Directors, led by the Senior independent Non-
executive Director The Charrman's other significant commitments
outside the Group have not changed dunng the year and the
Board 1s satisfied that such commitments do not prejudice the
Charman's performance in refation to his Group role

Gerard Connell, Audrt Committee Chairman

The Audit Commuttee
Members Appointment date Attendance
Gerard Connell
(Chairman) October 2003 6/6
Martin Angle December 2008 6/6
Dinah Nichols June 2003 6/6
Our activities dunng the year

A continuing focus this year has been reviewing the systems
and controls in place in Vindor to manage its increasingly
complex and regionalised businesses across the UK

It 1s important to ensure that Vindor continues to have
appropnate processes and controls in place to manage the
strong growth expected from its energy from waste plants,
its developing recycling businesses and the major contracts
with waste authorties The Committee was pleased to note
that plans are also being developed to deliver significant
enhancements and upgrading of IT systems and that
regular interal audits at local sites are demonstrating that
new controls and systems put in place have been working
satisfactorily

In South West Water the emphasis has been on continuing
to manage systems in place as efficiently as possible

whilst ensunng that nsks are being appropnately assessed
and controls in place are operating satisfactonly The
Committee was pleased to note that South West Water's nsk
assessment and internal control processes remam robust

We decided to review our nsk review process this year
beanng m mind that it 1s 12 years since the Group introduced
detalled nsk management policies and procedures in
accordance with the Tumbull Recommendations We
appomted Deloitte to undertake a full review, to date we have
received a valuable imtenm report which 1s to be followed

up shortly by a presentation to the Committee and the

Board to enable us to consider any changes which may

be appropriate to existing processes

Dealing with Directors’ conflicts of mterest

The Board has in place a procedure for the consideration

and authonsation of Directors’ conflicts or possible conflicts
with the Company’s nterests This is m accordance with the
Directors’ nterests provisions of the Companies Act 2006 and
the Company's Articles of Assoaiation which grants to Directors
authonty to approve such conflicts subject to appropnate
conditions

Board committees

Group policies allocate the tasks of gvng detaled consideration
to specified matters, to montonng exacutive actions and to
assessing reward, to the Board Committees as set out In the
remarung sections of this Governance Report and the Directors’
Remuneration Report on pages 52 and 53

As part of the Group's nsk review process this year we
have once again assessed the key areas of sensrtivity to
the Group and these are set out on pages 28 t0 33 We
have concentrated on the high level key nsks to the Group
and have provided an indication of how the level of risk has
changed over the past year.

As reported in previous Annual Reports we continue to
monitor carefully the effectiveness of our extemnal auditors
as well as their independence, beanng in mind that it 1s
recognised there 1s a need to use our auditors’ firm for non-
audit services from time to time We have full regard to the
Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards and ensure
that our procedures and safeguards meet these standards

Pertodically a detailed review of the prowvision of external
auditors 1s undertaken in accordance with best practice
The last such review was undertaken in 2006 when the
current auditors were appointed following a comprehensive
compettive tender process In addition the auditors’
appointment ts reviewed annually by the Comrmttee

As part of this annual review the Committee considers

the tenure, quality and fees of the auditors

Our pahcy for the engagement of the auditors’ firm for non-
audit work involves the Group Director of Finance setting
out in a report to the Committes the reasons for apponting
the auditors’ firm for any matenal work and obtaining the
approval of the Committee We carefully review whether 1t
1s necessary for the auditors’ firm to carry out such work
and we will only grant approval for thetr appointment

if we are satisfied that the auditors’ independence and
objectivity are fully safeguarded

The Company’s auditors assist in this process by ensunng
that the senior partner responsible for the external audit of
the Group remains responsible for such audrt for no more
than five years and that there 1s a Quality Review Partner
who 1s involved in planning the audit and in the reviewing
of the final accounts of the Company including assessing
any cntical matters which may be identified in the audit.
The auditors have also confirmed to the Committee that
they have complied with all relevant guidance 1ssued

by the Auditing Practices Board and have implemented
appropnate safeguards including

¢ all non-audrt related services, where necessary, being
performed by personnel Independent of the audit
engagement team

s no work being undertaken that would require the
audrtors to act m a capacity as an advocate

no aspect of the auditing engagement partner’s
performance being assessed on the leve! of non-audit
fees charged to the Company

» the Committee Chairman meeting writh the auditors’
Quality Review Partner penodically to discuss the scope
and performance of their work
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continued

The Audt Committee continued

Set out on page 80 i1s the level of fees paid to the Company’s
auditors’ firm for audit services, or audit-related services
and non-audit services following the guidance proposed by
the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards Guidance
for Auditors. It i1s recognised that the level of non-audit fees
payable to the Company's audstors’ firm in the past year was
in excess of the audnt fee paid This was pnmanly due to fees
paid to the corporate finance arm of the auditors’ firm in
relation to the major new PPP/PFI1 contract gains by Vindor
We considered carefully the reasons for the engagement of
the auditors’ firm in accordance with the process described
above Of paramount mportance was the continuing
independence of the auditors which the Committee was
satisfied was maintained due to the safeguards followed

by the auditors’ firm as described above. We were also
satisfied that it was appropriate to appoint the auditors’

firm to undertake such work because of the audrtors’ firm’s
specialist knowledge and the imited number of consultants
with the expertise to undertake such engagements. These
PPP/PFI contracts are of vital importance to the long-term
strategic development of Vindor and it s critical that Vindor
should be able to benefit from the best advice available in
the market The number of PPP/PF] contract opportunities
1s expected to decline from 201213 onwards leading to a
corresponding dechine in corporate finance fees payable

The Committee also acknowledged that the absolute level
of non-audit fees payable to the Company's auditors 1s
consistent with the level of non-audit fees incurred by many
companies within the FTSE 100

Another area of particular mportance to the Committee 1s
the internal audit activities of the Group, The Group has a
longstanding and effective centralised intemal audit function
together with separate reviews undertaken within both
South West Water and Vindor. A Group Intemal Audit Plan
1s approved in September each year It takes account of the
activities to be undertaken by the extemnal auditor and also
the Group’s annual and regular intenm risk management
reviews, This approach seeks to ensure that there 1s an
ongoing programme of intemal and external audit reviews
focused on key nsk areas throughout the Group The Group
Audsit Manager reports quarterty to the Committee on audit
reviews undertaken and therr findings.

The areas of the business of the Group which received
audit attention over the past year included Group treasury
processes, business continuity management, information
secunty and IT nsks, Vindor site practices, credit
management and debt collection, and core systems

and processes,

We have also considered a range of matters during the year
in accordance with our established calendar of business and
Terms of Reference including in particular
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reviewing the accounting policies and reporting
Judgements adopted by the Group In preparing its financial
statements, We were satisfied that they were appropriate
to provide a farr assessment of the financial performance
of the Group

agreeing the extemnal auditors’ strategy for carrying out the
audit dunng the past financial year

¢ carrying out a review of the Half Yearly Report with the
external auditors

considenng areport from the external audrtors on the
review of the financial year-end and meeting them in the
absence of management to discuss their remit and any
1ssues ansing from the audit, including management’s
treatment of significant judgements which the auditors had
confirmed (following discussion with management) were
considered to be satsfactory

considening an intemal control report from the external
auditors which reviewed the co-ordination of activities with
the Group's intemnal audit function

keeping under review the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal controls, including all matenal financial, operational
and compliance controls and nsk management systems

monrtonng and reviewing the effectiveness of the Group's
internal audit function and approving the annual internal
audit plan

reviewingd the findings of the intemal audit function and
reviewing and monitoring management’s responsiveness
to such findings

overseeing the relationship with the external auditors
including thewr appointment, remuneration, re-appomntment
and the monstonng of their ndependence and objectnty
particularly having regard to the supply of any non-audit
services by the auditors' firm

reviewing the level of audrt and non-audit fees paid

an updated fraud, ant-bnbery and other iregulanties policy
and procedure to take account of the prowisions of the

new Bnibery Act, which was subsequently approved by

the Board

After constderation of the reports provided by the external
audrtors, and our assessment of the performance and
independence of the audtors dunng the year in conjunction
with the Group Director of Finance, we consider that it 1s
appropnate that the external auditors be re-appointed and
will make an appropniate recommendation to shareholders
at the Annual General Meeting

It 1s our practice as an addrtional assurance, at the end of
meetings of the Committee, to hold separate meetings with
the extemnal auditors and the internal Group Audrt Manager
without management present to discuss their respective
areas of actvity during the previous penod and any issues
ansing from their audits.




Dinah Nichols, Sustainability Committee Chairman
Sustainabilty Committee’

Members Appointment date Attendance
Dinah Nichols

(Charman) November 2006 5/5
Gerard Connell November 2006 5/5

Martin Angle December 2008 4/5
Colin Drummond November 2006 4/5
Chnstopher Loughlin November 2006 5/5

The Sustainability Committee’s duties, in the context of the
requirement for companies to conduct therr business ina
responsible manner {in relation to environmental, social and
govermnance (ESG) matters), are to review the strategies,
policies, management, inthatives, targets and performance
of the Pennon Group of companies in the areas of
occupational health and safety and secunty, environment,
workplace policies, non-financial regulatory compliance
and the role of the Group n soctety

During the year the Committee considered a wide range

of matters in accordance with its Terms of Reference

including

s the 201112 Group Sustainability Report and the
assoclated Venfier's Report

+ the South West Water and Vindor Sustainability Reports

« the Group's health and safety performance and plans

s the Verfier's recommendations for the next Sustainability
Reports

» progress aganst the Sustainability targets for 201142

* Sustanability targets for 201213

= the annual review of Group policies

* a new community relations and investment policy

* developments and progress in carbon reduction driving
sustamability within the Group supply chains

In reporting on sustamability, the Company has sought to
comply with the Association of British Insurers’ Guidelines
on Responsible Investment Disclosure The Business
review on pages 34 to 39 contains the Group’s 2012 Annual
Sustamnabiltty Report

1 (formeriy Corporate Responsiblity Committee)

Board comnuttees’ terms of reference

The Terms of Reference of the Audit, Remuneration,
Nemination and Sustamnability Committees are available
upon request to the Group General Counsel & Company
Secratary and are also set out on the Company’s website
pennon-group co uk

Ken Harvey, Nomination Committee Chairman

The Nomination Committee
Members Appointment date Attendance
Kenneth Harvey
(Chairman) March 1997 3/3
Gerard Connell October 2003 3/3
Martin Angle December 2008 313
Dinah Nichols June 2003 3/3

The Nominaton Committee meets as and when required
to select and recommend to the Board suitable candidates
for appointment as Executive and Non-executive Directors
to the Board and as executive directors to the Vindor

and South West Water boards, determine the nomination
process and review succession plans Itis the practice of
the Committee, led by the Chairman, to appoint an external
search consultancy to assist in any Board appointments

Dunng the year the Committee considered the annual
performance evaluation results for the Committee,
considered and approved the appointments of an
executive director and a non-executive director to the
Vinder board, reviewed equality and diversity arrangements
throughout the Group, and commenced the process,

with the assistance of external search consultants,

for the appointment of a further Non-executive Director

to the Board taking account of the recommendations

of the Lord Davies Review, “‘Women on Boards'

Gender Diversity - The Board's policy

In accordance with the Lord Davies Review
recommendations and the expected changes to the UK
Corporate Govermance Ceode (the Code) the Committee
is pleased to report that the Board has adopted

a Boardroom Diversity Pohicy which confirms that

the Board 1s committed to

» the search for Board candidates being conducted, and
appointments made, on ment, against objective critena
and with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board, including gender

* satisfying itself that plans are in place for orderly
succession of appointments to the Board and to senior
management to maintain an appropnate balance of skills
and expenence within the Group and on the Board and to
ensure progressive refreshing of the Board

In addition, within the spint of Pnneiple B 2 of the Code,

the Board will endeavour to achieve and subsequently

maintamn

= ammimum of 25% female representation on the Board by
2015 {and mamntain the current 14% representation unti
the higher percentage 1s achieved}

& a minimum of 25% female representation on the Group's
senior management team by 2015
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Governance Corporate governance and internal control

continued

Currently the Group has 14% female representation at Board

level and in a workforce of circa 4,500 some 16% are women.

In senior/middle management executive positions the female
representation is circa 18%

As well as its Boardroom Diversity Policy the Group has a
number of policies embracing workplace matters, including
non-discnmination and equal opportunities policies

The Commuttee 1s required by the Board to review and
monitor comphance with the Boardroom Diversity Policy and
report on the targets, achievement agamst those targets and
overall compliance in the Annual Report each year

The Remuneration Commiuttee
Details of the Remuneration Committee and the Directors’
remuneration report can be found on pages 52 to 60

Intermal control

Wider aspects of internal control

The Board 1s responsible for mantarning the Group's systern of
intemal control to safeguard shareholders’ investment and the
Group’s assets and for reviewing 1ts effectiveness The system
1s designed t0 manage rather than elirminate the nsk of failure to
achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance aganst matenal misstatement or
loss There Is an ongoing process for dentifying, evaluating and
managing the signficant nsks faced by the Group that has been
In place throughout the financial year 201112 and up to the date
of the approval of this Annual Report and Accounts

The Board confirms that it continues to apply procedures in
accordance with the UK Corporate Govermance Code and the
‘Gudance on Intemal Control' (The Tumbull Guidancs) which
suggests means of applying the internal control part of the
Code As part of these procedures the Board has a Group Risk
Management Policy {(GRMP) which provides for the identification
of key nsks In relation to the achievement of the business
objectives of the Group, monitonng of such nsks and annual
svaluation of the overall process, as descnbed in more detail
below The GRMP 15 applied by all business units within the
Group in accordance with an annual timetable

Risk identification

A full nsk and control assessment 1s undertaken annually by the
management of each business to Identify financial and non-
financial nsks which are then regularly updated Each business
compiles {as part of regular management reports) an enhanced
and focused assassment of key nsks aganst corporate objectives
At each meeting the Board recenves from the Executive Directors
details of any new high-level nsks identfied and how they are to
be managed, together with detalls of any changes to existtng nsks
and therr management The subsidiary boards of South West
Water and Vindor also recenve at each meeting similar reports
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In respect of therr own areas of responsibility All Executve
Directors and senior managers are required to certify on an annual
basis that they have effective controls in place to manage nsks and
to operate in compliance with legislation and Group procedures

We also have a Whistleblowing poiicy and we thoroughly
investigate any allegations of misconduct and imegutanty and
consider the mplications for our control emaronment In the normal
course of busness nvestigations into megulanties may be ongong
as of the date of the approval of the financial staterments

All of these processes serve to ensure that a cutture of effective
control and nsk management 1s embedded wathin the orgarisation
and that the Group 15 in a position to react appropnatety to new
nsks as they anse Detalls of key nsks affecting the Group are set
out I the Businass review on pages 28 to 33

Internal control framework

The Group also has a well established intermal control framework
which s operated and which applies in relation to the process for
prepanng the Group's consolidated accounts

This framework compnrises

+ aclearty defined structure which delegates an appropnate
level of authonty, responsibity and accountability, Including
responsibility for ntemal financial centrol, to management of
operating units

¢ a gomprehensve budgeting and reporting function with an
annual budget approved by the Board of Directors, which also
monitors the financial reporting process, monthly results and
updated forecasts for the year aganst budget

documented financial control procedures Managers of
operating units are required to confirm annually that they have
adequate financial controls In operation and to report all matenal
areas of financial nsk Compliance with procedures is reviewed
and tested by the Company’s internal audit function

» aninvestment apprassal process for evaluating proposals for
alt major capital expenditure and acquisitions, with defined !
levels of approval and a system for monitorng the progress |
of capital projects

* apost-investment evaluation process for major capital
expendrture and acquisitions to assess the success of the
project and lean any lesscns to be applied to future projects

Intermal control review

An evaluation of the effectiveness of overall ntemnal control
compliance by the Group 1s undertaken In respect of each
financial year (and subsequently up to the date of this report)

to assist the Audit Committee in considenng the Group ntemal
audit plan for the forthcoming financial year and also the Business
review for the Annual Report The Group General Counsel

& Company Secretary intially cames out the evaluaton with
Directors and senior management for consideration by the Audt
Committee and subsequently for final evaluation by the Board

In addhion the Audit Committee regularty reviews the operation
and effectveness of the intemal control framework and annually
reviews the scope of work, authorty and resources of the
Company’s internal audtt function The Commitiee reports and
miakes recommendations to the Board on such reviews For




201112 and up to the date of the approval of the Annual Report
and Accounts, both the Audrt Committes and the Board wera
satisfied with the effectiveness of the GRMP and the intemal
control framework and their operation within the Group

Further information on the ntemal control review 1s set out on page
47 n relation to the Audt Committee

Going concem

The Directors consider, after making appropnate enquines, that
the Company and the Group have adequates resources to continue
In operational existence for the foreseeable future For this reason
they continue to adopt the gong concern basis in prepanng the
financial statements

Directors' responsibilities statements

The Directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report, the
Directors’ Remuneration Repert and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial
statements for each financial year Under that law the Directors
have prepared the Group and Company financial statements

N accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union Under company law
the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless
they are satsfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of
affars of the Group and the Company and of the profit or loss of
the Group for the year

In prepanng these financial statements the Directors are required to

» sglact sutable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently

* make judgements and accountng estmates which are
reasonable and prudent

s state whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the European
Union have been followed, subject to any matenal departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements

The Directors confirm that they have complied with the above
requirements In prepanng the financial statements

The Directors are respensible for keeping adeguate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at ary tme
the financial posriion of the Group and the Comparny and enable
them to ensure that the financial statements and the Directors’
remuneration report comply with the Companies Act 2006
and, as regards the Group financial statements, article 4 of the
intemational Accounting Standards (AS) Regulation They are
also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and
the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other imegularnties

Each of the Directors, whose names and functions are listed on
pages 44 and 45, confirms thal, to the best of ther knowledge

a) the financial statements, which have been prepared in
accordance with Interational Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) as adepted by the EU, give a true and far view of the
assets, labilties, financial poshion and profit of the Group and
of the Company and

b}the Directors’ report contaned on pages 2 to 41 ncludes a far
remew of the development and performance of the business
and position of the Company and the Group, together with a
descnption of the pnncipal nsks and uncertanties they face

The Drrectors are responsible for the mantenance and integnty
of the Company's webste pennon-group co uk Legiskation n the
United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissermination

of financial statements may differ from legeslation in other
Junsdichons

Corporate governance statements

The folloming disclosures are made pursuant to Part 6 of Schedule
7 of the Large and Medium-sized Compares and Groups
tAccounts & Reports) Regulations 2008 and Rule 72 3R of the
UK Listing Authonty’s Disclosure and Transparency Rules (OTR)

As at 31 March 2012

&) details of the Company’s 1ssued share capital, which consists of
Ordinary shares of nominal value 407 pence each, are set out
in note 31 to the financial statements on pages 101 to 103 All of
the Company's Issued shares are fully paid up, rank equally In
all respects and are bisted on the Official List and traded on the
London Stock Exchange The nghts and obhgations attaching
to the Company's shares, n addition to those conferred on
ther holders by law, are set out In the Company's Articles
of Assoctation (‘Articles’), copies of which can be obtained
from Companies House in the UK or by wnting to the Group
Company Secretary at the Company’s registered office

The holders of the Company’s shares are entttled to receive
the Company's reports and accounts and m relation to general
meetings of the Company they have the nght to attend and
speak, exercise voting nghts and appoint proxies,

b} there are no restnctions on the fransfer of issued shares of
the Company or on the exercise of vobing nghts attached to
them, except where the Company has exercised its nght to
suspend therr voting nghts or to prohitit therr transfer following
the omission of their holder or any person interested in them
to provide the Company with information requested by ¢t in
accordance with Part 22 of the Companies Act 2006 or where
therr holder 1s precluded from exercising voting nghts by the
Financial Services Authonty's Listing Rules or the Crty Code
on Takeovers and Mergers,

¢) details of significant direct or Indirect holdings of secunties of the
Company are set out in the shareholder analysis on page 113,

d) the Company’s rules about the appointrment and replacerment
of Directors are contaned in the Articles and accord with usual
English company law provisions The powers of directors are
determined by UK legislation and the Articles in force from
tme to time  Changes to the Articles must be approved by the
Company's shareholders by passing a special resolubion,

g) the Directors have the power to make purchases of the
Company's own shares In 1ssue as set out in the Directors’
report on page 41 ‘Purchase of own Ordinary shares’ No such
purchases have been made dunng the year The Direclors also
have the authonty to allot shares up to an aggregate nominal
value of {i) £48,541,889 (such amount to be reduced by any
shares allotted or nghts granted under (i} below in excess of
£48,541,689) or (i} £97,083,378 by way of nghts 1ssue (such
amount to be reduced by any shares allotted or nghts granted
from () above) which were approved by shareholders at the
2011 Annual General Mesting (AGM) In addrtion, shareholders
approved a resolution gving the Directors a imied authonty to
allot shares for cash other than pro rata to existing shareholders
These resolutions remain valid until the conclusion of this year's
AGM Simiar resolutions will be proposed at this year's AGM
The Directors have no present ntention to issue Ordinary
shares other than pursuant to the Compary's employee share
schemes and Scnp Dvidend Altematve, and

f) there are a number of agreements which take effect, alter or
terminate upon a change of control of the Company following
a takeover bid, such as bank loan agreements, Eurobond
documentation, private placement debt and employees’ sharg
plans None of these Is considerad to be significant in terms of
ther potental impact on the business of the Group as a whole

By Order of the g&;

Ken Wooder SV

Group General Couns2TE Company Secretary
18 June 2012
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Govemance

Directors’ remuneration report

Dear shareholder

| am pleased to present the remuneration report for 2012 on behalf
of the Board We will be presenting this report for your approval at
our Annual General Meeting in July

Thus report 1s designed to provide you with detalls of
» the Remuneration Committee

¢ the Group’s Remuneration policy

¢ Directors' remuneration

s specific remuneration disclosures required by the Directors’
Remuneration Repert Regulations, which are audited

We appreciate that thers remams mvestor concern relating to
executive director remuneration generally and, whilst focus has
been on the financial sector primanly, it is fulty recogrised that
there 1s a need for other sectors to continue to take account of
this concem in reviewing and setting their remuneration policies
and overall remuneration practice This 1s why we asked our
remuneration consultants recently to undertake a review of our
incentive benefits to ensure that they continue to be aligned with
creating shareholder value and only provide rewards to Directors

commensurate with the achievernents of the Group | am pleased Members
to say that our consuttants confinm that this 1s the position Ag Martin Angle
a result we do not propose any changes to our remuneration (Chairman)
arrangements which have been n place without amendment for Gerard Connell
the past five years Dinah Nichols
The essential elements of our remuneration package and their
purpcse therefore continue to be as set out below
Elements of remuneration

Type of Remuneration Descnption

Fixed

Base Salary Annual salary set by reference to market level

appropnate for role and based on individual

Martin Angle, Remuneration Committee Chairman

The Remuneration Committee

skills, expenence and performance

Appointment date Attendance

December 2008 3/4

October 2003 a4/4
June 2003 4/4
Purpose

Rewards appropnately for the role
undertaken and assists in key person
retention and recruitment

Pension Final Salary (Defined Benefit) for existing

Directors/ Defined Contributions for any new
appointees or cash altemative commensurate

with market level pension arrangements

Vanable
Short-term - Annual Assessed agamnst corporate financial
Annual Incentive Bonus Plan - Maximum performance and individual personal

100% of basic salary with 50% paid incash  achievements relating to a range of
and 50% in shares deferred for three years operational and comphance targets

Assists in key person retention and
recruitment

Incentive for annual performance across
the Group at Indvidual and team level The
deferred element also assists in key person
retention and recruitment

Long-term - three years Total shareholder retumn performance cntena

Performance and Co-investment Plan (PCP)} - 50% flinked to water and waste comparator

~ future performance over three years group and 50% linked to relative FTSE 250
with an underpm refating to operational and
economic performance
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A long-term reward which aligns Directors’
performance to shareholder value and
whuch dnves sustainable practices and
assists in key person retenbon and
recruitment.



The Committee’s Terms of Reference include ¢ Deloitte LLP, auditing and remuneration consultants,
« advising the Board on the framework of executive on calculating the Company’s total shareholder retum
remuneration for the Group compared with two comparator groups for the Company's
Performance and Co-investment Plan Deloitte also provide
financial, tax and nsk management review adwvice to the
Company
Aon Hewitt Limited, pensions and remuneration
d dot t i h h consultants, on providing advtce on pension benefits Aon
relfncxr?::g:c?:’ or determination of, fis or her own Hewtt also provided actuanal and investment adwvice to
the Company and to the Trustees of the Group's pension
Dunng the year the Committee receved advice or services schemes
wfhlch mnater;allg as.stltstedf the (i‘.(omrlf;mee n Ct;:e conmdt:ratlon « Towers Watson UK Limited, remuneration consultants,
ofremuneration matters from sen Harvey, Lharman o on the Company’s Director and senior management annual
the Company, and from the following advisors who were
incentive benefits framework
appointed directly by the Committee

* Ken Woodier, Group General Counsel & Company
Secretary, on remuneration and share scheme matters
He also provides legal advice and company secretanal
services to the Company

= determining the remuneration and terms of engagement
of the Chairman, the Executive Directors and Senior
Management of the Group

No Director or any other attendee participates in any

Remuneration policy

The Group's remuneration policy which will be appled in 2012/13, and 1s also cumrentty intended to be applied in each subsequent year,
continues to be to provide a remuneration package for Executve Directors which 1s adequate to attract, retain and motvate good qualrty
executives and which 1s commensurate with the remuneration packages provided by comparies of similar size and complexaty The key
guding pnnciples of this policy are to

= design an overall package to be competitive and to take account of the markets in which the Group's businesses operate
» support the overarching business strategy for the Group

& gdopt Incentive arrangements designed to reward performance and align the interests of the Executve Directors with those
of shareholders

= reinforce the Incentive element of the package by mantaining base salanes for Executive Directors at the relevant market median

* have a remuneraton package which 1s farr and consistent with other companies in the sector and which provides incentives for
outperformance

The policy in respect of Non-executive Directors' fees 1s set ocut on page 56 in the Non-executive Directors’ remuneration section

In setting executive remuneration the Committes not only takes account of employment market condritions, but seeks to ensure that
there are coherent pay and benefit structures across the Group which are consistent with the remuneration packages of the Executive
Directors and senior management From summary reports on workforee remuneration and terms and conditions of employment by
the Executive Directors with regard to thewr respective business areas, the Committee has regard to the general levels of responsibility,
qualfications and expenence required throughout the Group In setting salary and other benefits of the Executive Directors and senior
management The Committee also ensures that the incentive structures do not raise environmental, social or govemance (ESG) nsks
by inadvertently motvating imesponsible behaviour A number of iIndrdual performance objectives specifically relate to achieving
non-financial, including ESG, targets (as outlined on page 54)

The balance between maximum performance-related remuneration recevable and direct remuneration (e excluding pensions,

car benefit and health cover} i1s the same as last year with one-third direct and two-thirds performance-related This 1s expected to
continue for the foreseeable future The Company also has a Shareholding Guideline which applies to Executive Directors and Senior
Management R s structured to demonstrate therr commtment to the future success of the Group Executive Directors are expected
to buld up ther shareholding over a five-year pencd to a value which is at least equivalent 1o ther basic annual salary

Tha following 1s a detalled summary of the elements of remuneration

{} Basic salary and benefits - these are set out on page 57 for each Executive Director and are not related to performance Ths
Committee reviews salanes annually taking account of market data avalable from independent remuneration consuttants Last year
the general Increase was 4 0% When reviewing base salanes the Committee takes account of the performance of the indnadual
Executive Directors which the Committee assesses with the adwvice of Ken Harvey, Charman of the Company Other benefits,
not mentroned below, include four trmes salary Iife assurance cover; a fully expensed car or a cash altemative, and health cover

{ii Performance-related bonus — annual performance related bonuses are awarded in accordance with the Group's Annual Incentive
Bonus Plan {the Bonus Plan) and are based on the achievement by the Executive Directors of overall corporate and indwidual
objectives set by the Committee The maximum bonus achievable under the Bonus Plan for Executive Directors for 2011/12 was
100% of basic salary To achieve the maximum perceritage bonus allocated in respect of the corporate targets of eamings per
share and profit before tax it 1s necessary for the Company to achieve a specified level of supenor outperformance. Half of any
borus awarded 15 in the form of Ordinary shares in the Company which must usually be held for a penod of three years before
release (Deferred Bonus Shares) Dunng this penod the Directors, in respect of the Deferred Bonus Shares, are enttled to receve
any dwvidends declared by the Company No addiional performance condriions applicable to the release of the Deferred Bonus
Shares, apart from mantaning continuous service with the Company, are considered approprate by the Committee In view of the
stretching performance condtions appliicable to achieve the iInal award of the Deferred Bonus Shares The Committee, in setting the
performance objectives for Executive Directors, takes account of corporate performance on environmental, social and govemance
(ESG) matters Objectives set embrace appropnate ESG parameters which are important to the success of the Group and which
seek to ensure that the Group meets a number of its ESG targets as set out n the Group Sustainabilty report on pages 34 to 39 of
the Business review The Committee in setting such cbjectives and in determining its remuneration policy overall ensures that the
relevant ncentives to Directors and semor management aligns therr interests with shareholders and raise no ESG nsks by inadvertently
motvating imresponsible behaviour
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The Bonus Plan s also operated in conjunction with the Company’s Executive Share Option Scheme (ESOS) on the basis that the
aggregate pre-tax value of the awards made under both the Bonus Plan and the ESOS would be the same as they would have been
if the Bonus Plan had been operated alone, which was the position pnior to 200910 This 1s achieved by providing for Deferred Bonus
Shares awarded to be forfeted by the Directors up to the same value as that of any gain made n respect of options exercised by

the Directors pursuant to the ESOS at the end of the three-year restncted penod Only the HMRC approved part of the ESOS was
operated in 2009/10 which enabled options over Ordinary shares in the Company to be granted to Directors to the value of £30,000
at the then prevaiing pnce No further options will be granted to the Executive Directors pursuant 10 the Benus Plan until the existing
options ether are exercised or lapse at the end of the three-year restncted penod in September this year Detals of the options are set
out in the table n paragraph (d} on page 60

Set out below 15 a summary of the performance targets determined by the Committee for each Executive Director for 2012/13 These
are similar to the targets applied for 2011/12

Colin Drummond - A bonus of up to 40% for outperformance of Group eamings per share against budget, up to 40% calculated by
reference to outperformance of the profit before tax and net debt budgets of Vindor; and up to 20% for personal objectives relating to
key business targets for Vindor

Dawvid Dupont - A bonus of up to 40% for outperfoimnance of Group eamings per share against budget, up to 40% for
outperformance against budget relabng to net debt and net interest of the Group and profit before tax of South West Water and
Vindor, and up to 20% for personal chjectives relating to Group financing and other Group inttiatives

Chris Loughiin - A bonus of up to 40% for outperformance of Group eamings per share against budget, up to 20% for personal
objectives relating to implementing South West Water's new strategies and projects and meeting compliance targets, and up to

40% calculated by reference to the average bonus eamed by the other Executive Directors of South West Water (which relate

to outperformance agamst the operating costs, profit before tax, capital expenditure and net debt budgets of the company; the
position the company achieves in the ‘Service Incentve Mechanism’ of water and sewerage companies established by Ofwat, the
achieverment of a range of senvice standards set for the company by Ofwat, and personal objectives relating to key intiatives, projects
and compliance targets for South West Water)

The achievements of the Executive Directors agamnst ther indmdual performance cbjectves are assessed by the Committee following
the financial year-end when the audited results of the Company and performance against the parameters set are known This enables
the Committee to apply largely objective cntena in determining the tevel of bonus (if any) which should be awarded, with the advice of
the Charrman of the Company, Ken Harvey

(i) Long-term incentive plan — A Performance and Co-mvastment Plan (PCP) was operated by the Company dunng the year for
Executve Directors and senior management

The purpose of the PCP s to award shares to participants subject to the achievement of stretching performance condrtions measured
over three years Awards under the PCP, n the form of a conditional nght over Ordinary shares in the Company, were made by the
Committee In July 2011 and, for Executive Directors, the award was over shares worth 100% of basic salary In accordance with its
discretion pursuant to the rules of the PCP, the Committee made the vesting of the awards also subject to the fulfilment of a co-
ivestment condrtion whereby Executive Directors were required to invest and hold shares in the Company equal to 20% of the value
of therr award over the Restncted Penod {being a penod of three years from the date of the award} The percentage requirement for
senior management was surtably scaled back The number of shares subject to each award in the event of vesting will be increased
by such number of shares as could have been acquired by reinvesting the dwidends which would otherwise have been receved on
those shares prior to vesting or exercise

The PCP awards made in July 2011 will vest based on the Company’s total shareholder retum (TSR} performance over the Restnicted
Penod aganst two different comparator groups as set out below This is the same performance cntena that was applied to the PCP
awards made in July 2010 and July 2009 TSR measures the value created for shareholders through increases in share pnce and

the payment of dmdends and was applied by the Committee because, based upon advice receved from remuneration consultants,
Delortte LLP, it believes that this 1s an appropnate measure to align the interests of the Executive Directors wath those of shareholders
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¢ up to 50% of an award will vest according to the Company's TSR performance measured against an index made up of the following
six lsted water and waste comparator companies

Northumbnan Water Group* Shanks Group
Séché Environnement Suez Environnement
Severn Trent United Utilities

Thesa companies are regarded as the Company's key listed comparators

* As Northumbnan Water Group was delisted from the London Stock Exchange in October 2011 the Committee In respect of the July 2011 award
at the end of the thres-year Restricted Pencd will have discretion to nclude this company in the calculation of the Index up to the date of delisting
{or other earlier date at its discretion) and exclude the company from the date onwards or adopt an alternative approach

Water/Waste mdex Vesting
Above the index + 15% 50%
Equal to the index 15%
Straight-line vesting in between above postions

Below the index 0%

¢ up to 50% of an award will vest according to the Company’'s ranked TSR performance aganst the constituents of the FTSE 250
index (excluding mvestment trusts) This 1s the FTSE Index to which the Company belonged at the tme of the award

FTSE 250 Index (excluding investment trusts) Vesting
At or above the 75th percentile 50%
Above 50th percentile 15%
Straight-line veshing in between above positions

At or below the 50th percentile 0%

In addrtion to the above TSR conditions, before any award is capable of vesting, there 1s an ‘Underpin’ condition whereby the
Commuittee needs to be satisfied that the undertying operational and economic performancs of the Company s at a satisfactory level
This evaluation includes consideration of ESG factors and safety performance, as well as financial performance Whilst the Committee
tends currently to apply stmilar performance conditions including the ‘Underpin’ to any future PCP awards, they are reviewed on an
annual basis to ensure that the conditons continue to be appropnate and suttably stretching for future awards

For the PCP awards made in August 2008 the same performance measures were used as set out above except that Suez
Ervironnement was listed part-way through the performance penod on 21 July 2008 and was included In the calculation of the ndex
value from that date onwards The calculation of TSR performance over the three-year performance penod (being 1 Apnl 2008 to

1 Apnl 2011) for these PCP awards was undertaken by Delaitte LLP for the Committee The table below summanses the calculation

Portion of
Comparator group award Rank Percentile rank  Final vesting level
17 2% outperformance
Waste/Water index 50% aganst index - 50 0%
FTSE 250 (excluding investment trusts) 50% 103rd out of 186 44 9% 00%
Total vesting 50 0%

The Committee was satisfied that the "‘Underpin’ condition referred to above had been met and therefore approved the vesting of
50 0% of the award as calculated by Delortte (together with shares equvalent to the value of dividends declared dunng the Restncted
Penod on such shares) with the remamning 50 0% lapsing

(v) Other share schemes - Executive Directors are entitled to participate in the Comparny’s Sharesave Scheme and Share Incentive
Plan Both are all-employee plans to which performance condrions do not apply

() Service contracts - In accordance with Company policy, all Executive Directors have service contracts subject to one year's notice
Dawvid Dupont's and Chns Loughlin's service contracts are due to expire when they reach therr normal retirement age of 60 However it
15 expected that they will be extended by agreement between each Director and the Cornpany Colin Drummond reached his nomal
retrement date on 22 February 2011 and has continued in emplayment with the Cormpany in the same position as Chief Executive,
Vindor, and as a Dwrector of the Pennon Group Board His service contract with the Company continues subject to one year's notice

No provision 1s made for termunation payments under the servce contracts In the event of an early termination of a Director's serice
contract, the Committea's policy 1S to ensure that any compensation payable (whether share-based or cash) reflects the Director’s
performance and the circumstances of the termination The dates of the contracts are

Colin Drummond 5 March 1992
David Dupont 2 January 2003
Chns Loughlin 16 May 2006
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Total shareholder retumn (TSR)

The graph above shows the value, over the five-year penod ending on 31 March 2012, of £100 invested in Pennon Group on 31 March
2007 compared with the value of £100 invested in the FTSE 250 Index The other ponits plotted are the values at intervening financial
year-ends This Index 1s considered appropnate as it 1s a broad equity market index of which the Company has been a constituent over
maost of the penod covered The graph above has been produced in accordance with regulations made pursuant to Section 421 of the
Companies Act 2006

{vi} Provision for pensions — Dunng the year David Dupont participated in the Pennon Group Pension Scheme and the Pennon Group
Executive Pension Scheme until 3 March 2012 when he decided to take his benefits earty These are funded defined benefit schemes
which, dependent on length of service at normal retrement date, could amount to two-thirds of final pensionable pay up to an
Eamings Cap which ceased to apply In the Executive Scheme from 6 Apnl 2006

Dawd Dupont had been provided with additional pension benefits under an unapproved funded Supplementary Pension Scheme of
the Company in order to bining hus pension benefits up to a level which would have been provided under the other schemes as if the
Earmings Cap had not applied With effect from 6 Apnt 2006 the statutory Eamings Cap no longer applied to pension schemes as part
of the simphification of taxation of pensions legislaton The Comrnittes accordngly decided to prowide future service pension benefits
above the Eamings Cap level from the Pennon Group Executive Pension Scheme to Directors who were rmembers of that Scherme
The Supplementary Pension Scheme was therefore closed and the accrued benefits wers paid out to its members in Apnl 2006

The pensionable pay for David Dupont consisted of the highest basic salary m any consecutive twelve-month penod of service within
five years of retirerent Bonuses are not included in pensionable pay

Colin Brummoend and Chins Loughtin receive an annual payment (payable by monthly instaiments) equivalent to 30% of each of therr
annual basic salanes in llieu cf the provision of pension benefits Dawd Dupont from 3 March 2012 15 also entitied 1o recerve a similar
benefit but, with the agreement of the Company, has had his pension accrued benefit augmented by the sum of £84,062 paid for by
the Employer which will be deducted from the annual payment to be paid in liew of pension benafit

In determining remuneration arrangements for Executive Directors, the Commuttes gives full consideration to ther impact on the
pension schemes’ funds and costs of provding iIndvidual pension arrangements o payments n keu of pension provision

Non-executive Directors and the Chairman

Non-executive Directors’ remuneration fexcluding that of the Chairman, Ken Harvey) consisting of fees only as set out below, 1s
determined by the Board of Directors, including the Chainman, but in the absence of the other Non-executive Directors It is usually
reviewed each year to take account of market changes in Non-executive Directors’ fees In reviewng the fees, the Board takes into
account market nformation on Non-executve Directors’ fees The fees were reviewed last year and ncreased by between 4 5% and
476% The base Non-executive Director fee in the year was £40,000 per annurn The Audrt, Remuneration and Comporate Responsibility
Commttee chairs were pad fees of £10,000, £7,000 and £7,000 per annum respectvely and members of these committees receved
£4,000 each For this and subsequent years the policy expected to be applied in respect of Non-executve Birector fees will be to set feas
around the medhan leve! compared with the market, which the Board believes 1s appropnate to attract and retain sutably expenenced
Non-executive Directors
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The Chaimman's remuneration is set by the Remuneration Committee The Charman's fee was reviewed last year and ncreased by 4 4%

by the Committes

The policy of the Commuttee to be applied 1o the Chairman's fee for this and n subsequent years 1s the same as that for the Non-
exacutive Directors as set out above In addition to a fee the Charman receves a fully-expensed car benefit and health cover No other

benefits or remuneration are recenved by the Chairman

The Non-executive Directors {excluding the Chairman) have contracts for senvices setting out their temms and conditions of appointment
which are subject to the Articles of Association of the Company and which may be extended by agreerment between the Gompany and
the Non-executive Directors No provision 1s made for any termination payment under these contracts

The Chairman has a contract for services dated 1 Aprl 2005 which 1s subject to 12 months’ notice to provide the Company with
reasonable securty with regard to his ongoing service No provision 1s made for any temminatton payments under this contract

The contracts for services of the Chairman and the Non-executive Directors reflect corporate governance best practice and,

together with the Executive Directors' service contracts, are avalable for inspection at the Company's registered office dunng

normal business hours
The dates of the Non-executive Directors’ contracts are

Director Date of contract Expiry date of contract
Martin Angle 28 November 2008 30 November 2014
Gerard Connell 30 September 2003 31 July 2014

Dinah Nichols 10 June 2003 25 July 2013

The above contracts do not contan any notice penods

The information set out below and on the remaining pages of this Remuneration Report (pages 58 to 60} has been audited by the

Group's Independent auditors, PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Emoluments of Directors

The emoluments of Individual Directors holding office durng 201142 were

Performance Payment in Total 2012 Total 2011
related bonus Other heu of Year to Year to
Salary/fees payable' emoluments? pension® 31 March 31 March
Drrector £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Chaimnan
Ken Harvey 240 - 23 - 263 253
Executive Directors
Colin Drummond 359 97 24 108 588 546
David Bupont 359 140 25 94* 618 531
Chns Loughlin 359 156 24 108 647 632
Non-executive Directors
Martin Angte 55 - - - 55 52
Gerard Connell 58 - - - 58 55
Dinah Nichols 55 - - - 55 52
Total 1,485 393 96 310 2,284 2121

! Inaddton to the performance-related cash bonus, Executive Directors are due to recene a conditional award of shares as referred to n anote to {c)
‘Annual Incentrve Bonus Plan — Deferred Bonus Shares flong-term incentive element)’ on page 59

2 Other emoluments are car benefit and health cover

3 Inhau of any pension provision by the Company, Colin Drummond, Dawd Dupont {from 3 March 2012) and Chns Loughlin receved cash payments
equivalent to 30% of each of ther annual basic salanes * Dawd Dupont's cash payment of £84,062 represents in part a pre-payment as set out In '{vi)
Provision for pensions’ on page 56 which has augmented his pension entitliement and 1s included in the pension benefit figures set oul below in the

Executve Directors’ pensions table

No expenss allowances chargeable to tax or termination or compensation payments were mads dunng the year

Executive Directors’ pensions

Defined benefit pensions accrued and payable on retirement for Executive Drectors holding office dunng 2011412 were

Decreasein

Decrease In Increase in transfer

accrued Increase/ transfer value

pension decrease in Transfer Transfer value of Column a

during accrued Accrued value value (net of {net of

2011/42 pension pension at at at Directors’ Directors’

{net of during 31 March 31 March 31 March con- con-

milation) 2011112 2012 2012 2011 tributions} tnbutions)

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Director a b c d e f g
Colin Drummond (3) 3 124 3,379 2,710 670 {92}
Dawvid Dupont {19) {11} 134 3,918 3,150 739 {573}
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The headings &) to g) above are as follows

a) Increase/decrease in accrued pension dunng 2011/12 (net of iInflation)

b) Increase/decrease in accrued pension dunng 2011412

¢} accrued pension at 31 March 2012 payable at normal retrement age

d} transfer value of the accrued pensicn In ¢) as at 31 March 2012

€} transfer value of the accrued pension at the end of the previous financial year on 31 March 2011
f) iIncrease/decreass In transfer value dunng the year {net of Directors’ contnbutions)

g) iIncrease/decrease In transfer value of column &) (net of Directors’ contnbutions})

Colin Drummond was a pensioner member of the Pennon Group's pension schemes dunng the year As such no further benefits were
accrued and no employee or employer contnbutions were paid {other than the employer's deficit reduction contnbutions) The accrued
pension at 31 March 2012 (column ¢) therefore shows the actual pensicn n payment at 31 March 2012 The increase in Colin's accrued
pension over the year (column b) s solely as a result of ndexation of his pension as set out In the schemes’ rules

The accrued pension at 31 March 2012 {column ¢} for David Dupont 1s lower than the pension amount quoted in the 31 March 2011
accounts as David decided to draw his penston from the Pennon Group's pension schemas early from 3 March 2012 On taking hus
benefits David made a tax payment of £287,880 which was deducted from his accrued benefit, The accrued pension figure at 31 March
2012 (column ¢) therefore reflects the residual pension in payment at that date

The increase In transfer value over the year (column 1) 1s manly as a result of the large fall in gitt yields between 31 March 2011 and

31 Mareh 2012

Directors’ share interests

(a} Shareholdings
The number of Ordinary shares of the Company in which Directors held beneficial Interests at 31 March 2012 and 31 March 2011 were
Director 2012 Ordinary shares 2011 Ordinary shares
{40 7p each) {40 7p each)
Martin Angle - -
Gerard Connell 4,000 4,000
Colin Drummond 288,163 263,225
Dawvid Dupont 262,67 237,945
Ken Harvey 26,209 18,209
Chns Loughlin 97,745 58,534
Dinah Nichols 4,549 4,549

Since 31 March 2012 1,991 additonal Ordinary shares (40 7p each) in the Company have been acquired by Chns Loughiin as a result of
participation in the Company’s Scnp Dmdend Altemative and the Company's Share Incentive Plan and 212 addiional Ordinary shares
(40 7p sach) n the Company have been acquired by David Dupont as a result of dwvidend reinvestment in an ISA There have been no
other changes in the beneficial interests or the non-beneficial nterests of the Directors 1 the Ordinary shares of the Company between
1 Apnl 2012 and 8 June 2012
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b) Performance and Co-investment Plan (long-term incentive plan)

In addtion to the above beneficial Interests, the following Directors have or had a contingent interest 1n the number of Ordinary shares
(40 7p each) of the Company shown below, representing the maximum number of shares 1o which they would become entitled under
the plan should the relevant critena be met in full

Value of Date of end
Condrtional  Conditional Market shares upon Conditional of period for
awards awards pnce upon vesting awards qualdying
Director and held at made in award in Vesting in (before tax) held at conditions to
date of award 1 Apnl 2011 year year year £000 31 March 2012 be fulfilled
Colin Drummond
10/7/08 51,764 - 637 50p 29,118* 199 - 9/7/11
1/7/09 67,831 - 486 50p - - 67,831 30/6/12
2710 63,186 - 546 00p - - 63,186 1/7T13
17Mm - 51,432 698 00p - - 51,432 1/714
David Dupont
10/7/08 51,764 - 637 50p 29,118* 199 - 9/7/11
1/7/09 67,831 - 486 50p - - 67,831 30/6/12
2/710 63,186 - 546 00p - - 63,186 1/713
1/7H1 - 51,432 698 00p - - 51,432 177714
Chns Loughlin
10/7/08 49,411 - 637 50p 27,795 190 - 9/7/11
1/7/09 64,748 - 486 50p - - 64,748 30/6/12
2/710 63,186 - 546 00p - - 63,186 1713
1/1m - 51,432 698 00p - - 51,432 17714

* 80 0% of the 10 July 2008 award shares vested on 10 July 2011 as explained in the secton (i) ‘Long-term incentive plan’ on page 54 of this report at
amarket pnce of £6 85 per share The total number of shares that vested includad addrtional shares equivalent in value to such number of shares as
could have been acquired by renvesting the dvidends which would otherwise have been receved on the vested shares dunng the Restricted Penod
of three years The balance of the award lapsed

{c) Annual Incentive Bonus Plan — Deferred Bonus Shares {long-term incentive element}

The folowing Directors have a contingent interest in the number of Ordinary shares (40 7p each} of the Company shown below,
representing the total number of shares to which they would become entifled under the deferred bonus element of the Annual Incentive
Bonus Plan (the Bonus Plan} at the end of the relevant qualifying penod

Value of Date of end
Condrhional  Conditional Market shares upon Conditional of period for
awards awards prce upon vesting awards qualfying
Diwrector and held at made in award in Vesting in {before tax) held at conditions to
date of award 1 Apnl 2011 year year year £000 31 March 2012 be fulfilled
Colin Drummond
27/6/08 22,838 - 620 00p 22,838* 151 - 26/6/1
20/9/09* 16,730 - 473 40p - - 16,730 28/9/112
27/7/10 27,091 - 572 50p - - 27,091 26/7M13
27171 - 23,079 725 00p - - 23,079 26/7TH4
Dawid Dupont
27/6/08 21,145 - 620 00p 21,145* 139 - 26/6/11
29/9/09* 17,880 - 473 40p - - 17,880 28/9112
27/210 755 - 524 50p - - 755 26/2/13
277110 25,938 - 572 50p - - 25,938 26/713
2T - 22,365 725 00p - - 22,365 26/7M14
Chnsg Loughlin
27/6/08 18,806 - 620 00p 18,806" 124 - 26/6/11
29/9/09* 19,562 - 473 40p - - 19,562 28/9/12
27/210 1,261 - 524 50p - - 1,261 26/213
2777110 25,133 - 572 50p - - 25133 26/7/13
277 - 2214 725 00p - - 2214 26714

* In adddion to the awards made on 29 September 2009 the Directors also received options pursuant to the Company’s Executve Share Option
Scheme (the ESOS), detalls of which are set out in the table of paragraph (d) on page 60 These awards were mads in conunchion with the operation
of the Bonus Plan In the event that the ESOS options are exercisad by the Directors, shares from the Bonus Plan equivalent in value to the gan on
the ESOS options will be forfeted Further detar's of the operation of the ESOS n relation to the Bonus Plan are set out in paragraph (i} ‘Performance-
related bonus’ on page 53

Dunng the vear the Directors received dvidends on the above shares In accordance with the conditions of the Bonus Plan as follows
Colin Brummond £16,473, David Dupont £16,408, Chns Loughlin £16,536
Chns Loughiin alsc receved Ordinary shares (40 7p each) in the Company as a result of participation in the Company’s Scnp Dividend

Alternative and these shares are included in the figure given for the addrtional Ordinary shares {40 7p each) in the Compary that he
acquired since 31 March 2012 given on page 58

A further condrtional award of shares will be made in 2012/13 to the value of the amount of the performance-related cash bonus shown

in the Emoluments of Directors table on page 57 Paragraph (i) ‘Performance-related bonus' on page 53 sets out the provisions relating
to the condiional award of shares pursuant to the Bonus Plan
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Govemance Directors’ remuneration report

continued

(d} Executive Share Option Scheme

The following Directors have a contingent intarest n the number of options N the Ordinary shares {40 7p each) of the Company pursuarnt
to the Company’s Executive Share Cption Scheme shown below Further details relating to the operation of the Scheme are set out in
paragraph (i) ‘Performance-related bonus’ on page 54

Market
Market value of
pnce of each Options
Options Exercise each share at held at

Director and heldat Grantedin Exercised price per shareon 31 March 31 March Maturity

date of grant 1 Apni 2011 year in year share exercising 2012 2012 date

Colin Drummond

29/9/09 6,337 - - 473 40p - 711 50p 6,337 28/912

David Dupont

29/9/09 6,337 - - 473 40p - 711 50p 6,337 28/9H12

Chns Loughlin

29/9/09 6,337 - - 473 40p - 711 50p 6,337 28/9M12
(¢} Sharesave Scheme
Details of ophons to subscnbe for Crdinary shares (40 7p each} of the Company under the all-employee Sharesave Scheme were

Market
Market value
price of of each Options
Options Exercise each share at held at

Director and heldat Granted Exercised pnceper share on 31 March 31 March  Exercise period/

date of grant 1 Apnl 2011 n year In year share exercising 2012 2012 matunity date

Colin Drummond

6/7/09 2,351 - - 386 00p - 711 50p 2,351 1/9/12 - 28/213

Dawvid Dupont

3707 3,136 - - 522 00p - 711 50p 3,136 1/9/12 - 28/213

Chns Loughlin

3/7/07 3,136 - - 522 Q0p - 711 50p 3,136 1/9/12 - 28/213
{f) Share pnce

The market pnce of the Ordinary shares {40 7p each) of the Company at 31 March 2012 was 711 50p (2011 625 00p) and the range
dunng the year was 620 00p to 737 50p (2010411 482 90p to 650 00p)

Basis of preparation

The Remuneration report has been prepared In accordance with the Companies Act 2006 and The Large and Medium-sized
Compantes and Groups {Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 (the Regulations) and meets the relevant requirements of the FSA
Listing Rules In accordance with the Regulations, the following sections of the Remuneration report are subject to audit Emoluments of
Drrectors, Executive Directors’ Pensions, and Directors’ Share Interests {including long-term incentive plan and bonus plan awards and
therr vesting cntena and executive share options and sharesave) for which the independent auditors' opinion thereon is expressed on
page 61 The other sections are not subject to audit nor are the pages referred to from wathin the audited sections

The Remuneration report was approved by the Board of Directors and signed on its behalf by

Martin Angle
Chairman of the Remunerato
18 June 2012
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Governance

Independent auditors’ report

Independent auditors’ report to the members of Pennon Group Plc

Woe have audited the financial statements of Pennon Group Plc for the year ended 31 March 2012 which compnse Consolidated income
statement, the Consolidated staterment of comprehensive Income, the Group and Comparty Balance sheets, the Group and Company
Statements of changes in equity, the Group and Company Cash flow statements and the related notes The financial reporting framework
that has been applied in ther preparation i1s applicable law and Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (FRSs) as adopted by the
European Union and, as regards the Company financial statements, as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies

Act 2006

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilibes Statement set out on page 51, the directors are responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they gve a true and fair iew Our responsibility 1$ to audit and express an opinion
on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and Intemational Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards
require us to comply wath the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report, mcluding the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the Company's members as a bedy in accordance with Chapter 3
of Part 16 of the Comparues Act 2006 and for no other purpose We do not, n gvng these opiniens, accept or assume responsibilty for
any other purpose or to ary other person to whom this report 1s shown or Into whose hands t may come save where expressly agreed
by our pnor consent N writing

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit nvolves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial staterments are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This ncludes an
assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the Group's and the Company's circumstances and have been
consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting estmates made by the directors, and the
overall presentation of the financial staternents In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial Information in the annueal report
and accounts to identify matenal nconsistencies with the audited financial statements If we become aware of any apparent matenal
misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

Opinion on financial statements
In our cpinion

* the financial statements give a tnue and far view of the state of the Group's and of the Company's affars as at 3t March 2012 and
of the Group’s profit and Group's and Company’s cash flows for the year then ended,

« the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Urion,

*» the Compary financial statements have besn properly prepared n accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and
as apphed in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006, and

s the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Comparnies Act 2006 and, as regards the
Group financial statements, Article 4 of the |AS Regulation

Opwinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opInIon

* the part of the Directors’ remuneration report to be audited has been property prepared in accordance with the Compares Act 2006,

s the Information given in the Directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared 1s consistent with the
financial statements, and

« the iInformaton given in the corporate governance statement set out on pages 42 1o 43 and 46 to 51 with respect to internal control
and nsk management systems and about share capital structures 1s consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you i, in our opinion

» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Company, or retums adequate for our audit have not been receved from
branches not wisited by us, or

» the Company financial statements and the part of the Directors’ remuneration report 1o be audited are neot in agreement with the
accourting records and returns, or

» certan disclosures of drrectors' remunerabon specified by law are not made, or

* we have not recenved all the information and explanations we require for our audt, or
* a corporate govemance statement has not been prepared by the Company

Under the Listing Rules we are required 1o review

¢ the Directors' statement, set out on page 26, in relation to gong concem,

* the parts of the corporate govemance statement relating to the Company's comphiance with the nine provisions of the UK Corporate
Governance Code specified for our review, and

+ certan elements of the report to shareholders by the Board on directors’ remuneration

Dawvid Charles (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP Chartered Accountants and Statutory Audrtors

Bnstol
18 June 2012 %’\/ K

- "
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Financial statements

Consolidated income statement
For the year ended 31 March 2012

2012 2011
Notes £m £m
Revenue 5 1,233.1 11592
Operating costs B
Manpower costs (155.4) {148 3}
Raw matenals and consumables used (133.9) (1216
Other operating expenses (528.0) (486 7)
Depreciation and amortisation {(147.0) (1417
Operating profit 5 268.8 2609
Finance income 7 1193 451
Finance costs 7 (191.6) {121 8)
Net finance costs 7 (72.3) (76 7)
Share of post-tax profit from joint ventures 19 4.0 43
Profit before tax 5 200.5 1835
Taxation B (28.1) (169
Profit for the year 1724 1716
Profit attnbutable to equity shareholders 1724 1716
Earmings per share {pence per share} 10
—Basic 48.1 484
— Diluted 47.8 481

The notes on pages 67 to 111 form part of these financial statements
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Financial statements

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 March 2012

2012 2011
Notes £m om
Profit for the year 1724 1716
Other comprehensive loss
Actuanal {osses)/gains on defined benefit pension schemes 28 (517 24
Net far value losses on cash flow hedges (24.7) 01
Share of other comprehensive 10ss from joint ventures 19 (5.4) B0
Defarred tax credt/{charge) on items taken directly to or transferred from equity 8,29 16.0 B3
Other comprehensive loss for the year net of tax 34 (65.8) (a0
Total comprehensive Income for the year 106 6 167 6
Total comprehensive Income attnbutable to equity shareholders 106.6 167 6

The notes on pages 67 to 111 form part of these financial statements
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Financial statements

Balance sheets
At 31 March 2012

Group Company
2011
{Restated
2012 note 37} 2012 2011
Notes £m £m £m £m
Assets
Non-current assets
Goodwil 14 3271 3004 - -
Other ntangible assets 15 175 44 - -
Property, plant and equipment 16 3,082.8 28227 02 03
Other non-current assels 18 138.4 1160 352.0 3677
Financial assets at far value through profit - 26 - -
Deferred tax assets 29 - - 46 42
Denvative financal instruments 22 21.9 - - -
Investments In subsidiary undertakings 19 - - 1,1721 10320
Investments in joint ventures 19 0.1 15 - -
3,587.8 33476 1,5289 1,404 2
Current assets
Inventones 20 9.0 72 - -
Trade and other recevables 21 2384 2190 91.7 o27
Financal assets at far value through profit 05 09 - -
Denvative financial instruments 22 9.7 69 8.9 66
Current tax recoverable 25 - - 26 17
Cash and cash deposits 23 425.3 5555 158.9 2366
682.9 7895 262.1 3376
Liabilibes
Current labilrhes
Bormowings 26 (325 5) 992) {534.4) {316 1)
Denvative financial instruments 22 (16.6} 53 - -
Trade and other payables 24 {242.5) (253 5) (10.8) {11 1)
Current tax habities 25 (59.7) (79 5) - -
Provisions 30 (25.6) (16 3) - -
{669.9) (453 8) {545.2) 3279
Net current assets/{liabilities) 130 3357 {283.1) 104
Non-current liabilthes
Borrowings 26 (2,204.4) (2,390 1} {356.8} (5729}
Other non-current habilities 27 {76.9) (30 4) (8.7) B8N
Financial iabiihes at far value through profit (16.7) - - -
Denvative financial nstruments 22 (32.0) (163) - -
Retirement benefit obligations 28 (98.6} {85 8) (7.8) (68)
Deferred tax labities 29 (273.8) (292 5) - -
Provisions 30 (76 3) {88 7) - -
(2,778 7) (2,903 8) (373.3) (588 4)
Net assets 8221 7795 8725 8262
Shareholders’ equity
Share caprtal 3 1482 1470 148.2 147 0
Share premum account 32 8.0 92 8.0 g2
Caprtal redemption reserve 33 1442 144 2 1442 144 2
Retaned eamings and cther reserves 4 521.7 4791 5721 5258
Total shareholders’ equity 8221 7795 8725 8262

The notes on pages 67 to 111 form part of these financial statements
\ pages 62 to 111 were approved by the Board of Directors and authonsed for issue on 18 June 2012 and

The financial statel
were signed on its

K G Harvey
Chamrman
Pennon Group Plc

Regstered Office Peninsula House, Rydon Lane, Exeter, Devon, England EX2 THR Registered n England Number 2366640
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Financial statements

Statements of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 March 2012

Share Capital Retained
Share premium redemption eamings and
capital account reserve  other reserves Total
(Nate 31) {Note 32) {Note 33} (Note 34) equity
Group £m £m £m £m £m
A1 Apnl 2010 1453 109 144 2 3625 6629
Profit for the year - - - 1716 1716
Other comprehensaive loss for the year - - - 40 (40
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 167 6 167 6
Transactions with equrty shareholders
Dmdends pad - - - (79 6) (79 6)
Adustment for shares 1ssued under
the Scnp Dmdend Altemative 17 a7 - 228 228
Adustment in respect of share-based payments {net of tax) - - - 39 39
Transfer from hedging reserve to property,
plant and equipment - - - 03 03
Proceeds from treasury shares re-issued - - - 16 16
Total transachons with equrty shareholders 17 {17) - {51 Q) 510
At 31 March 2011 147 0 92 144 2 4791 7795
Profit for the year - - - 1724 1724
Other comprehensive loss for the year - - - (65 8} (B58)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 1066 106 6
Transactions with equity shareholders
Dradends pad - - - 882 8823
Adustment for shares issued under
the Scnp Dmdend Altemative 12 (12 - 191 191
Adustment in respect of share-based payments (net of tax) - - - 35 35
Own shares acquired by the Pennon Employee Share Trust
in respect of share options granted - - - 03 {03
Proceeds from treasury shares re-issued - - - 19 19
Total transactions with equity shareholders 12 (12 - B84 0) 64 0)
At 31 March 2012 1482 8.0 144.2 521.7 8221
Share Capital Retained
Share premium redempton eamings and
capital account reserve  otherreserves Total
{(Note 31) (Note 32) (Note 39) Note 343 equity
Company £m £m fm £m £m
At 1 Apnl 2010 1453 109 1442 487 4 787 8
Profit for the year - - - 901 901
Other comprehensive iIncome for the year - - - 27 27
Total comprehensive ncome for the year - - - 928 928
Transactions with equity shareholders
Dmdends pad - - - (79 6) (7o 6)
Adustment for shares 1ssued under
the Scnp Dmdend Altemative 17 (17 - 228 228
Adustment in respect of share-based payments (net of tax} - - - 08 08
Proceeds from treasury shares re-issued - - - 16 16
Total transachons with equity shareholders 17 (17} - (54 4) (54 4}
At 31 March 2011 1470 92 144 2 5258 8262
Profit for the year - - - 1163 1163
Other comprehensive loss for the year - - - (36 (36
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 1127 1127
Transactions with equity shareholders
Dradends pasd - - - 88 2) 882
Adustrnent for shares issued under
the Scnp Dadend Attemative 12 12 - 191 191
Adustment in respect of share-based payments (net of tax) - - - 08 o8
Proceeds from treasury shares re-issued - - - 19 19
Total transactons with equity shareholders 12 {12 - (66 4} (66 4)
At 31 March 2012 1482 8.0 1442 5721 8725

The notes on pages 67 to 111 forn part of these financial staterments
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Financial statements

Cash flow statements
For the year ended 31 March 2012

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011

Notes £m £m £m £m
Cash flows from operating activites
Cash generated/{outfliow) from operations 35 3247 3762 18.9 (44 2)
Interest pad (74.5} {782} (22 (22 O)
Tax (padyrecenved (a1.49) {432 26 03
Net cash generated/{outfiow) from operating actvbes 208.8 2548 1.2} (66 5
Cash flows from investing activihes
Interest receved 13.2 14 4 23.3 209
Dwdends recerved - - 1175 931
Acquisition of subsidiary undertakings
(net of cash acquired) 37 (29.2} (251} - -
Investments n subsidiary undertakings - - (140.1} -
Loans advanced to joint ventures (13 4} (125} - -
Loan repayments recenved from joint ventures 36 35 - -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (262.2} (190 3 - 02
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 4.6 47 - -
Net cash (used myreceved from investing actvties {283.4) (2053) 0.7 1138
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from treasury shares re-1ssued 31 19 16 19 16
Purchase of Ordinary shares by the Pennon
Employee Share Trust {03) - - -
Depostt of restncted funds (net) {0.1) (308 - -
Proceeds from new bomowing 250 1870 250 1399
Repayment of borrowings {71.0) (104 6) (350) (700
Finance lease sale and lease back 79.5 - - -
Finance lease pnncipal repayments {14.0) (20 5) - -
Dradends pad {69.1) (56 8) (69 1) (56 8)
Net cash (used inyreceved from finanong actmties {48.1) (24 1) (77.2) 147
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash
equivalents (1227 254 @77 620
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 23 4149 3895 235.2 1732
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 23 2922 4149 157.5 2352

The notes on pages 67 to 111 form part of these financial statements
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Financial statements
Notes to the financial statements

1. General iInformation

Pennon Group Pic 1s a company registered in the United Kingdom under the Companies Act 2006 The address of the registered office

15 given on page 64 Pennon Group's business Is operated through two main subsidianes  South West Water Limited holds the water and
sewerage services appointments for Devon, Comwall and parts of Dorset and Somierset Vindor Limited's business 1s recycling, renewable
energy and waste management

2. Pnncipal accounting policies
The pancipal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented

(a) Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared on the histoncal cost accounting basis {except for far value tems, pnncipally acquistions,
transfers of assets from customers and denvatives as descnbed in accounting policy note (b}, (w) and (n} respectively) and in accordance
with Internabonal Financial Reporting Standards (FRS) and Intemational Financial Reporting Standards Interpretations Committee
interpretations as adopted by the European Unien, and with those parts of the Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting
under IFRS A summary of the pnncipal accounting policies 1s set out below, together wath an explanation where changes have been
made to previous policies on the adoption of new accounting standards and interpretations In the year

The going concem basis has been adopted in prepanng these financial staterments as stated by the Directors on page 51

New or revised standards or nterpretations which were mandatory for the first time in the year beginrung 1 Apnl 2011 did not have
a matenal iImpact on the net assets or results of the Group

At the date of approval of these financial statements IFRS 11 Joint Arrangemerts and 1AS 19 (Revised) Employee Benefits were in 1ssue,
but not yet effective Other standards and interpretations in issue, but not yet effective, are not expected to have a matenal effect on the
Group’s net assets or results |

IFRS 1118 relevant to the Group, but it 1s not expected to have a matenal effect on the results or net assets, as the Group currently
consalidates jont ventures on an equity basis

The Directors anticipate that the adoption of IAS 19 ‘Emiployee benefits' revised, expected on 1 Apnt 2013, will potentially have a matenal
Impact, dependent upon market conditions, on the financial statements of the Group  The revised standard 15 expected to ncrease net
finance costs and operating costs The extent of this iImpact 1s currently beng assessed

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of estimates and assumptions which affect the reported
amounts of assets and labiities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses dunng the
reporting penod  Although these estimates are based on management’s best assessment of the amounts, actual events or actions and
resufts may uttmately differ from those estimates

{b) Basis of consolidation
The Group financial statements include the results of Pennon Group Plc and its subsidianes, joint ventures and associate undertakings

The results of subsidianes, joint ventures and associate undertakings are included from the date of acquisition or Incorporaticn, and
excluded from the date of disposal The results of subsidianes are consolidated where the Group has the power to control the financial
and operating policies of a subsidiary The results of joint ventures and assocrate undertakings are accounted for on an equity basis

Intra-group trading and loan balances and transactions are eliminated on conschdation

The acqusition method of accounting 1s used to account for the purchase of subsidianes  The excess of the value transferred to the seller
N retum for control of the acquired business, together with the fair value of any previously held equity interest in that business over the
Group's share of the far value of the identifiable net assets, 1s recorded as goodwill

{c} Revenue recognrtion
Revenue represents the farr value of consideration receivable, excluding value added tax, trade discounts and inter company sales,
in the ordinary course of business for goods and services provided

Revenue I1s recognised once the services or goods have been provided to the customer

Income from main water and waste water charges inciudes billed amounts for estmated usage and also an estimation of the amount
of unbiled charges at the year-end based upon a defined methodology reflecting histoncal consumption and current tanffs

Income from electncity generated from waste management landfill gas preduction dunng the year includes an estimation of the amount
to be receved under Renewables Obligaton Certicates

Accrued income from waste rmanagement contracts at the balance shest date Is recognised using management’s expectation of amounts
1o be subsequently billed for services rendered to the client in accordance with the terms of the contract

Income from recyciing actvities within waste management includes amounts based upon market pnees for recyclate products and
industry schemes for waste electncal and electronic equipment (WEEE' notes) and packaging volumes ('PRNS') processed

Revenue from long-term service concession amangements 1S recognised based on the farr value of work performed Where an
arangement includes more than one service, such as construction and operation of waste managsment faciihes, revenue and profit
are recogrised N proportion to a far value assessment of the total contract value split across the services provided i
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Financial statements Notes to the financial statements
continued

2. Pnneipal accounting policies continued
(d} Landfill tax
Landfiil tax 1s ncluded within both revenue and operating costs

(e) Segmental reporting

Each of the Group’s business segments provides serices which are subject to nsks and retums which are different from those of the
other business segments The Group's intemal organisation and management structure and s system of intemal financial reporting 1s
based pnmarlly on business segments The pnnaipal business segments compnse the regulated water and sewerage serices undertaken
by South West Water Limited and the waste managerment business of Vindor Limited  Segmental revenue and results include transactons
between businesses Inter-segmental transactions are eiminated on consolidation

{f) Goodwll
Goodwill ansing on consolidation from the acquisition of subsidiary and foint venture undertakings represents the excess of the purchase
consideration over the far value of net assets acquired

Goodwillis recognised as an asset and reviewed for mpairment at least annually Any impairment 1s recognised immediately n the income
statement and 1s not subsequently reversed For the purpose of impaiment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination 1S
allocated to each of the cash generating units or group of cash generating units, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combmnation Each unit or group of units to which goodwill 1s allocated represents the lowest lgvel within the entity at which the goodwill is
monttored for intemal reporting pumoses Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment leve! Further details are contaned in accourting
policy {)

When a subsidiary or joint venture undertaking 1s sold, the profit or loss on disposal is determined after mcluding the attnbutable amount

of unamortised goodwil

Goodwill ansing on acquistions before 1 April 2004 (the Group's date of transttion to IFRS) has been retaned at the previous UK GAAP
amounts, subject to annual testing for mparment Goodwill witten-off to reserves under UK GAAP pnor to 1998 was not reinstated on
transtion to IFRS and wilt not be included 1n determining any subsequent profit or loss on disposal

{g) Other intangible assets

Other Intangible assets acquired in a busmess combination are capitalised at far value at the date of acquistion Following intial
recognttion, finite Ife INtangible assets are amortised on a straight-lne basis over ther estmated useful economic ves, with the expense
charged to the ncome statement through operating costs

{h} Property, plant and equipment

i) Infrastructure assets (being water mains and sewers, mpounding and pumped raw water storage reservoirs, dams, pipelines
and sea outfalls)

Infrastructure assets were ncluded at far value on transiion to IFRS and subsequent addtions are recorded at cost less accumulated
depreciation Expenditure to ncrease capacity or enhance mfrastructure assets 1s capritalised where it can be reliably measured and it is
probable that incremental future economic benefits will flow to the Group  The cost of day-to-day seniaing of nfrastructure components
is recogrused In the Income statement as it anses

Infrastructure assets are depreciated evenly over therr useful economic kves, and are principally:

Dams and impounding resenvoirs 200 years
Water mans 40100 years
Sewers 40-100 years

Assets In the course of construction ars not depreciated untl commissioned

i) Landfill sites

Landfll sites are included within land and buildings at cost less accumulated depreciation Cost indludes acquistion and development
expenses The cost of a landfill site 1 depreciated to ts residual value (which is inked to gas production at the site post-closure) over
its estimated operational Ife taking account of the usage of void space

ni) Landfill restoration
Where the obligation to restors a landfil ste is an integral part of its future economic benefits, a non-curment asset within property, plant
and equipment 1S recognised The asset recognised is depreciated based on the usage of void space

w) Other assets {(including property, cverground plant and equipment)
Other assets are ncluded at cost less accurmnulated depreciabon

Freehold land 1s not depreciated Other assets are depreciated evenly to therr residual value over therr estimated economic Ives, and
are prncipally

Land and buidings ~ Freshoid buidings 30-60years
Land and buldings — Leasehold buldings Over tharr estmated economic Iives or the finance lease penod, whichever

15 the shorter
Operational properties 40 - 80 years
Fixed plant 20-40 years
Vehicles, mobile plant and computers 3-10years
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2. Pnncipal accournting policies contnued
(h) Property, plant and equipment continued
Assets in the course of construction are not depreciated until commessioned

The cost of assets ncludes directly attributable labour and overhead costs wiich are Incremental to the Group Bomowang costs directty
attnbutable to the construction of a qualfyng asset (an asset necessarily taking a substantal penod of time to be prepared for ds rtended
use) are capitalised as part of the asset

Asset Ives and residual values ars rewiewed annually

Gans and losses on disposal are determined by companng sale proceeds with camying amounts These are ncluded in the
income statement

() Leased assets

Assets held under finance leases are Included as property, plant and equipment at the lower of theyr far value at commencement or

the present value of the mmumn lease payments, and are depreciated over therr estimated econormic Ives or the finance lease penod,
whichever 1s the shorter The comesponding liabilty 1s recorded as bormowings  The interest element of the rental costs is charged aganst
profits using the actuanal method over the penod of the lease

Rental costs ansing under operating leases are charged against profits in the year they ars incurred

{i) Impairment of nen-financial assets
Assets with an indefinrte useful Iife are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impaiment, or whenever events or changes
In crcumstance indicate that the camying amount may not be recoverable

Assets subject to amortisation or depreciation are tested for imparrment whenever events or changes in arcumstances incicats that the
camying amaount may not be recoverable

Animpamment loss 15 recogrised for the amount by which an asset's camying amount exceeds its recoverable amount The recoverable
amount 15 the tigher of an asset’s far valug, less costs to sell, and value n use For the purposes of assessing IMparment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for winch there are separately identrfiable cash flows (cash-generating units) Value in use represents the
present value of projected future cash flows expected to be denved from a cash-generating unit, discounted using a pre-tax discount
rate which reflects an assessment of the market cost of caprtal of the cash-generating unit

Imparments are charged to the income statement in the year in which they anse

(k) Investment in subsidiary undertakings

Investments in subsidiary undertalangs are intially recorded at cost, beng the farr value of the consideration paxd Subsequently,
investments are reviewed for impairment on an indwidual basis annually or If events or changes in arcumstances indicate that the camying
value may not be fully recoverable

{I} Investment in joint ventures

Joint ventures are entiies over which the Group exercises joint control Investments in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting Any excess of the cost of acquistion over the Group's share of the farr values of the identfiable net assets of the
joint venture at the date of acquisition 1S recogrised as goodwill and 15 included in the camying value of the Investment in the joint venture

The camying value of the Group’s investment i1s adjusted for the Group’s share of post-acquisition profits or losses recognised in the
ncome statement and statement of comprehensive income Losses of a joint venture In excess of the Group's Interast are not recognised
unless the Group has a legal or constructive obiigation to fund those fosses

{m) Cash and cash deposits
Cash and cash deposits compnse cash in hand and short-term deposits held at banks Bank overdrafts are shown within current
bomrowings

(n) Denvatives and other financial mstruments
The Group classffies its financial instruments n the following categones

i} Loans and recevables
Allloans and borrowings are inmally recogrised at far value, net of transaction costs ncurred  Following initied recogrition nterest-beanng
loans and borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost using the effective Interest method

Gams and losses are recognised in the mcome statement when the instruments are derecognised or imparred Prermia, ciscounts and
other costs and fees are recognised in the Income statement through the amortisation process

Bomowings are classified as currert kabilities urless the Group has an unconditonal nght to defer settliement of the fability for at least
12 months after the balance sheet date

The farr value of the liability component of a convertible bond 1s determined using the market interest rate for an equivalent non-convertible
bond Tris amount 1s recorded as a liabilty on an amortised cost basis using the effective nterest method until extinguished on conversion
or maturty of the bonds  The remainder of the proceeds are allocated to the conversion option This 1s recognised n shareholders’ equity
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Financial staternents Notes to the financial statements
continued

2. Pnincipal accounting policies continued

(n) Denvatives and other financial instruments contnued

ii) Trade recevables

Trade recenables do not camy any interest recenable and are recognised niially at far value and subsequently at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for imparrment A provision for impainment of trade recevables is established when there is
objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due in accordance with the onginal terrms of the recenvables

i) Trade payables
Trade payables are not nterest-beanng and are recognised inbally at far value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effectve mterest method

v) Dernvative financial instruments and hedging actvities

The Group uses dervative financial Instrurments, principally nterest rate swaps and foregn exchange forward contracts, to hedge nsks
assooated with interest rate and exchange rate fluctuations Denvative instruments are mitially recogrised at far value on the date the
dervative contract 1s entered into and subsequently remeasured at faxr value for the reported balance sheet

The Group designates cestan hedging denvatives as esther
- a hedge of a highly probable forecast transaction or change in the cash flows of a recognised asset or liability (a cash flow hedge) or
- a hedge of the exposurs to change m the farr value of a recognised asset or hability (a far vaus hedge)

The gan or loss on remeasurement 1s recognised to the ncome statement except for cash flow hedges which meet the conditions

for hedge accounting, when the portion of the gain or loss on the hedging nstrument which 1s determined to be an effective hedge

15 recognised directly In equity, and the ineffective portion in the income statement The gains or losses deferred in equity In this way

are subsequently recognised in the income statement in the same penod in which the hedged undertying transaction or firm commutment
15 recognised n the iIncome statement

In order to qualfy for hedge accounting the Group 1s required to document in advance the relationship between the tem being hedged
and the hedging mstrurment The Group 1s also required to document and demonstrate an assessment of the relationship batween the
hedged tem and the hedging nstrument which shows that the hedge will be highly effective on an ongoing basis This effectiveness
testing 1s reperformed at the end of each reporting penod to ensure that the hedge remans highly effectve

Where a non-denvatve transaction or senes of transactions with the same counterparty has the aggregate effect n substance of a
denvative nstrurment, the transaction or senes of transactions shall be recognised as a single denvative instrument at far value with
associated movernents recorded in the income statement

The full far value of a hedging derfvative 1s classified as a non-current asset or iabilty when the remaining maturtty of the hedged tem
1s more than one year, and as a current asset or liabiity when the remaning matunty of the hedged tem is less than one year

Denvative financial instruments which do not qualify for hedge accounting are classified as a cumrent asset or iabinty with any change
in far value recognised immediately in the income staterment

v) Financial assets at fair value through profit

Financial assets at farr value through profit reflect the far value maverment of the hedged nsk on a hedged tem which has been designated
in a far value hedging relationship The farr values of these financal assets are intially recogrised on the date the hedging relationship

i1s entered into and subsequently remeasured at each subsequent balance sheet date The gan or loss on remeasurement for the penod
1S recognised in the iIncome statement

(o) Taxation inctuding deferred tax

The tax charge for the year compnses current and deferred tax Tax 1s recogrised in the iIncome statement, except to the extent that it
relates to tems recognised in the statement of comprehensive income or directly In equity In this case the tax is also recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income or directly in equity

Current tax 1s calculated on the basis of tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date Management penodically
evaluates tax tems subject to Intermpretation and establishes full provisions on indivdual tax tems where in the judgement of management
the postion 1S uncertan

Deferred 1ax1s provded in full on temporary differences between the camying amount of assets and labites in the financial staterments and
the tax base, except if it anses from intial recognition of an asset or iabity In a transaction, other than a business combination, that at the
tme of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it 1s
probable that future taxable profits wall be avallable against which the assets can be realised Deferred tax s determined using the tax rates
enacted or substantvely enacted at the balance sheet date, and expected to apply when the deferred tax hability 1s settled or the deferred
tax asset Is realised
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2. Pnnaipal accounting policies continued

(p) Prowisions

Provisions are made where there 1s a present legal or constructive obligabon as a resutt of a past event and it 1s probable that there will be
an outflow of economic benefits to setile thws obligaton and a refiable estmate of this amount can be made Where the efiect of the tme
value of money 15 matenal the current amount of a prowision 1s the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settie
obligatons The unwinding of the discount to present value s ncluded as notional interest within finance costs

The Group’s policies on prowvisions for specriic areas are

i) Landfill restoration costs

Provisions for the cost of restonng landfill stes are made when the obligation anses Where the obligation recognised as a provision gives
access to future economic benefits, an asset in property, plant and equipment 1s recognised  Provisions are othenamse charged aganst
profits based on the usage of void space

i) Environmental control and aftercare costs

Environmental control and aftercare costs are incurred dunng the operabonal Ife of each landfill ste and for a considerable penod
thereafter Provision for all such costs s made over the operational life of the site and charged to the ncome staterment on the basis
of the usage of vord space at the site

nj) Restructunng costs
Provisions for restructunng costs are recognised when a detaled formal plan for the restructunng has been communicated to
affected parties

{q) Share capntal and treasury shares
Ordinary shares are classrfied as equity

Where the Company purchases the Company's equrty share capital {treasury shares} the consideration pad, including any directly
attnbutable costs, 1s deducted from equity untl the shares are cancefied or re-issued Where such shares are subsequently re-issued
any consideration receved, net of any directly attnbutable transaction costs, 15 ncluded n equity

The Group balance sheet includes the shares held by the Pennon Employee Share Trust, relating to employee share-based payments,
which have not vested at the balance sheet date These are shown as a deduction from sharehciders’ equity untl such time as they vest

{r) Dividend distnbutions

Dmdend distnbutions are recognised as a lliability in the financial statements in the penod in which the dvidends are approved by the
Company's shareholders Intenm dwdends are recogrised when paid, final dwvdends when approved by shareholders at the Annual
General Meeting

(s) Employee benefits
i} Retirement benefit obligations
The Group operates defined benefit and defined contnbution pension schemes

Defined benefit pension schemes

Defined benefit pension scheme assets are measured using bid pnce Defined benefit pension scheme fiabilties are measured by '
ndependent actuanes who advse on the selection of Directors’ best estimates  The projected unit credit method 1s employed and habilties

discounted at the current rate of retum on high quality corporate bonds of equivalent term to the labilities The increase in fabilhes of the

Group’s defined benefit pension schemes expected to anse from employee service In the year 1 charged agaunst operating profit

The expected retumn on scheme assets and the Increase dunng the year in the present value of scheme habilites are shown in notional
interest within finance meome and cost

Changes n benefits granted by the employer are recognised immediately in income, in past service cost

Actuanal gains and losses ansing from expenence tems and changes in actuanal assumptions are charged or credited to equity m the
statement of comprehensive ncome

Defined contnbution scheme
Costs of the defined contnbution pension scheme are charged to the mcome statement n the year in which they anse

1) Share-based payment
The Group cperates a number of equrty-settied share-based payment plans for employees The farr value of the employee services
required n exchange for the grant 1s recogmsed as an expense over the vesting penod of the grant

Far values are calculated using an appropnate pnaing model Non market-based vesting conditions are adjusted for in assumptions
as to the number of shares which are expected to vest

{t} Pre-contract and development costs

Pre-contract and development costs including bid costs are expensed as incurred, except where it 1s probable that the contract wil be
awarded or the development completed, In which case they are recognised as an asset which 1s amortised to the income statement over
the Ife of the contract
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Financial statements Notes to the financial statements
continued

2. Pnncipal accounting pohicies continued

{u) Fair values

The far value of nterest rate swaps 1s based on the market pnoe of comparable instruments at the balance sheet date f they are
publicly traded

The far values of short-term deposits, lbans and overdrafts with a matunty of less than one year are assumed to approximate to their book
values In the case of non-cument bank loans and other loans the far value of financial liabilibes for disclosure purposes is estimated by
discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate avadlable to the Group for simitar financial instruments

{v) Service concession arrangements

Where the prowsion of waste management servces Is performed through a contract with a public sector entity which controls a significant
residual interest in asset infrastructure at the end of the contract, then consideration 15 treated as contract recewvables, split between

profit on the construction of assets, cperation of the service and the prowsion of finance which 1s recognised in notional interest within
finance ncome

{w) Transfers of assets from customers

Where an termn of property, plant and equipment that must be used to connect customers to the network 1s receved from a custormer,

or where cash 1s recenved from a customer for the acquisition or construction of such an tern, that asset 1s recorded and measured on
intial recognition at its fair value The credit created by the recogniton of the asset 1s recognised in the Income staternent The penod
over which the credt 1s recognised depends upon the nature of the serice prowided, as determined by the agreement with the customer
Where the service provded 1S solely a connection to the network, the credit 1s recogmised at the point of connechion If the agreement
does not specrfy a penad, revenue is recognised over a penod na longer than the economic Iife of the transferred asset used to prowde
the ongong semvice

The far value of assets on transfer from customers 1s determined using a cost valuation approach allowing for depreciation

(x) Foreign exchange

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transacton Monetary assets and
labiites denominated in a foresgn currency are transtated at the closing balance sheet rate The resuting gain or loss 1s recognised i the
ncome staterment
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3. Financial nsk management

(a} Financial risk factors

The Group's actvities expose t to a vanety of financial nsks market nsk (Interest rate nsk), kquidity nsk, credit nsk and foresgn currency nsk
The Group’s treasury funchon seeks to ensure that sufficient funding 1s avallable to mest foreseeable needs, mantans reasonable
headroom for contingencies and manages inflation and interest rate nsk

The prncipal financial nsks faced by the Group relate to iInterest rate and credit counterparty nsk. '

These nsks and treasury operations are managed by the Group Director of Finance in accordance with policies established by the |
Board Magor transactions are indnidually approved by the Board Treasury activibes are reported to the Board and are subject to review
by intemal audit

Financial nstruments are used to rase finance, manage nsk, opbmise the use of surplus funds and manage overall interest rate
performance The Group does not engage in speculative activity

i) Market nsk

The Group has a policy of mantaning at least 50% of interest-beanng liabdities at fixed rates  The Group uses a combination of fixed rate
and mdex-linked bomowings and fixed rale interest swaps as cash flow hedges of future vanable interest payments to achieve this policy
At the year-end 56% of Group net borowings were at fixed rates fincluding 50% of South West Water's borowings fixed for the penod
to March 2015} and 18% index-lIinked, after the mpact of financial denvatves The notional pnncipal amounts of the interest rate swaps
are used to determine settiernent under those swaps and are not therefore an exposure for the Group These nstrurments are analysed
N notes 22 and 26

The interest rate for ndex-Inked debt s based upon an RPl measure which s also used in determining the amount of ncome from
customers in South West Water

The Group has no significant interest-beanng asssts upon which the net retum fluctuates from market nsk Deposit interest recenvable 1s
expected to fluctuate m ine with interest payable on floating rate borrowings Consequently the Group's income and operating cash flows
are largely independent of changes in market mterest rates

For 2012 ff interest rates on net borrowings had been on average 0 5% higherAower with all other vanables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year would have decreased/increased by £1 3 milion {2011 £1 1 miliion}

For 2012 if RPI on index-linked bomowings had been on average 0 5% higher/lower with all other vanables held constant, post-tax profit
{or the year would have decreased/increased by £1 8 milkon (2011 £1 8 milion)

Foresgn currency nsk occurs at transactional and translation level from borrowings and transactions m foreign currencies  These nsks are |
managed through cross-currency nterest rate swaps and forward contracts which provide certainty over foreign currency nsk I

n) Liquidity nsk |
The Group actvely mantains a mexdture of iong-term and short-term committed facibes which are designed to ensure the Group has

sufficient available funds for operations and planned expansions eguivalent to at least one year's forecast requirements at all tmes  Detadls

of undrawn committed facities and short-term facilities are provided in note 26

Refinancing nsk 1s managed under a Group palicy that permits no more than 20% of Group net borowings to mature in any financial year

The Group and South West Water have entered mto covenants with lenders Whilst terms vary, these typically provide for imits on geanng
(prmanly based on South West Water Lirmited's Regulatory Capital Value and Vindor Limted's EBITDA) and interest cover
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Financial statements Notes to the financial statements

continued

3 Financial nsk management continued
(a) Financial nsk factors continued

ii) Liquudity nsk continued
Contractual undiscounted cash flows, ncluding interest payments, were
Due within Due between Due between Over
1year 1and 2years 2 and 5 years Syears Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Group
31 March 2012
Non-denvative financial habilties
Borrowangs excluding finance lease liabilities 2848 961 2748 13714 2,0271
Interest payments on borrowings 284 182 408 6423 7297
Finance lease liabilhes including interest 638 608 2322 22143 25711
Denvative financial liabilties
Denvative contracts — net payments 159 140 157 - 456
31 March 2011
Non-denvative financial habilities
Borowings excluding finance lease Sabilites 745 266 6 3148 11,0837 1,7496
Interest payments on borrowings 354 352 654 569 3 7053
Finance lease liabilihes ncluding mnterest 479 570 2150 2,2392 2,5591
Denvative financial habilties
Denvatve contracts — net payments/{receipts) 81 49 (19 79 190
Company
31 March 2012
Non-denvative financial kabilies
Borrowings 2532 750 1816 1000 6098
Interest payments on borrowings 182 76 95 150 503
31 March 201
Non-denvative financia! liabilities
Bormowings 349 2451 2285 987 608 2
Interest payments on bomowings 192 175 107 120 594
ni) Gredrt nsk

Credit and countemparty nisk anses from cash and cash deposits, denvative financial instruments and deposits with bank and financial
insttutions, as well as exposure to customers, ncluding outstanding recevables Further nformation on the credit nsk relating to trade

recenvables 1s given In note 21

Courterparty nsk anses from the investment of surplus funds and from the use of dervative financial nstuments The Board has agreed
a polcy for managing such nsk which s controlled through credit Imits, counterparty approvals, and ngorous montonng procedures
The Group has no other significant concentration of credt nsk. The Group’s surplus funds are managed by the Group’s treasury function
and are usually placed in short-term fixed interest deposits or the ovemight money markets Deposit counterparties must mest a credit
rating threshold set by the Board of P1 {(Moody's) or Al (Standard and Poor's)
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3. Financial nsk management continued

(b} Capntal risk management

The Group's objectves when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a gang concem in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to mirmuisa the cost of caprtal

In order to mamtan or adjust the caprtal structure the Group seeks to mantain a balance of retumns to shareholders through dividends
and an appropnate capral structure of debt and equity for each business segment and the Group

The Group monttors caprtal on the basis of the geanng ratic This ratio 1s calculated as net borrowings dvded by total capital Net
bormowangs are analysed in note 36 and calculated as total borrowings less cash and cash deposts  Total capital s caleulated as total
shareholders’ equity plus net borowings

The geanng ratios at the balance sheet date were

2012 2011
£m £m
Net bormowings (note 36) 21046 1,9338
Total shareholders’ equity 822.1 7795
Total capital 2,926.7 27133
Geanng ratio 71.9% 71 3%

South West Water Umited 1s also monitored on the basis of the ratio of its net borrowings to Regulatory Capital Value Ofwat’s optimum
range for geanng 1s 55% - 65%

2012 2011
£m £m
Regulatory Capital Value 2,826.7 2,7035
Nat borrowings 1,584.9 1,542 8
Net borrowings/Regulatory Capital Value 56.1% 57 1%

The Group has entered nto covenants with lenders and, whilst terms vary, these typically provide for kmits on geanng and interest cover
The Group has heen n complance with s covenants dunng the year

(c) Determunation of fair values
The Group uses the following hierarchy for deterrmining the fair value of financial Instruments by valuation technique

» quoted pnces {unadjusted) In actve markets for Identical assets or liabilities (level 1)

» inputs other than quoted pnces included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or hability, ether directly (that 1s, as pnces)
or ndirectly (that 1s, denved from pnces) (evel 2)

« inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that 1s, unobservable Inputs) Jevel 3)
The mgjonty of the Group's financial Instruments are valued using level 2 measures as analysed in note 22

The farr value of financial nstruments not traded in an active market (for example over-the-counter denvatives) s determmed by using
valuation techruques A vanety of methods and assumptions are used based on market conditions existing at each bafance sheet date
Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar mstruments are used for long-tenm debt Other techniques, such as estmated
discounted cash flows, are used to determine farr valug for the remaiming financial instruments  The fair value of interest rate swaps

i1s calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash flows

The carmying values, less Impaiment provision, of trade recevables and payables are assumed to approximate to therr far values The far
value of financial habiliies, pnncipally environmental provisions, ts estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the cument
market interest rate avalable to the Group for similar financial Instruments
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Financial statements Notes to the financial statements
continued

4, Critical accounting judgements and estimates
The Group’s pnncipal accounting policies are set out in note 2 Management 1s required to exercise signrficant judgement and make use
of eshimates and assumphons in the application of these policies

Environmental and landfill restoration provisions

Restoration and aftercare provisions are recognised in the financial statements at the net present value of the estimated future expenditure
required to settle the Group's restoration and aftercare cbligations A discount i1s applied to recogrise the tme value of money and 1s
urwound over the Ife of the provision This 1s included in the income statement as a financial tem within finance costs As at 31 March
2012 the Group's envronmental and landfilt restoration provisions were £92 7 milion {note 30}

Where a provsion gives access 1o future economic benefits, an asset 1s recogrised and depreciated in accordance with the Group's
depreciation policy

Retirement benefit obligations

The Group operates defined benefit penston schemes for which actuanal valuations are camed out as determined by the tnustees

at intervals of not rmore than thres years The last valuation of the man scheme was at 31 March 2010

The pension cost and liabilties under IAS 19 are assessed In accordance with Directors’ best estimates using the advice of an
independent qualfied actuary and assumpbons in the latest actuanal valuaton The assumptions ars based on member data supplied to
the actuary and market observations for interest rates and inflation, supplemented by discussions between the actuary and management
The mortalty assumption uses a scheme-spectfic calculation based on CMI 2009 actuanal tables with an allowance for future longewity
Improvement The prncipal assumptions used to measure schemes' babiities, sensitnvities to changes in those assumptions and future
funding obligattons are set out i note 28 of the financial statements

Cash-generating units

For the purposes of assessing mpamment of goodwil, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for wihich there are separately identifiable
cash flows (cash-generating units) The waste management segrment 18 considered to be a single cash-generating unit as it s an
integrated business The pnnapal assumptions used to assess imparment are set out n note 14 of the financal statements

Taxation

The Group corporation tax provision of £59 7 million reflects management’s Judgement of the amount of tax payable for fiscal years with
open tax computations where labilities reman to be agreed with HM Revenue & Customs Management penodically evaluates tems
detaled in tax retums where the tax treatment Is subject to interpretation The Group establishes provisions on a full basis for indmdual tax
rtems whers, In the judgement of management, the tax postion is uncertan

Service concession arrangements

Consideration from public sector entities for the operation of waste management service concessions Is treated as contract recevables,
spliit between profit on the construction of assets, operation of the service and provision of finance recognised as interest recenvable
Management's allocation between these three elements Is assessed to reflect external market condrions according to the type of
service provided

Stte development costs

The development of waste management faciliies for new projects (such as Energy from Waste plants) are subject to obtaning planning
permissions Development costs are capitalised using management'’s assessment of the Ikelhood of a successful outcome for each
project To the extent that planming permission is not receved any caprtalised development costs are expensed

Landfill costs

The estimation of landfill reserves 1s of particular mportance n assessing landfill costs, since the projected cost of a landfil ste s
depreciated over its estimated operabional Iife taking into account the usage of vord space and gas production at the site post-closure
The estimates of landfill reserves are regularty reviewed and updated durnng the financial year for usage and other events (for example
site extensions) Estimates are also subyect to physical review by extemnal advisors

A number of factors impact on the depreciation of landfil reserves including the avalable void space, future capital expenditure and
operating costs The assumptions are rewised as these factors change

The estimate of gas production at landflll sites post-closure reduces the depreciation of landfill reserves An assassment Is undertaken
for indvidual sites of the histonc profile of gas production dunng landfilling actmty and the projected generation post-closure according
to the type of waste contained in the landfill and expected profile of gas producton over time
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4. Cnthical accounting judgements and estmates continued

Carying value of property, plant and equipment

The camying value of property, plant and equipment as at 31 March 2012 was £3,082 8 milion and the Group's accounting policy 1s

set out nnote 2 In the year ended 31 March 2012 additons totalled £257 4 million and the depreciation charge was £147 5 milion
Estimated useful economic Iives of property, plant and equipment are based on management’s judgement and expenence When
management identifies that actual useful ives differ matenally from the estimates used to calculate depreciation, that charge s adjusted
prospectvely Due to the significance of capital investment to the Group, vanations between actual and estmated useful Ives could impact
operating results both postively and negatvely Asset Ives and residual values are reviewed annually and histoncally changes to remaining
estmates of useful Iives have not been matenal

Revenue recognitton
The Group recognises revenue at the time of delivery of services Payments received in advance of services delivered are recorded
as a hability

South West Water raises bills and recognises revenue In accordance with its entitiement to receve revenue in line with the limits
established by the Penodic Review price-setting process  For water and waste water customers with water meters, revenus recognised
dependent upon the volume supplied Including an estimate of the sales value of units supplied between the date of the last meter reading
and the financial year-end Estmated usage is based on histonc data, judgement and assumptions, actual results could differ from these
estimates which would resutt In revenue being adjusted in the penod n which the rewision of the estimates s determined

Vindor estimates ncome from certan contractual revenue streams based on tonnages, cost and histone data which are dependent on
agreement with the customer after the delivery of the service Actual results could differ from these estimates which would result in revenue
being adjusted n the penod In which the remsion of the astmate s determined

Provision for doubtful debts
At the balance sheet date each subsichary evaluates the collectabiity of trade recervables and records provisions for doubtiul debts based
on expenence including compansons of the relatve age of accounts and consideration of actual wite-off history

The actual level of debt collected may differ from the estimated levels of recovery and could impact future operating results positively
or negatively As at 31 March 2012 the Group’s cument trade receivables were £188 4 million, agamnst which £67 O milllon had been
provided for mpamment

Impairment of intangible assets
The Group records all assets and habilties acquired in business acquistions, including goodwil, at farr value Intangible assets which have
an indefinte useful ife, prncipally goodwill, are assessed at least annually for imparment

The inial goodwill recorded and subsequent impament analysis require management to make estmations of future cash flows, terminal
values and an assessment of the long-term pre-tax discount rate to be applied to those cash flows which reflects an assessment of the
cosl of caprtal of the cash-generating unit
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Financial statements Notes to the financial statements
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5. Operating segments
Operating segments are reported n a manner consistent with intemal reporting prowded to the Chief Operating Decision-Maker, which
has been identified as the Penncn Group Pic Board

The water and sewerage business compnses the regulated water and sewerage senices undertaken by South West Water Lmited The
waste management business Is the recycling, renewable energy and waste managerment serces provided by Vindor Limited Segment
assets nclude goodwill and other ntangible assets, property, plant and equgpment, nventones, trade and other recevables and cash and
cash depostts Segment habilties compnse operating habilities and excluds taxation The other segrment kabilities include the Company’s
financing of business acquisitions and Group taxation labiies Caprtal expenditure compnses additions to property, plant and equipment,
including addiions resulting from acquisttions through busness combinations

2012 2011
£m £m
Revenue
Water and sewerage 4740 4488
Waste management 7611 7120
Other 9.8 95
Less intra-segment trading® (11.8) (11 1)
1,233.1 1,159 2
Segment result
Operating profit before depreciabon and amortisation {(EBITDA)
Water and sewerage 305.2 2868
Waste management 110.3 1165
Other 03 07)
415.8 402 6
Operating profit
Water and sewerage 2047 1898
Waste managerment 637 716
Other 04 {09
2688 2609
Profit before tax
Water and sewerage 1415 1289
Waste management 57.6 629
Other 14 33
200.5 188 5

* Intra-segment trading between and to other segments by the water and sewerage and waste management segments s under normal
commercial terms and conditions that would also be avalkable to unrelated third parties Intra-segment revenus of the other segment 1s
at cost
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5 Operating segments continued

Water and Waste
sewerage management Other Elminations Group
£m £n £m £m £m

Balance sheet
31 March 2012
Assets (excluding investments in joint ventures) 2.938.2 1,200.5 922 (789 3) 4,270.6
Investments in joint ventures - 0.3 - - 0.1
Total assets 2,938 2 1,209.6 912.2 (789 3) 4,270.7
Uiabilties (2,159.6) (826.0) {1,252.3) 789.3 (3,448.6)
Net assets/(habilities) 7786 383.6 (340 1) - 8221
31 March 2011 (Restated note 37)
Assets {excluding nvestments n jomt ventures) 28455 1,076 6 1,002 8 (789 3) 4,1356
Investrnents n joint ventures = 15 - - 15
Total assets 28455 1,078 1 1,002 8 (789 3) 4,137 1
Liabiities {2,036 1) {811 4) (1,299 4) 7833 {3,357 6)
Net assets/(iabilihes) 805 4 2667 {296 6) - 7795

Segment habilhes of the water and sewerage and waste management segments compnse operating llabimes The other segment liabilies
include the Company's financing of business acquisitons before 1898 and Group taxation liabilies

Water and Waste
sewerage management Other Group
Notes £m £m £m £m
Other information
31 March 2012
Arnortisation of other mtangible assets 15 - 14 - 1.4
Capital expendrture including acquistions) 1308 1558 - 286.6
Depreciation 100.5 452 (0.1) 145.6
Finance income 7 59.3 232 368 119.3
Finance costs 7 1225 a2 359 191.6
31 March 2011
Amortisation of other Intangible assets 15 - a7 - 07
Capital expendrture {ncluding acquisiions) 1251 988 02 2241
Depreciation 970 44 2 02 1410
Finance income 7 226 214 11 451
Finance costs 7 835 343 49 1218
Geographic analys:s of revenue based on location of customers
2012 2011
£m £m
Revenue
United Kingdom 1,162.4 1,091 8
Rest of European Union 133 111
China 510 195
Rest of World 6.4 68
1,233.1 1,159 2

The Group’s country of domicie 1s the Unted Kingdom and is the country in which it generates the majonty of its revenue The Group’s
non-current assets are all located in the United Kingdom
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6 Operating costs

2012 2011
Notes fm £m
Manpower costs 12 1554 1483
Raw matenals and consumables 133.9 1216
Other operating expenses INclude
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment (2.8) 23
Operating lease rentals payable
— Plant and machinery 6.6 74
— Property 8.0 61
Research and development expenditure 0.2 02
Trade receivables imparment 21 92 84
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
— Owned assets 1105 1064
— Under finance leases 351 346
Amortisation of other Intangible assets 15 1.4 07
Fees payable to the Company's auditors in the year were
2012 2011
£000 £000
Fees payable to the Company's auditors for the statutory audit of the Group 446 400
Other services pursuant to legisiation
Regulatery reporting 30 30
Intenm review 30 30
Other audit services 16 a7
76 107
Total fees for statutory audtt and audt related services 522 807
Tax services 242 150
Corporate finance transactions 707 988
Other services 97 170
1,046 1,308
Total fees 1,568 1,815
Fees payable to the Company’s audrtars in respect of Pennon Group pension schemes
Audrt 26 26

Fees payatie 1o the Company's audrors for the statutory audit of the Group include fees payable for the statutory aucit of the Cornpany
of £48,000 (2011 £47,000) and fees payable for the audit of the Company's subsidianes of £398,000 (2011 £353,000}

Expenses rambursed to the auditors in relation to the audit of the Group were £37,000 (2011 £35,000)
Comoerate finance services N 2012 related to corporate finance advice on a number of EAW and PPP projects

Corporate finance services In 2011 included fees of arca £0 5 million relating to corporate finance adwce on the Runcom Phase || EfW
project which is under constnuction

A description of the work of the Audit Comimittes 1s set out i its report on pages 47 and 48 which includes an explanation of how the
audrtor's objectivity and independence are safeguarded when non-audit services are provided by the audtors’ frm
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7. Net finance costs

2012 2011
Finance Finance Finance  Finance
cost Income Total cost income Total
Notes £m £m £m £m £m £m
Cost of servicing debt
Bank borrowing and overdrafts (50.0) - {500) (555 - (55 5)
interest elernent of finance lease renials {38.8) - (388 (306 - (306
Other finance costs (5 5) - 55) B39 - B9
Interest recevable - 6.2 6.2 - 61 61
Interest recenvable on sharehdlder loans to jont ventures - 7.5 75 - 67 67
(943) 137 (806} (900 128 77 2)
Other finance income
Investment income recetved - 67.3 67.3 - - -
Farr value losses on denvative financial mstrumments prowding
commercial hedges (63.9) - {639) - - -
639} 673 34 - - -
Notional interest
Interest recenvable on service concession arangements - 33 33 - 29 29
Retirement benefit obligations 28 (29.1) 327 36 (27 8) 294 16
Unwinding of discounts in provisions 43) - (4.3) {40 - 40
(334) 36.0 26 (318 323 05
Net gains on non-designated denvatve financial nstruments - 23 23 - - -
{1916) 1193 (723) (1218 451 {76 7)

Other finance Income represents enhanced yields from investment ncome recaved on short-term deposits held partially offset by far
value losses on denvative financial Instruments which provided commercial hedges against these short-term structured deposits These

transactions commenced and matured dunng the year

8. Taxation
2012 2011
Notes fm £m
Analysis of charge in year
UK corporation tax 309 386
Deferred tax — other 236 34
Deferred tax ansing on change of rate of corporation tax (26.4) (25 1)
Total deferred tax 29 (2.8) (217}
Tax charge for year 281 169

UK cormporation tax 1s calculated at 26% (2011 28%) of the estmated assessable profit for the year

The deferred tax credt for the year 1s due to a non-recumng credit of £26 4 millon (2011 £25 1 million) ansing from a 2% reduction in the

rate of corporation tax
The tax for the year differs from the theoretical amount which would anse using the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK (269%) from
2012 2011
£m £m
Profit before tax 2005 1885
Profit before tax muttiplied by the standard rate of UK corporation tax of 26% (2011 28%) 521 528
Effects of
Expenses not deductible for tax punposes 35 17
Other (0.6) (1
Change In rate of corporation tax (26.4) 251)
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of prior years (0.5) (114
Tax charge for year 28.1 169
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continued

8. Taxation continued
Credrt adustments to tax charge in respect of pnor years include amounts released from the pnor year current tax liabilty where
a reassessment of a number of tax items ndicates that a tax deduction 1s now certain

The average applicable tax rate for the year was 14% (2011 9%)

In addiion to the amount debited to the ncome statement, a defered tax credit relating to actuanal gans on defined benefit pension
schemes of £10 2 milion (2011 charge of £2 9 milion} and a defermed tax credit relating 1o losses on cash flow hedges of £5 8 million
(2011 charge of £0 4 milion) have been credted directly to equity A deferred tax charge relating to share-based payments of £0 1 milion
{2011 credt of €0 5 millon) has been recognised directly to equity

9 Profit of parent company

202 2011
m £m
Profit atinbutable to equity shareholders dealt with in the accounts of the parent company 1163 901

As parmitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 no iIncome statement or statement of comprehensive Income is presented
for the Company

10. Earmings per share
Basic eamings per share are caloulated by dwding the eamings attnbitable 1o ordinary shareholders by the weighted average number
of Ordinary shares outstanding dunng the year, excluding those held in the employes share trust (note 34), which are treated as cancelled

For diuted eamings per share, the weighted average nurmber of Ordnary shares in 1ssue 1s adjusted to melude all diutive potential Ordinary
shares The Group has two types of diutive potential Ordinary shares - those share options granted to employees where the exercise
pnce s less than the average market pnce of the Company’s Ordinary shares dunng the year; and the contingently iIssuabls shares under
the Group's Performance and Co-investment Plan and the deferred shares element of the Annual Incentive Bonus Plan, to the extent that
the performance cntena for vesting of the awards are expected to be met The corvertible bonds 1ssued in August 2008 did not have a
dilutve effect on eamings per share dunng the year

The weighted average number of shares and earmings used in the calculations were

2012 2011
Number of shares (millions)
For basic eamings per share 358.7 354 6
Effect of diutive poterial Ordinary shares from share ophons 22 20
For diuted earmings per share 360 9 356 6

Basic and diluted earmings per share

Eamings per share before deferred tax are presented as the Directors believe that this measure provides a more useful companson on
business trends and performance smnce deferred tax reflects distortive effects of changes in corporation tax rates and the leve! of long-term
capital nvestment Eamings per share have been calculated

2012 2011
Profit Eamnings per share Profit Eamings per share
after tax Basic Diluted after tax Basic Diluted
£m p P fm P p
Statutory eamings per share 1724 481 478 1716 484 48 1
Deferred tax credit (2.8} {0.8) {0.8) 217) 6 1) B1)
Eamings per share before deferred tax 169.6 47.3 470 1499 423 420
11. Dmdends
2012 2011
£m £m
Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the year
Intenm dradend paid for the year ended 31 March 2011 7 50p (2010 6 95p) per share 26.8 245
Final dvdend paid for the year ended 31 March 2011 17 15p {2010 15 60p) per share 61.4 551
88.2 796
Proposed dividends
Proposed intenm dmdend for the year ended 31 March 2012 8 22p (2011 7 50p) per share 296 268
Proposed final dmvidend for the year ended 31 March 2012 18 30p (2011 17 15p} per share 66.3 614
95.9 882

The proposed ntenm and final dvidends have not been included as liabilties In these financia statements

The proposed intenm didend for 2012 was pad on 3 April 2012 and the proposed final dmvdend 1s subject to approval by shareholders
at the Annual General Meeting
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12 Employment costs

2012 2011
£m £m
Wages and salanes 130.9 1227
Social secunty costs 126 114
Pension costs 16.6 205
Share-based payments 36 34
Total employment costs 163.7 1580
Charged
Manpower costs 1554 1483
Capital schemes 83 a7
Total employment costs 163.7 1580

Details of Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 13 There are no personnel, other than Directors, who as key management exercise
authonty and responsibility for planning, directing and controling the actvities of the Group

212 2011
Employees (average number)
The average monthly number of employees (ncluding Executive Directors) was

Water and sewerage 1,335 1,196
Waste management 3,148 3,012
Other 46 44
Group totals 4,529 4,252

The total number of employees at 31 March 2012 was 4,582 (2011 4,354}

13. Directors’ emoluments
2mz2 2011
£000 £000
Executve Directors

Salary 1,077 1,035
Performance-related bonus paid or payable 393 490
Share-based payments 1,094 984
Other emoluments 73 70
Payment n hew of pension provision 310 114
Non-executve Drrectors 431 12
3,378 3,105

The cost of share-based payment represents the amount charged to the income statement, as descnbed in note 31

The aggregate gans on vesting of Directors’ share-based awards amounted to a total of £1,002,000 (2011 £677,000)

Total gains made by Directors on the exerase of share options were nil (2011 rul}

Total emoluments include £1,570,000 {2011 £1,418,000) payable to Directors for senices as directors of subsidiary undertakings
At 31 March 2012 there were no Directors accruing retrement benefits under defined benefit pension schemes (2011 ong)

No pension contnbutions were payable to defined contnbution schemes but three Directors receved payments in llieu of pension provision
(2011 two)

More detailed information conceming Directors’ emoluments (including pensions and the highest paid Director) and share interests
15 shown in the Directors’ remunaration report on pages 52 to 60
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Financial statements Notes to the financial statements

continued
14 Goodwill
{Restated
note 37}
£m
Cost
At 1 Aprl 2010 2574
Recognised on acquisticn of subsidianes 430
At 31 March 2011 3004
Hecognised on acquistion of subsidianes (note 37) 267
At 31 March 2012 3271
Camying amount
At 31 March 2011 300 4
At 31 March 2012 3271

Goodwill acquired In a business combination 1s allocated at acquisiion to the cash-generating urit (CGU) expected to benefit from thet
business combination All of the camying amicunt of goodwill 1s allocated to the waste management segment

Goodwillis reviewed annually or when other events or changes i arcumstance indicate that the camying amount may not be fully
recoverable

The recoverable amount of the waste management segment Is determined from far value less costs to sell calculations The far value
of the CGU has been estmated using an eamings multiple nformed by recent market data from purchases of similar business

15 Other intangible assets

Customer
contracts Patents Totat
£m £m £m

Acquired intangible assets
Cost
At 1 Apni 2010 125 02 127
At 31 March 2011 125 02 127
Recognised on acquisiion of subsidianes (note 37) 145 - 145
At 31 March 2012 270 02 272
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 Apnl 2010 76 - 76
Charge for year 07 - 07
At 31 March 2011 83 - 83
Charge for year 13 a1 14
At 31 March 2012 96 01 97
Camying amount
At 31 March 2011 42 02 44
At 31 March 2012 174 0.1 17.5

Customer contracts are amortised over the ussful economic life of each contract which at acquistion ranged between two and 15 years
The average remaning Iife 1s six years

Patents are amortised over ther estmated useful economic fves which at acquistion was 13 years The average remaining Ife is
SIX years

The camying values of other ntangible assets are reviewed annually or when events or changes in crcumstance ndicate that the camng
amounts may not be fully recoverable
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16 Property, plant and equipment

Fixed and
mobile plant,
Land and vehicles and
buildings computers Total
{(Restated Infrastructure  Operational (Restated Landfll Construction (Restated
note 37) assets properbes note 37) restoration n progress note 37)
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Group
Cost
At 1 Apnl 2010 4182 1,4191 606 4 1,322 4 487 1032 39180
Ansing on acquistions 77 - - 96 - - 173
Additions 155 i78 03 202 - 1362 1990
Assets adopted at far value - 124 06 17 - - 147
Cther (note 30) - - - - 47 - 47
Grants and contnbutons - (12) - - - - 12
Disposals {12 {18) {4 4) 593 - - {66 7)
Transfers/reclassifications 09 216 113 663 - 92 9) 72
At 31 March 2011 4411 1,467 9 614 2 1,3699 534 1465 40830
Ansng on acquistions (note 37) 02 - - 07 - - 09
Additions 170 149 17 190 - 2048 2574
Assets adopted at far value - 487 - - - - 87
Other {note 30) - - - - 16 - 16
Grants and contnbutions - (16} - - - - (16
Disposals - 09} ©1) (116) - - (12 6)
Transfers/reclassifications (180 140 52 a0 1 - (66 9) 44
At 31 March 2012 440 3 1,5410 621.0 1,468.1 550 264 4 4,389.8
Acoumulated depreciation
At Apnl 2010 1725 a32 1638 6478 150 - 1,002 3
Charge for year 163 215 108 909 28 - 1423
Disposals - {18} (4 4) (58 1) - - 64 3)
At 31 March 2011 1888 1129 1702 6806 178 - 1,1703
Charge for year 166 222 109 958 20 - 1475
Drisposals - 09 ©1) 98 - - (108
Transfers/reclassifications {15 1) - - 151 - - -
At 31 March 2012 1903 1342 1810 7817 198 - 1,307 0
Net book value
At 1 Apnl 2010 2457 13259 4426 6746 337 1032 28257
At 31 March 2011 2523 1,3550 4440 6893 356 1465 29227
At 31 March 2012 250.0 1,406.8 440.0 686.4 352 2644 3,0828

Of the total depreciation charge of £147 5 milion (2011 £142 3 milion}), £1 4 milion (2011 £1 3 million) has been charged to capital
projects, £0 5 millon (2011 nil} has been offset by deferred income and £145 6 milion (2011 £141 0 million) has been ¢harged
aganst profits

Asset Ives and residual values are reviewed annually
Asset transfers/reclassifications include assets transferred from other non-current assets of £4 4 milion (2011 £7 2 million)
Dunng the yaar borrowing costs of £3 0 millon (2011 £1 1 million) have been caprtalised on qualfying assets
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16. Property, plant and equipment continued
Assets held under finance leases ncluded above were

Fixed and
mobile plant,
Infrastructure Operational wvehicles and Landfll  Construction
assols properties comparters restoration in progress Total
£m fm £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 31 March 2011 3570 4850 3123 - 05 1,1348
At 31 March 2012 3570 4852 3799 - 03 1,202 4
Accumulated depreciation
At 31 March 2011 260 892 1759 - - 2011
At 31 March 2012 313 870 1890 - - 3173
Net book amount
At 31 March 2011 3310 3758 1364 - 05 8437
At 31 March 2012 325.7 3682 190.9 - 0.3 8851
Fixed and mobile plant,
vehicles and compusters
fm
Company
Cost
At 1 Apnl 2010 04
Addtions 02
Disposals 02)
At 31 March 2011 04
At 31 March 2012 04
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 Apnl 2010 02
Charge for year 01
Disposals {02
At 31 March 2011 01
Charge for year 01
At 31 March 2012 02
Net bock value
At 1 Apnl 2010 02
At 31 March 2011 03
At 31 March 2012 0.2

Assst Ives and residual values are rewewed annually

86 Pennon Group Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2012




17 Financial instruments by category
The accounting policies for financial nstruments have been applied to the Ine tems

Farr value Amortised cost
Trade
receivables
Derivatives Derivatives and trade
used for fair usedfor  Derivatives payables Total
value cash deemed held Loans and {Restated (Restated
hedging  flow hedging for trading recervables note 37) note 37)
Notes £m fm £m fm fm £m
Group
31 March 2012
Financial assets
Trade recewvables 21 - - - - 1214 1214
Denvative financial instrurments 22 227 66 23 - - N6
Cash and cash deposits 23 - - - 4253 -~ 4253
Total 227 66 23 4253 1214 5783
Financial habilibes
Bomrowings 26 - - - (2,529 9) - 25299
Denvative financial instruments 22 65 421 - - - (48 6)
Trade payables 24 - - - - 87 2) (87 2)
Total 65 42 1) - (2,529 9) (87 2) {2,665 7)
31 March 2011
Financial assets
Trade recevables 21 - - - - 1369 1369
Bervative financial nstruments 22 - 69 - - - 69
Cash and cash deposits 23 - - - 5555 - 5555
Total - 69 - 55556 1369 699 3
Financial liabihties
Borrowings 26 - - - (2,489 3) - (2,489 3)
Denvative financial iInstruments 22 35 (181} - - - (216
Trade payables 24 - - - - (873 87 3
Total 35 {18 1) - (2,489 3) B73) (2,598 2)
Company
31 March 2012
Financial assets
Denvative financial Instruments 22 - 66 23 - - 89
Cash and cash deposits 23 - - - 1589 - 1589
Total - 66 23 1589 - 167 8
Financial habiitties
Borrowings 26 - - - 8912 - {891 2)
Trade payables 24 - - - - 01 on
Total - - - (891 2) (0 }] 8913
31 March 2011
Financial assets
Dernvative financial instruments 22 - 66 - - - 66
Cash and cash deposits 23 - - - 2366 - 2366
Total - 66 - 2366 - 2432
Financial habilities
Borrowings 26 - - - B89 0) - (889 0}
Trade payables 24 - - - - ©1) {01
Total - - - {8890) 0 1) (889 1}
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18. Other non-current assets

Non-current recevables
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings - - 350.9 3668
Armounts owed by related parties (note 42) 690 566 - -
Cther recevables 694 594 1.1 09
1384 1160 352.0 3677
Non-current recevables were due
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m m
Between 1 and 2 years 155 200 89.2 06
Between 2 and 5 years 159 59 262.8 2771
Over 5 years 1070 Q01 - -
1384 1160 352.0 3677
The farr values of non-curent recervables were
Group Company
2012 201 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m
Amounts owed by subsiciary undertakings - - 354.7 3728
Armounts owed by related parties 1477 1267 - -
Cther receivables 694 594 11 10
2171 1861 355.8 3738

The far value of amounts owed by related parties 1s based on cash flows using a rate based on the borrowangs rate of 2 5% (2011 2 5%)
The discount rate 1s equal to London Interbank Offered Rate plus an allowance 1o reflect an appropnate credrt margin

The efiectve Interest rate on amounts owed by related parties was 14 0% (2011 14 0%)

Other recevables indlude site development and pre-contract costs of £9 6 mlkon (2011 £17 6 million)
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19. Investments

Subsidiary undertakings
£m
Company
At 1 Apnl 2010 1,032 0
At 31 March 2011 1,032 0
Addrions 1401
At 31 March 2012 1,172.1
Jomt ventures
Shares
£m
Group
At 1 Aprit 2010 02
Share of post-tax profit 43
Share of other comprehensive loss B30
At 31 March 2011 15
Share of post-tax profit 40
Share of other comprehensive loss 5 4)
At 31 March 2012 0.1

Details of the Group’s pnnaipal subsidiary and joint venture undertalangs are set out In note 38

The Group's share of the results, assets and liabiliies in its joint ventures, which are equity accounted in these financial statements, 15

Asgets Liabilitties Income Other

comprehensive

Non—current Cumrent  Non-current Current Revenue mcome

£m £m fm £m £m £m £m

22

Lakeside Energy from

Waste Holdings Limited 782 13.7 {89.9) (2.0} 232 3.7 5.1}
Vindor Laing (Greater

Manchester) Holdings Limited 1713 159 {168.3) (18.9} 46.8 03 03

2011

Lakeside Energy from

Waste Holdings Lmited 820 95 {878 22 216 36 23
Vindor Lang (Greater

Manchester} Holdings Limited 1815 104 (146 1) {45 8} 617 07 07)

20. Inventones
Group Company
201
(Restated

2012 note 37} 2012 2011

£m £m £m £m

Raw matenals and consumables 9.0 72 - -

Pennon Group Plc Annual Report and Accounts 2012 89




Financial statements Notes to the financial statements
continued

21. Trade and other receivables - current

Group Company

2011

(Restated
2012 note 37) 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m
Trade recevables 188.4 1951 - -

Less provsion for imparment of receivables {67.0) 582 -

Net trade recevables 1214 1369 - -
Amounts owed by related parties (note 42) 122 88 - -
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings - - a0.8 917
Other recervables 130 85 0.7 08
Prepayments and accrued income N8 648 0.2 Q2
2384 2190 1.7 927

The Directors consider that the camying amounts of trade and other recevables approximate to their far value

There s no concentration of credit nsk in trade recervables The Group has a large number of customers who are dispersed and there 1s
no significant loss on trade recevables expected that has not been provided for The Group has created IAS 39 portfoho provisions, but
cannot practicably identrfy which recewables specifically are the ones impaired It 1s Group paiicy to consider a recervable in a porticlio to
which an imparrment has been allocated on a collective basis as not being mpared for the purposes of IFRS 7 disclosures until the loss
can be specifically identfied with the recevable

The ageing of trade recevables which are past due but not specifically imparred was

2012 2011
£m £m

Group

Past due 1 - 30 days 373 361

Past due 31 - 120 days 130 19

More than 120 days 974 845

The aged trade recevables above are taken directly from aged sales ledger records before deduction of credit balances and
other adjustments

The Group's two pnncipal operating businesses specifically review separate categones of debt to identdy an appropnate provision for
mpawment South West Water Umited has a duty under legistation to continue to provide domestic custormers with services regardless
of payment

The movement in the allowance for impaimment in respect of trade recenvables was
2m2 201

£m £m
At 1 Aprl 58.2 506
Provision for recevables impamment 8.2 84
Recewvables written-off dunng the year as unccllectable (7.1) 83
Cumulatve amounts previously excluded from debt 6.7 73
Ansing on acquistions - 02
At 31 March 670 582
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22. Denvative financial instruments

Group Company
2012 201 2012 2011
£m £m £m fm
Denvatives used for cash flow hedging
Current assets 6.6 69 8.6 66
Current liabilities (153} 44 - -
Non-current habiies (26 8) (137) - -
Denvatives used for fair value hedging
Non-current assets 219 - - -
Current assets 08 - - -
Current habilities (13) 09 - -
Non-current hiabiliies (52) {2 6) - -
Denvative deemed held for trading
Current assets 23 - 23 -

The far value of hedging denvatives 1s spiit between curent and non-current assets or iabities based on the matunty of the cash flows
The ingffective portion recogrised in the iIncome staterment ansing from cash flow hedges was nd (2011 ni)

Interest rate swaps and fixed rate bomowings are used to manage the mix of fixed and fioating rates to ensure at least 50% of Group net
borrowings are at fixed rate At 31 March 2012, 56% of Group net borrowings were at fixed rate (2011 53%)

At 31 March 2012 the Group had interest rate swaps to swap from floating to fixed rate and hedge financial labiliies with a nctional value
of £855 0 millon and a weighted average maturtty of 4 0 years (2011 £605 0 milhon, with 4 0 years) The weighted average interest rate
of the swaps for their nomenal amount was 3 2% (2011 3 2%)

At 31 March 2012 the Gompany had cross-currency interest rate swaps to swap from floating to fixed rate and hedge financial labiliies,
relating to a bormowing of 70 milion Australian dollars, with a weighted average matunty of 1 0 years (2011 70 millon Australian dollars,
with 2 O years) The weighted average interest rate of the swaps was 3 7% (2011 37%)

The denvative deemed held for trading does not qualify for hedge accounting under IAS 39, but 1s designed to improve the Group's
overall nterest rate periomance  This denvatve anses from of a combination of non-denvatve instruments entered into dunng the

year that when combined result n a denvatve instrument  Included in the denvatve instrument 1s a £200 million floating interest
rate-hnked foan from Peninsula MB Limited to the Company and a fixed rate £200 mifion obligation due to the Company from Penmsula
MB Lmited This dervative has an expected Iife of 15 years The £2 3 mithon far value moverment in the denvative has been recogrised
in the INcome statement

Valuation hverarchy
The amounts of finanoial Instruments camed at farr value by valuation method were
Level 2 inputs Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £fm
Assets
Denvatves used for cash flow hedging 6.6 69 66 66
Denvatives used for far value hedging 27 - - -
Total assets 29.3 69 66 66
Liabilities
Dernvatives used for cash flow hedging 42.1 181 - -
Dernvatives used for far value hedging 6.5 35 - -
Total labilties 48.6 216 - -

The amounts above are the far value of financal Instruments using level 2 - Inputs that are observable for the asset or labilty, ether directly
{that 13, as pnces) or Indirectly {that 1s, denved from pnces) The farr values of these swaps are based on the market value of equvalent
instruments at the balance sheet date

Level 3 inputs Group Company
2012 2011 2an2 2011
fm & fm fm
Assets
Denvatve deemed held for trading 23 - 2.3 -

The amount above 1s the farr value of financial instruments using level 3 — inputs for asset or iability that are not based on observable
market data (that 1s, unobservable market data)
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23. Cash and cash deposits
Group Company
2012 2011 2m2 2011
£m m £m £m
Cash at bank and in hand 183 159 584 393
Short-term bank deposis 67.1 1218 47.1 958
Other deposits 3399 4178 534 1015
Total cash and cash deposits {note 36) 4253 55665 158.9 2366
Group short-term deposits have an average matunty of one day
Group other deposits have an average matunty of 115 days
Group other deposits nclude restneted funds of £108 4 midlion (2011 £80 2 milion) to settie long-term lease liabilties (note 26} and
£14 2 milion (2011 £40 0 milkon) relatng to letters of credit
For the purposes of the cash flow staterment cash and cash equivalents compnse
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2014
fm fm £m £m
Cash and cash deposits as above 4253 5555 1589 2366
Bank overdrafts (note 26) {10.5) (181) - -
4148 5374 158.9 2366
Less deposits with a maturty of three months or more
{restncted funds) {122.6) {122 5) (1.4} {14
2022 4149 157.5 2352
24 Trade and other payables - current
Group Company
2014
{Restated
2012 note 37) 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m
Trade payables 872 873 01 01
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings - - 57 64
Armounts owed to Jjoint venture (note 42) 7.0 85 - -
Other tax and social secunty 41.2 530 0.3 03
Accruals and other payables 107.1 1047 4.7 43
2425 2535 10.8 111

The Directors consider that the camying amount of trade and other payables approximates to therr fair value

Included in accruals and other payables are amounts provided by the Group in relation to clams recenved which are considered by the

Directors and the management of the Group to be the best estmate of the amounts that might be finally settled

25. Current tax habiliies/(recoverable)

Group Company
2011
2012 note 37) 2012 2011
fm £m an m
UK comoration tax 59.7 795 (2.6) 17
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26. Borrowings

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m fm
Current

Bank overdrafts 10.5 181 - -
Short-term icans 2532 353 2532 349
European Investment Bank 211 211 - -
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings - - 281.2 2812
2848 745 534.4 3161
Obligations under finance leases 40.7 247 - -
Total current borrowings (note 36} 3255 992 5344 3161

Non-current
Bank and cther loans 139.3 3726 139.3 3580
Prvate placement 99.9 999 99.9 999
Bond 2040 1323 1321 - -
RPI index-tnked bond 2403 2288 - -
Convertible bond 117.6 1150 117.6 1150
European Investment Bank 2315 2525 - -
960.9 12009 3568 5729
Obligations under finance leases 1,243.5 11892 - -
Total non-current borrowings (note 36) 22044 23901 356.8 5729
Total borrowings 25299 24893 891.2 8890

The Company Issued £125 milion 4 625% corvertible bonds in August 2009 The bonds mature five years from the 1ssue date at therr
nominal value of £125 million or can be converted into shares, at the holders” option, at the matunty date at the conversion pnce of 597 81
pence per Ordinary share The value of the equity conversion component was determined to be £10 million has been recognised in

shareholders' equity In retained eamings

The Company issued a £100 millon prvate placernent in July 2007 maturing in 2022 Interest 1s payable at a fioating rate based on the
performance of an nterest rate-inked mdex The interest rate payable N the ysar was 3 2% (2011 4 3%)

South West Water Finance Plc issued a £150 mition Bond in July 2010 matunng in 2040 with a cash coupon of 5 875%
South West Water Finance Pic 1ssued a £200 million RPI index-linked bond in July 2008 matunng in 2057 with a cash coupon of 1 99%

The far values of non-cument borrowings were

2012 2011
Book value Fair value Book value Fair value
£m £m £m £m
Group

Bank and other loans 139.3 139.3 3728 3726
Pnvate placement 99.9 923 999 827
Bond 2040 1323 1575 1321 1470
RPI index-linked bord 240.3 159.5 2288 1824
Convertible bond 1176 161.7 1150 1618
European Investrment Bank 2n.s5 205.8 2525 2195
960.9 916.1 1,200 9 1,166 0
QObligations under finance leases 1,243.5 1,088.1 1,1892 9627
2.204.4 2,004.2 23901 21287

Company
Bank and other loans 1393 139.3 3580 3580
Prvate placerment 959 923 999 827
Convertible bond 1176 161.7 1150 1618
356 8 393.3 5728 6025

Where market values are not avalable, far values of borowings have been calcutated by discounting expected future cash flows at

prevaling interest rates
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26 Borrowings continued
The matunty of non-current borrowings was

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
fm £m fm £m
Between 1 and 2 years 1303 2018 746 2439
Between 2 and 5 years 4329 4187 1823 2291
Over 5 years 1,641.2 1,6796 2999 899
22044 2,380 1 356.8 5729

The weghted average matunty of non-current bormrowings was 23 years (2011 24 years)
Finance lease habiiies — minimum lease payments

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
m £m £m £m
Within 1 year 61.7 479 - -
Between 2 and 5 years 2929 2720 - -
Over 5 years 2,216.5 22302 - -
25711 25591 - -
Less future finance charges (1,286 9) (1,345 2) - -
1,284.2 1,2139 - -

Finance lease liabilites — present value of minimum lease payments

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £ £m
Within 1 year 61.7 479 - -
Between 2 and 5 years 2641 2455 - -
Qver 5 years 1,022.2 1,0104 - -
1,348.0 1,303 8 - -

Included above are accrued finance charges ansing on obligations under finance leases totaling £135 5 milion 2011 £130 8 millon},
of which £12 6 million 2011 £6 4 mullion) 1s repayable within one year

Within obligations under finance leases, Scuth West Water mited has utiised finance lease facihes of £180 O milton for certan water
and sewerage business property, plant and equipment which are secured by bank letters of credit 1Issued by United Kingdom financial
nstitutions These letters of credit, covenng the full penod of the finance leases, are renewable between the financial insttutions and
South West Water Limited at five-yearly intervals, the next being March 2016

Dunng 2007 the penod for repayment of these leases was extended with an agreement to deposit with the lessor group amounts equal
to the difference between the onginal and revised payments due The accumulated deposits, £41 9 milion at 31 March 2012 (2011

£32 4 milion) are hang held to settle the lease labilty over the pencd from the end of the onginal lease term  The deposits are subject
to aregistered charge given as secunty to the lessor for the balance outstanding

Dunng 2010 the penod for repayment of certain existing leases was extended with an agreement to depostt with the lessor group
amounts equal to the difference between the ongnal and revised payments due The accumulated deposits, £66 5 milion at 31 March
2012 (2011 £47 8 rnillon) are being held to settle the lease llabilty at the end of the lease term, subject to nghts to release by negotiation
with the lessor

Undrawn cormmitted borrowing faciities at the balance sheet date

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m
Foating rate
Expinng within 1 year 2475 500 127.5 -
Expinng after 1 year 4119 1600 141 0 900
658.5 2100 268.5 900

In addition the Group has, at 31 March 2012, undrawn uncommitted short-term bank fadiltes of £50 0 millon (2011 £50 O million}
avalable to the Company or South West Water Limited
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27. Other non-current liabilibes

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m m
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings - - 87 87
Other payables 769 304 - -
769 304 8.7 87

Other payables inciude deferred Income resutting from the adopton at far value of assets transferred from customers

28. Retirement benefit obligattons
The Group operates a number of defined benefit pension schemes and also a defined contnbution section within the main scheme

The assets of the Group's pension schemes are held in separate trustee adminustered funds The trustees of the funds are required to act
n the best nterest of the funds’ beneficianes The appontment of schemes' trustees 1s determined by the schemes” trust documentation
The Group has a policy for the main fund that one-half of all trustees, other than the Charman, are nominated by members of the
schemes, Including pensioners

Defined contnbution schemes
Pension costs for defined contnbution schemes were £2 7 millon 2011 £2 8 milion)
Defined benefit schemes
Assumptions
The prncipal actuanal assumptions at 31 March were
2012 2011
% %
Expected retum on scheme assets 6.3 73
Rate of ncrease In pensionable pay 35 39
Rate of ncrease for cusrent and future pensions 33 34
Rate used to discount schemes’ katiliies 47 55
Inflation 33 34

Mortality

Assumphons regarding future mortality expenence are set based on actuanal advice In accordance with published statishcs and
expenence The mortalty assumphion uses a scheme-specific calcutation based on CMI 2009 actuanal tables wath an allowance for future
longewity improvement

The average lfe expectancy in years of a member having retired at age 62 on the balance sheet daie 1s projected at

2012 2011
Male 24.9 249
Female 27.0 269

The average Ife expectancy in years of a future pensioner retinng at age 62, 20 years after the balance sheet date, 1s projected at

2z 2011

Male 258 257

Female 28.2 282
The sensitvties regarding the prncipal assumptions used to measure the schemes’ labiliies are

Impact on

Change in schemes’

liabilities

Rate of increass in pensionable pay +~05% +-13%

Rate of ncrease n cument and future pensions +-05% +-60%

Rate used to discount schemes' kabilibes +-05% +-85%

Inflabon +/-0 5% +-7 6%

Life: expectancy +—1 year +/~34%
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28. Retirement benefit obligabons continued
The amounts recogrnised in the income statement were

Group Company
2012 2011 212 2011
£m £m £m £m
Current service cost (12.9) (150) c.8) 10
Past service cost no 270 - -
Total ncluded n employment costs (139} (17 7 (0.8) {10}
Expected retum on pension schemes’ assets 327 284 22 27
Interest cost on retirement benefit cbligations (291} (27 8) 2.1) 27
Total included within net finance costs 36 16 01 -
Total charge (103} (16 1) {0.7) {10}
The actual retum on schemes’ assets was a profit of £32 1 million (2011 £34 7 millon)
The amounts recogrised in the staternent of comprehensive meome were
Group Company
2012 201 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m
Actuanal {losses)/gains recognised in the year {51.7) 24 (3.9 33
The amounts recognised in the balance shest were
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m fm
Far value of schemes' assets 517.2 454 2 354 307
Present valus of defined bengfit obligations (615.8) (5400 (33.2) (37 5)
Net hability recognised in the balance sheet (98.6) (85 8 7.8) 68
The schemes’ assets and the expected long-term rates of retum at the year-end were
2012 2011
Expected Expected
retum Value Fund retun Vake Fund
% £m % % £m %
Equities 8.1 2699 52 85 2620 58
Property 78 354 7 82 186 4
Bonds 37 168.8 33 48 1334 29
Other 4.0 431 8 44 402 9
5172 100 4542 100

Other assets prnaipally represent cash contnbutions recesved from the Group towards the year-end which are invested dunng the
subsequent financial year
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28. Retrement benefit obligations continued
The Company's share of the schemes' assets at the balance sheet date were

2012 2011
m £m

Equries 178 176
Property 2.7 13
Bonds 1.8 90
Other 3.1 28
354 307

The expected return on schemes' assets is determined by considenng the long-term retums and the balance between nsk and reward
on the vanous categones of nvestment assats held Expected retums on equity and property investments reflect long-term rates of retum
expenenced in the respective markets Expected yields on fixed interest investments are based on gross redemption yelds as at the
balancs sheet date

In conunction with its Investment advisers, the trustees have structured the schemes’ nvestments with the objective of balanang
nvestment retums and levels of nsk The asset allocation for the man scheme has three pnncipal elements

» holding of bonds which 1s expected to be less volatie than most other asset classes and reflects the schemes’ iabilites

* a proportion of equries, with fund managers having freedom in making vestment deciSions to Maximise retums

» Investment of a relatively small proportion of the schemes’ assets {circa 10%} N alternative asset classes which give the potential
for diversification (curmently property)

The habxities of the defined benefit schemes are measured by using the projected unit credit method which 1s an accrued benefits
valuaton method in which the scheme fiabilities miake allowance for projected eamings

Movements in the net labilty wens

Group Company
2012 2011 212 2011
m £m £m £m
At 1 Apnl (85.8) (107 9 (6.8) 117
income statement (10.3) (16 1) 0.7 00
Statement of comprehensive Income (51.7) 24 (4.0) 33
Employer contnbutions 49.2 358 3.7 26
At 31 March (98.6) (85 8) (78) (6 8)
Movements in the far value of schemes’ assets were
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m
At 1 Apnl 454.2 402 4 30.7 373
Expected retum on schemes’ assets 32.7 294 22 27
Actuanal lossesygans 0.7 53 02 (10 4)
Members' contributions 12 10 - -
Benefits paid (19.4) (197} (1.4} (19
Employer contnbutions 492 358 3.7 26
At 31 March 517.2 454 2 35.4 307
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28. Retirement benefit obligatons contnued
Movernents m the present value of schemes’ defined benefit obligations were

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
om £m £m £m
At 1 April (5400} (5103 (37.5) 490}
Service cost (139} (177 (0.8) (10}
Interest cost (29 1) (27 8) (2.1} 27
Actuanal {losses)/gans (51.0) 29 (42} 137
Members’ contnbutions 12 (10 - -
Benefits pad 194 197 14 15
At 31 March {615.8) (540 0} {43.2) (37 5)

The future cash flows ansing from the payment of the defined benefits are expected to be settled prmanly in the penod between 15 and

40 years from the balance sheet date
The five-year history of expenence adjustments 1s

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m &mn

Group
Farr value of schemes' assets 517.2 454 2 402 4 2764 33156
Present value of defined benefit obligations (615.8) (540 0) (5103) (342 4) {357 8)
Net labilty recognised (98.6) {85 8) (107 9 {66 Q) (26 3)
Expenence (losses)/gans on schemes' assets
Arnount (Em) (0.6} 53 657 (101 6) (44 7)
Percentage of schemes' assets (0.1)% 12% 16 3% (36 )% {13 5)%
Expenence (losses)/gans defined benefit obligations
Amount (£m} (0.4} 08 23 348 498
Percentage of defined benefit cbligations (1.0)% 01% 04% 10 2% 139%

The cumulative actuanal losses recognised in the Group statement of comprehensive iIncome at 31 March 2012 were £157 5 milion

{2011 £105 8 milon}

2012

2011

2010 2009 2008
£m £m Em £m £m

Company

Far value of schemes’ assets 354 307 373 296 339

Present value of defined benefit obligations (432 (37 5 490) (36 9) {36 8)

Net liabilty recognised {78) (6 8) (117 (73 (29}

Expenence gans/{osses) on schemes' assets

Amount {£m) 0.2 (10 4) 63 (96) 40

Percentage of schemes' assets 0.5% (33 9% 16 9% (32 4)% 118%

Expenence (losses)/gans on defined benefit obligations

Amount (£m) 0.4} 140 04 16 53

Percentage of defined benefit obligations {1.0)% 37 3% 08% 4 3% {14 4%

The cumulatve actuanal losses recognised in the Company staterent of comprehensive ncome at 31 March 2012 were £11 1 million

(2011 £7 2 million)

The last tnennial actuanal valuation of the pnncipal defined benefit scheme was at 1 Apnl 2011 The Group has made defictt recovery
contnbutions of £35 milich dunng the year (2011 £21 miflon) The Group monitors funding levels on an annual basis and expects to pay

total contributions of £15 milion dunng the ysar ended 31 March 2013
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29. Deferred tax
Deferred tax 1s provided n full on temporary differences under the llabilty method using a tax rate of 24% (2011 26%)

Movements on deferred tax were

Group Company
2011
(Restated
2012 note 37} 2z 2011
£m £m fm £m
Labikies/(assets) at 1 Apnl 2925 3122 42 50
(Credited)/charged to the Income statement (2.8 @217 05 02
{Credited/charged to equity (15.9) 28 0.9) 10
Anging on acquistions - g} - -
Liabiies/(assets} at 31 March 2738 2925 (4.6) 42

Deferred tax assets have been recognised in respect of all temporary differences gving nse to deferred tax assets because it 1s probable
that these assets will be recovered

The majonty of the Group's deferred tax liabiity 1s expected to be recovered over more than one year
The majonty of the Company's deferred tax asset 1s expected to be recovered over more than one year
All deferred tax assets and liabilities within the same junsdiction are offset

The deferred tax balance has been reduced by a credit of £22 8 millon to recognise the changes in the rate of comporation tax enacted
on 19 July 2011 and 26 March 2012 1o reduce the rate from 1 Apnl 2012 from 26% to 24% This credt includes a credrt of £26 4 milion
recognised In the income statement and a debit of £3 6 milion recognised In the statement of comprehensive Income: If the published
Govemment proposals to reduce the rate of corporation tax by a further 1% for each financial year until 2014/15 had been enacted

at the balance sheet date, the total Impact would have been a further recuction of arca £23 million

The movements In deferred tax assets and labilthies were

Group
Deferred tax habilties

Accelerated tax depreciation
Owned assets Cther Total
{Restated Leased {Restated {Restated
note 37) assets note 37) note 37)
m fm £m £m
At 1 Apnl 2010 3237 170 223 3630
Credited to the income statement (182) [(8]3)] 29 21 7)
Ansing on acquistions 01 - 10 11
At 31 March 2011 3056 164 204 342 4
Credited to the ncome statement {117) 06 29 (152)
At 31 March 2012 2939 158 17.5 327.2
Deferred tax assets
Provisions Retirement Other Tota
{Restated benefit {Restated (Restated
note 37) obligatons note 37) note 37
£m £m £m £m
At 1 Apnl 2010 B3 302 (123 (50 8)
{Credited)/charged to the Income statement 02 51 49 -
Charged/(credited) to equrty - 29 1) 28
Ansing on acquisitions (15} - 04 19
At 31 March 2011 (100} (22 2) (77 (49 9}
Charged to the mcome statement 21 88 15 124
Credited to equity - (102) (57} (15 9}
At 31 March 2012 {7.9) (23.6) {21.9) (53.4)
Net deferred tax kabiity
At 31 March 2011 2025
At 31 March 2012 2738
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29. Deferred tax continued

Company
Deferred tax assets
Retrrement
benefit
obligatons Other Total
m £m £m
At 1 Apnl 2010 B2 (18) (5Y0)]
Charged/(credited) to the income statement 04 (015)] 02
Charged to equity 10 - 10
At 31 March 2011 (18} 29 @2
Charged/{credited) to the income statement 08 03 05
Credited to equity 08 1) 9
At 31 March 2012 {18 (2.8) {4 6}
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to equity dunng the year was
Group Company
2012 201 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m
Actuanal losses/(gains) on defined benefit schemes 10.2 29 0.8 Q)
Net farr value losses/{gains) on cash flow hedges 58 o4 0.1 ©1)
Deferred tax on other comprehensive loss 16.0 B33 09 a1
Share-based payments {note 34) {0.1) 05 - 01
159 28 09 f10)
30. Provisions
Environmental
and landfill
restoration Total
(Restated Cther (Rostated
note 37) Restructunng Provisions note 37)
£m fm £m £m
Group
At 1 Apnl 2011 102 1 27 02 1050
Charged to the ncome staternent 32 25 - 57
Transferred - - 53 53
Ansing on acquistion 01 - - 01
Landfil restoration 16 - - 16
Utiised dunng year (14 3) (15 - (158§
At 31 March 2012 92.7 3.7 55 1019

The amount charged to the income statement includes £3 7 milhion (2011 £4 0 millon) charged to finance costs as the unwinding

of discounts In provisions

The addtion to landfill restoration prowvision of £1 6 milllon recognised in the year has been matched with an addition to property, plant

and equipment
Prowisions totaling £5 3 million (2011 nil) have been transferred from other payables
The analysis of prowisions between current and non-current is

2011

{Restated

2012 nate 37)

£m om

Current 256 163
Non-current 763 837
1019 1050

Environmental and landfil restoration provisions are expected to be substantially utiised throughout the operational Iife of a site and for
landfill sites within 30 years of closure The provisions have been established assuming current waste management technology based

upon estimated costs at future pnces which have been discounted to present value

The restructunng provision related pnncipally to severance costs and will be utiised within one year
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31 Share capital

2012 2011
£m fm
Group and Company
Authorised
429,975,270 Ordinary shares of 40 7p each 1750 1750
Allotted, called-up and fully paid
Number cf shares
Treasury Ordinary
shares shares £m
Group and Company
At 1 Apnl 2010 Ordinary shares of 40 7p each 5,092,574 352,058,253 1453
Shares 1ssued under the Scnp Dmdend Altermatve - 4,129,038 17
Shares re-ssued under the Company’s Performance and Co-investment Plan {328,240) 328,240 -
For consideration of £1 6 mullion, shares re-issued under the Company's
Sharesave Scheme {454,767) 454,767 -
At 31 March 2011 Ordinary shares of 40 7p each 4,309,567 356,970,298 1470
Shares 1ssued under the Scnp Dmdend Altemative - 2,941,306 12
Shares re-issued under the Company's Performance and Co-nvestment Plan [246,793) 246,793 -
For considerabon of £0 3 million, shares re-issued to the Pennon Employee Share Trust {44,667) 44,667 -
For consideration of £1 6 million, shares re-issued under the Company’s
Sharesave Scheme {385,402) 385,402 —
At 31 March 2012 Ordinary shares of 40.7p each 3,632,705 360,588,466 148.2

Shares held as treasury shares may be sold or re-issued for any of the Company's share schemes, or cancelled

Employee share schemes
The Group operates a number of equity-settied share plans for the bensfit of employees Details of each plan are

i) Sharesave Scheme

An di-employee savings related plan s operated that enables employees, nduding Executve Dwrectors, to invest up to a maxarmum of
£250 per month for three or five years These savings can then be used to buy Ordinary shares, at a pnce set at a 20% discount to the
market value at the start of the savings penod, at the third, fifth or seventh year annversary of the ophon beng granted Options expire
s months followang the exercise date and, except for certain specific circumstances such as redundancy, lapse if the employee leaves
the Group before the option exercise penod commences

Qutstanding options to subscnbe for Ordinary shares of 40 7p each under the Company’s share option schemes are

Dmgﬁnﬂ?ﬂ’ Period when 'mcmmm.;wxg

subscription options normally outstanding at 31 March

price fdly paid exerclsable 2012 2011

6 July 2004 200p 2007 -201 - 70
5 July 2005 270p 2008 -2012 30 33
4 July 2006 358p 2000-2013 39 160
3 July 2007 522p 2010-2014 88 101
8 July 2008 517p 2011-2015 79 275
6 July 2009 386p 2012-2016 1,184 1,242
28 June 2010 431p 2013 -2017 608 683
29 June 2011 536p 2014-2018 580 -
2,608 2,564
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31. Share capital continued
i) Sharesave Scheme continued
The number and wesghted average exercise price of Sharesave options are

2012 2011
Number of Weighted Number of Weighted
Ordinary average Ordinary average
shares exercise price shares  exercise price
{thousands) per share [p) ({thousanis) per share (p}
At 1 Apnl 2,564 409 2,472 3%
Granted 593 536 699 431
Forferted (123) 438 (119 429
Exercised (385) 405 {455) 361
Expired (#1) 439 {33) 450
At 31 March 2,608 437 2,564 408

The weighted average pnce of the Company's shares at the date of exeraise of Sharesave optons dunng the year was 656p (2011 478p)
The options outstanding at 31 March 2012 had a weighted average exercise pnce of 437p (2011 409p) and a weighted average

remaining contractual Ife of 3 0 years (2011 2 4 years}

The aggregate far value of Sharesave options granted dunng the year was £0 9 mithon {2011 £0 8 milkon), determined using the Black-

Scholes valuation model The signfficant nputs into the valuation model at the date of 1ssue of the options were

2012 2011
Wexghted average share pnce 670p 539p
Weghted average exercise pnce 536p 431p
Expected volatility 27.4% 290%
Expected Ife 3 9years 41 years
Risk-free rate 1.4% 14%
Expected dmdend yeld 4.3% 45%

Expected volatity was determined by calculating the histoncal volatiity of the Group's share pnce over the previous two years
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31. Share caprtal continued
ii) Performance and Co-investment Plan

Executve Drrectors and senior management receve a condrional award of Ordinary shares n the Company and are also required
to hold a substantial personal shareholding in the Company  The eventual number of shares, if any, wiich vest is dependent upon the
achievernent of conditions of the plan over the restncted penod, being not less than three years

The number and pnce of shares in the Performance and Co-investrment Plan are

M2 2011
Number of Weighted Number of Weighted
Ordinary average Ordinary average
shares  exercise price shares  exercise price
{thousands} per share (p} {thousands) per share (p}
At 1 Apnl 1,559 550 1,465 554
Granted 454 698 530 546
Vested (247) 637 {328) 5h7
Lapsed (359) 586 (108) 557
At 31 March 1,407 573 1,559 550

The awards outstanding at 31 March 2012 had a wexghted exercise pnce of 573p (2011 550p) and a weighted average remamning

contractual Ife of 1 3 years (2011 1 3 years)

The aggregate far value of awards granted dunng the year was £2 O rmillion (2011 £2 1 millon} determmined using a Monte-Carlo simulation
model The significant nputs into the valuation moded at the date of the share awards were

2012 2011
Weighted average share pnce 698p 546p
Expected volahiity 27 4% 290%
Risk-free rate 14% 14%

Expected volatity was detenmined by calculating the histoncal volatility of the Group's share price over the previous two years

ni) Annua! Incentive Bonus Pfan — Deferred Shares

Awards under the plan to Executive Directors and senior managernent involve the release of Crdinary shares in the Company to
participants Thers 1s no performance condition since vesting 1s conditional upon continuous serace with the Group for a penad of three
years from the award The number and weighted average pnce of shares in the Annual Incentve Bonus Plan are

2012 2011
Number of Weighted Number of Weighted
Ordinary average Ordinary average
shares  exercise price shares  exercise pnce
({thousands) per share (p} {thousanis} per share (p}
At 1 Apnl 459 557 291 547
Granted 175 725 175 672
Vested (202) 608 (7} 529
Lapsed {5) S22 - -
At 31 March 427 602 459 557

The awards outstanding at 31 March 2012 had a weighted average exercise pnce of 602p (2011 557p) and a waighted average
remanng contractual ife of 1 5 years (2011 1 5 years) The Company’s share pnce at the date of the awards ranged from 473p to 725p

The aggregate far value of awards granted dunng the year was £1 2 million (2011 £1 O milion), determuned from market value No option
pricing methodology s apphed since dvdends declared on the shares are recenvable by the partaipants in the scheme

Further details of the plans and options granted to Directors, included above, are shown in the Directors' remuneration report
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Financial statements Notes to the financial statements

continued
32. Share premium account
£m
Group and Company
At 1 Apnl 2010 109
Adjustment for shares issued under the Scnp Dvidend Altemative (17)
At 31 March 2011 g2
Adjustment for shares issued under the Scnp Dmdend Altemative {12}
At 31 March 2012 8.0

33. Capital redemption reserve

The caprtal redemption reserve represents the redemption of B shares and cancellation of Deferred shares ansing from a capital retum

to shareholders undertaken dunng 2006

£
Group and Company
At 1 Aprl 2010 1442
At 31 March 2011 1442
At 31 March 2012 144.2
34. Retained eamings and other reserves
Hedging Retalned
Owm shares reserve eamnings Total
£ £m £m £m
Group
At 1 Apnl 2010 22 (129 3776 3625
Profit for the year - - 1716 1716
Other comprehensive loss for the year - {©4) (3 6) 40
Dradends paid relating to 2010 - - (79 6) (7a 6}
Adjustment for shares ssued under the Scnp Divdend Altemative - - 228 228
Cradit to equity in respect of share-based payments - - 34 34
Transfer from hedging reserve to property, plant and equipment - 03 - 03
Deferred tax In respect of share-based payments - - 05 05
Proceeds from treasury shares re-issued - - 16 16
At 31 March 2011 22) (130 494 3 4791
Profit for the year - - 1724 1724
Other comprehensive loss for the year - (187 47 1) (658
Dwdends paid relating to 2011 - - {882 (882
Adjustment for shares issued under the Scnp Drvdend Altemative - - 191 191
Credit to equity n respect of share-based payments - - 36 36
Deferred tax in respect of share-based payments - - ©1) {01)
Charge in respect of share options vesting 07 - ©7n -
Own shares acquired by the Pennon Employee Share Trust in respect
of share options granted 03 - - 03
Proceeds from treasury shares re-issued - - 19 19
At 31 March 2012 {1.8) {31.7) 5552 521.7

The own shares reserve represents the cost of Ordinary shares in Pennon Group Plc 1ssued to or purchased in the market and held by
the Pennon Employee Share Trust to satisfy awards under the Group’s Annual Incentive Bonus Plan

The market value of the 433,000 Ordinary shares (2011 589,000 Ordinary shares} held by the trust at 31 March 2012 was £3 1 milion

(2011 £3 7 milhon)
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34. Retained earmungs and other reserves continuied

Hedging Retained
resenve eamings Total
£m £m £m
Company
At 1 Apnl 2010 03 4877 487 4
Profit for the year - 901 801
Other comprehensive iIncome for the year 03 24 27
Dradends paid relating to 2010 - (79 6) (796
Adjustment for shares 1ssued under the Scnp Dvdend Altemative - 228 228
Credit to equity In respect of share-based payments - 07 07
Deferred tax n respect of share-based payments - 01 o1
Proceeds from treasury shares re-issued - 16 16
At 31 March 2011 - 5258 5258
Profit for the year - 1163 1163
Other comprehensive loss for the year 03 (33 (36)
Dridends paid relating to 2011 - (88 2) {882
Adyustment for shares issued under the Scnp Dvidend Altematve - 191 191
Credit to equity In respect of share-based payments - 08 08
Proceeds from treasury shares re-issued - 19 19
At 31 March 2012 {0.3) 5724 5721
35 Cash flow from operating activities
Reconciliation of profit for the year to cash generated from operations
Cash generated from operations
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m
Continuing operations
Profit for the year 1724 17186 116.3 901
Adjustments for
Share-based payments 3.6 34 0.8 07
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment {2.8) 23 - -
Depreciation charge 145.6 1410 0.1 01
Amortisation of ntangble assets 14 07 - -
Share of post-tax profit from jont ventures 40 43 - -
Finance income (119 3) 451) (59.7 (23 6)
Finance costs 1916 1218 606 266
Dradends recevable - - {117.5) 93 1)
Taxabon charge/(credt) 281 169 21 0%
Changes in working capital (exciuding the effect of acquisttion
of subsidianas)
Increase in INventones (1.7} {06 - -
(Increaseldecrease in trade and other recevables (27.3) (25 5) 250 (37 4)
(Decreaselincrease n trade and other payables (13.2) 303 {5.7) 58
Decrease In retrement benefit obligations from contnbutions (35.3) (18 1) {3.1) {14
Decrease in provisions (14.4) (13 6} - -
Cash generated/(outflow) from operatons 3247 3762 18.9 (44 2
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continued
36. Net borrowings
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m

Cash and cash deposits 4253 5555 158.9 2366
Borrowings — current

Bark overdraits {10.5) (181) - -
Other current borrowings (274.3) (56 4) (253.2) (34 9}
Finance lease obligations (40.7} (247} - -
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings - - (281 2) (2812
Total current borowings (325.5) 992) {534 4) {316 1}
Borrowings - non-current

Bank and other loans (729 4) (948 4) (356.8) (5729}
Cther non-cument boirowings (231.5) (252 5} - -
Finance lease obligations (1,243 5) (1,1892) - -
Total non-current bormrowings (2,204.4) (2,390 1} (356.8) (572 9)
Total net borrowings (2,104 6) (1,9338) (732.3) (652 4)

37. Acquisihions
Cn 6 June 2011 the entire Issued share capital of Stomrn Recycling Limited (renarmed Vindor (Winsford) Limited) was purchased by Vindor

Waste Management Limited for a cash considerabon of £1 7 millon The acquistion has been accounted for using the acquisition method
Provsional goodwill of £1 8 millon has been caprtahsed

On 17 Novemnber 2011 the entire 1ssued share caprtal of JWS Chumgold Limited (renamed Vindor (Lancashire) Limited) was purchased by
Vindor Waste Management Limited for a cash consideration of £14 3 mifion The acquisition has been accounted for using the acquistion
method Prowsional goodwil of nil has been capitalised

On 29 Novernber 2011 the entire issued share capital of Community Waste Holding Limited {renarned Vindor (Community Recycling MKH}
Limrted)} was purchased by Vindor Waste Management Uimited for a consideration of £18 5 milion. Community Waste Recycling Limited
(renamed Vindor (Community Recycling MK} Limited) 1s a wholly owned subsidiary of Vindor {Community Recycling MKH) Lmited The
acquistion has been accounted for using the acquistion method Provisional goodwill of £16 7 millon has been capitalised

On 31 October 2011 Vindor Waste Management Umited acquired Veolia's trade waste collechon interests in Comwall and North Deven
for £0 6 millon On 1 January 2012 Vindor Waste Management Limited acquired Veoha's industnal and commercial collection interests i
Devon and Somerset for £7 6 millon The acquistion of these trades has been accounted for using the acquisiion method Prowvisional
goodwill of £8 2 milion has been captalised

The residual excesses over the net assets acquired in each business combination has been recogrised as goodwill The provisional
goodwll from each business combination 1S atinbuted to the profitability of the acquired business
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37. Acquuisittons continued

Falr values on acaquisition Stormn JWS  Community Veolla
Recycling Churngold Recycling Trade Total

£m €m £m £m £m
Intangible assets - 145 - - 1456
Property, plant and equipment 1 - 08 - (03]
Inventones - - 01 - 01
Recevables 05 10 18 - 33
Cash and cash deposits 02 05 36 - 43
Payables o7 {15) (38) - 60
Taxation — current o1 02 o8 - o9
Leases - - 0 1) - 1}
Prowsions 01} - — - o1
Net (iabilthes)/assets acquired 01 143 18 - 160
Goodwill 18 - 167 82 267
Total consideration 17 143 185 82 427
Satisfied by
Cash 17 143 93 82 335
Unsecured loan notes - - 83 - 83
Deferred consideration - - 09 — 09
Net cash outflow ansing on acquisition
Cash consideration 17 143 93 82 335
Cash and cash deposits acquired €2 (©5) (36) - {43)

15 138 57 82 292
Revenue for the penod since acquisiion to 31 March 2012 08 21 19 11 59
Profit/{loss) before tax for the penod since acquisition to
31 March 2012 01 06 09) - 02
Drirectly attnbutable costs included in other operating expenses - 02 08 05 15

If all the acquistiions had occumed on 1 Apnl 2011 Group revenues for the year would have been £1,248 9 million and profit before tax
for the year would have been £202 7 milion These amounts have been calculated after applying the Group's accounting policies and
adjusting the results to reflect the provisional farr value adjustments

Restatements
At 31 March 2011 the accounting for the following acquistions was provisional

» Oakley Waste Management Limited (renamed Vindor Waste {Corby) Limited} and Basecall Limited, acquired frorm Reconomy
{Acquisiions) Limited

» Pearsons Group Holdings Limnrted

¢ Adapt Recycing Limited {renamed Vindor Waste (Adapt) Limited)

+ Swinnerton Environmental Limited (renamed Vindor Waste (Bury} Limited)

+ Martock Waste Paper Company Limited (renamed Vindor (Martock) Lirnuted)

Completion of the accounting for the acquistions has resulted in an increase to goodwill of £8 0 milion, a decrease in property, plant and
equipment of £4 8 milllon, a decrease In Inventones of £0 2 milion, a decrease in trade and other recevables of £1 6 milion, a decrease n
trade and other payables of £5 4 milllon, an increase N current tax payable of £0 1 milion, a decrease in deferred tax of £1 3 mulion and an
increase of £8 O million in provisions
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38 Pnncipal subsidiary, jomt venture and associate undertakings at 31 March 2012

Country of incorporation,
registration and principal
operations
Water and sewerage
South West Water Limited* England
South West Water Finance Plc England
Source Contact Management Limited England
Source Collections Limited England
Waste management
Vindor Limited* England
Vindor Waste Limtted England
Vindor Waste Exeter Limited England
Vindor Waste Suffolk Lirnited England
Vindor Waste (West Sussex) Limited England
Vindor Waste Management Limited England
Vindor EnwroScot Lmited Scotland
Pearsons Group Holdings Limited England
Vindor Waste (Thetford) Limited England
Vindor Resource Management Limited England
Vindor Waste Kent Limited England
Vindor (Martock) Linited England
Vindor Oxfordshire Limited England
Handstde Limnited England
Vindor Efw (Runcom) Limited England
Vindor Waste (Landfil Restoration) Limited England
Vindor Waste (Somerset) Limited England
Vindor Waste (Thames) Limited England
Vindor Waste (Greater Manchester) Linited England
Vindor Parkwood Holdings Limited Bntish Virgin Islandst
Vindor Polymer Recycling Limited England
Vindor (Commuriuty Recycling MKH) Limited England
Vindor (Community Recycing MK) Lmited England
Vindor (Winsford) Limrted England
Vindor Tnddent Park Limited England
Vindor {Glasgow) Limited England
Vindor {(Lancashire) Lunted England
Vindor (Cheshire) Limited England
Other
Peninsula Insurance Limited* Guemsey

*  Indicates the shares are held drectly by Penncn Group Plc, the Company
T Operations are camed out in England

The subsidiary undertalungs are wholly-owned and alf shares in 1ssue are Orcinary shares All companies above are consolidated n the
Group financial statements
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38. Pnncipal subsichary, joint venture and associate undertakings at 31 March 2012 continued

Joint ventures and associate

Al joint ventures, the assocate and the subsichary undentakings of Lakeside Energy from Waste Holdings Limited, Vindor Laing {Greater
Manchester) Holdings Limited and INEOS Runcom (TPS) Heldings Limited are incorporated and registered in England which 1s also ther

country of operation

Share capital In issue Percentage held Principal activity

Lakeside Energy from Waste Holdngs Limited

1,000,000 A Ordinary shares -

1,000,000 B Ordinary shares 100%
Lakeside Energy from Waste Limited Waste management
Shares in Lakeside Energy from Waste Roldings Limited are held by Vindor Waste Management Limited
Vindor Lang (Greater Manchester) Holdings Limited 2 Ordinary shares 50%
Vindor Laing {Greater Manchester) bimited Waste management
Shares in Vindor Laing (Greater Manchester) Holdings Limited are held by Vindor Waste Management Limited
INEOS Runcom {TPS) Holdings Limited 1,000 A Crdinary shares 20%
186,750 B1 Ordinary shares 0%
62,250 B2 Ordinary shares -
INEOS Runcom (TPS) Limited Waste management
Shares in INEOS Runcom (TPS) Holdings Limited are held by Vindor Waste Management Limied
39. Operating lease commitments
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
£ £m £m m

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-canceliable

operating leases are

Within 1 year 88 87 - -
Between 2 and 5 years 261 231 - _
Over 5 years 755 823 - -

1104 1141 - -

The Group leases vanous offices, depats and workshops under non-cancellable operating lease agreements The lsases have vanous
terms, escalation clauses and renewal nghts Property leases are negotiated for an average term of 25 years and rentals are reviewed

on average at five-yearly intervals

The Group also leases plant and machinery under non-cancellable operating lease agreements

40. Contingent habilities

Growp Compsary

2012 2011 2m2 2011
£m £m fm £m

Guarantees
Borrowing facilties of subsidiary undertalongs - - 3599 3718
Contractors’ clams on capital schemes - 03 - -
Performance bonds 117.4 1078 1174 1078
Other 6.9 69 69 689
1243 1150 484.2 486 5

Guarantees In respect of performance bonds are entered into in the nomal course of business No liability 1s expected to anse in respect

of the guarantees

Vindor Waste Management Limted has gven a commitment to supply 160,000 tonnes of waste per annum (or pay market pnce based
compensation) to the energy from waste plant of the joint venture in Lakeside Energy from Waste Holdings Limited The Directors consider
that the committed waste volume will be available in the ordinary coursa of business

Other contingent liabilties relate to a possible obfigation to pay further considerabon in respect of a previously acquired business when the

outcome of planning applications 1s known
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41 Caprtal commtments

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
fm £m £m £m
Contracted but nat prowided 545.8 2183 - -
42. Related party transactions
Dunng the year, Group companies enterad into the followng transactons with related paries who are not members of the Group
2012 2011
m £m
Sales of goods and services
Vindor Laing (Greater Manchester) Lirmited 804 820
Purchase of goods and services
Lakeside Energy from Waste Limited 10.7 94
Year-end balances
2012 2011
£m £m
Receivables due from related parties
Vinder Laing (Greater Manchester) Limited {oan balance) 403 320
Lakestde Energy from Waste Limited (loan balance) 100 136
INEOS Runcom (TPS) Limited (loan balance) 223 110
72.6 566
Vindor Laing (Greater Manchester} Umited (trading balance) 7.6 88
Lakeside Energy from Waste Lirmited {trading balance} 10 -
8.6 88
Payables due to related parties
Vindor Laing (Greater Manchester) Umited (trading balance) 7.0 70
Lakeside Energy for Waste Lirtted {trading balance} - 15
The £72 6 milion {2011 £56 6 mihon) recevable relates to loans to related parties included within recenvables and due for repayment
in nstalments between 2012 and 2033 Interest 1s charged at an average of 14 0% (2011 14 0%}
The £7 0 milon payable relates to consortium relief due to Vindor Laing (Greater Manchester) Limited
Company
The following transactions with subsiciary undertakings occurred n the year
2012 2011
£m £m
Sales of goods and services (management fees) 8.4 78
Purchase of goods and senvices (support servces) 0.5 05
Interest recesvable (loans) 19.6 188
Dmdends receved 117.5 931

Sales of goods and services to subsidiary undertakings are at cost Purchases of goods and services from subsidliary undertakings are

under nomal commercial terms and conditions which would also be avallable to unrelated third parties
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42 Related party transactions contnusd
Year-end balances

2012 2011
£m £m

Receivables due from subsidiary undertakings
Loans 4398 457 4
Trading balances 1.9 11

Interest on £204 3 mifion of the loans has been charged at a fixed rate of 4 5% and on £29 6 million at a fixed rate of 6 0%

{2011 £104 8 multon, 5% and £120 5 mullion, 6 0%)

Interest on the balance of the loans 1s charged at 12 month LIBOR +1 5% The lpans are due for repayment in instalments over the penod
2013 to 2017 Dunng the year there were no further provisions (2011 nif) In respect of loans to subsidianes nat expected to be repaid

2m2 2011
£m £m

Payables due to subsidiary undertakings
Loans 281.2 2812
Trading balances 144 151

The loans from subsidiary undertakings are unsecured and interest-free without any terms for repayment
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Financial statements

Five-year financial summary

2012 201 2010 2009 2008
fm £m £m £m £m
Income statement
Revenue 1,233.1 1,1592 1,0689 958 2 8794
Operating profit 268.8 2609 2663 2508 2377
Net finance costs (72.3} {767 816) @22 {8586}
Share of profit In joint ventures 4.0 43 11 08 02
Profit before tax 200.5 1885 1858 1594 1523
Taxation (28 1} {169) {44 3) {69 6) (16 4)
Profit for the year 1724 1716 1415 898 1359
Dradends proposed 959 882 796 734 691
Eamings per share (basic}
From continuing operations
Eamings per share 48.1p 48 4p 404p 258p 33 9p
Deferred tax (08)p 61p 04p 111p (2 6p
Eamings per share before deferred tax 47.3p 42 3p 408p 369 36 3p
Declared dmdends per share 26.52p 24 65p 22 55p 21 00p 1981p
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m £m
Capital expenditure
Acquisitions 292 251 93 34 8390
Property, plant and equipment 2574 1990 1922 2318 2077
Balance sheet
Non-current assets 3,587.8 33476 3,1894 30363 29310
Net current assets 13.0 3357 1621 405 1997
Non-current liabithes (2,778.7) {2,903 8) (2,688 6) (2,476 2) (2,485 2)
Net assets 8221 7795 6629 6006 6455
Number of employees (average for year)
Water and sewerage business 1,335 1,196 1,19 1,227 1,276
Waste management 3,148 3012 2,853 2,154 2,059
Other businesses 46 44 43 1 42
4,529 4,252 4,087 3,422 3,377
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Shareholder information

Financial calendar

Financial year-end 31 March
Twenty-third Annual General Meeting 26 July 2012
Ex-dmidend date for 2012 Final dvidend 8 August 2012*
Record date for 2012 Final dndend 10 August 2012
2012 Final dnadend payable 5 QOctober 2012*
2012/13 Hall yearly financial report announcernent Novernber 2012
2013 Intenm dmvdend payable Apnl 2013
2013 Preliminary results announcement May 2013
Twenty-fourth Annual General Mesting Juty 2013
2013 Final dvdend payable October 2013
These datas are subject to obtaning shareholkder approval at the 2012 Annual General Maeting %o tha payment of a final dhadend for tha year ended 31 March 2012
Scrip Dividend Alternative
8 August 2012 Qrdinary shares quoted ex dwvidend
10 August 2012 Record date for final dwdend
24 August 2012 Posting of Scrip dvidend offer
17 September 2012 Final date for receipt of Forms of Election/Mandate
4 October 2012 Posting of dvidend cheques and share certrficates
5 October 2012 Final dvidend payment date
5 Oclober 2012 First day of dealing in the new Ordinary shares
Shareholder analysis at 31 March 2012
Percentage Percentage
Number of of total of Ordinary
Range of shares held shareholders  shareholders shares
1-100 2,451 1071 002
101-1,000 9,488 4135 137
1,001-5,000 9,389 41 M 551
5,001-50,000 1,222 534 377
50,001-100,000 101 044 202
100,001-HIGHEST 264 115 8731
22,895 100 00 100 00
Indracduals 19,622 8570 815
Companies 217 095 213
Trust companies {penson funds etc) 12 005 002
Banks and nominggs 3,044 1330 8970
22,895 100 00 100 00

Major shareholdings

The net posttion on 31 March 2012 of investors who have notified interests in the 1ssued share capital of the Compary pursuant to the
Financial Services Authonty’s Disclosure and Transparency Rufes 1s as follows

Amenpnse Financial Inc 979%
Pictet Asset Management SA 710%
Prudential Pic group of companies 554%
AXA SA and its Group Companies 552%
Invesco Ltd A477%
Legal & General Group Pic 373%

No changes to the above interests in the issued share capital of the Company have been disclosed to the Company between 31 March
2012 and 16 June 2012 (being a date not more than one month pnor to the date of the Company’s Notice of Annual General Mesting)
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Shareholder information
continued

Shareholder services

Registrar

All enguines conceming shareholdings mcluding notificaion of change of address, loss of a share certificate or dwdend payments should
be made to the Company's registrar The Company's registrar, Capita Registrars, can be contacted as follows

Caprta Registrars

Pennon Group Share Register
The Registry

34 Beckenharm Road
Beckenham

Kent

BR3 4TU

Telephone 0871 664 9234 (calls cost 10p per minute plus network extras) Lines are open 8 30am-5 30pm Monday-Fnday
Overseas telephone +44 800 141 2951
Email pennon@caprtaregistrars com

Share dealing service

The telephone share dealing senvice offered by Stocktrade enables shareholders to buy and sell shares in the Company on a low-cost
basis and to make regular investments in the Company Telephone Stocktrade on 0845 601 0995 and quote LOW CO107 Commission
15 0 5% (subject to a minimum charge of £17 50) to £10,000, then 0 2% thereafter

Share gift service

Through Sharegrft, an independent chanty share donation scheme, shareholders who only have a small number of shares with a value
that makes 1t uneconomical to sell them, can donate such shares to chanty Donations can be made by completion of a smple share
transfer form which 1s avallable from the Company's registrars, Capita Registrars

Indwdual Savings Accounts
By holding therr shares in the Company in an indmdual Savings Account (ISA), shareholders may gain tax advantages

Scnp Dindend Aitemative

The Company operates a Scnp Dvidend Altemative The Scnp Dvidend Altemative prowvides shareholders with an opportunity to invest
the whale of, or part of, the cash dwvidend they receive on their Pennon Group Plc shares to buy further shares in the Company without
incumng stamp duty or dealing expenses Subject to obtaining shareholder approval at the 2012 Annual General Meesting to the payment
of a final dmdend for the year ended 31 March 2012, full detais of the Scnp Dradend Altemative, including how to join, will be sent out to
shareholders on 24 August 2012 The full imetable for offenng the Scnp Dradend Alternative 1s given on page 113

Onhne portfolio service
The online portfolio service provided by Capita Registrars gives shareholders access to more information on therr investments Detads of
the portfolio servce are avallable online at capitashareportal com

Electronic communicatons
The Company has passed a resolution which allows t to communicate with 1ts shareholders by means of its website

Shareholders currently recening a pnnted copy of the Annual Report who now wish to sign up to recenve all future shareholder
communications electronically, can do so by registenng with Caprta Registrars’ share portal Go to capitashareportal com to register,
select ‘Account Registration’ and then follow the on-screen instructions by iInputting your sumame, your Investor Code (which can be
found on your Form of Proxy) and your postcode as well as entenng an e-mail address and selecting a password

By registenng to recewe your shareholder communications electronically, you will also autornatically receve your Dvdend Tax Vouchers
electronically

Electronic Proxy voting

Shareholders also have the opportunity to register the appointment of a proxy for any general meeting of the Company cnce notice of
the meeting has been given and may do so via caprtashareportal com Shareholders who register an e-mail preference will not receve
a paper proxy form Instead they wall recene an e-mail alert advising them of general meetings of the Compary, with links to the Nolices
of Meetings and annual and half yearty financial reports

The Pennon website

Pennon's website pennon-group co uk provides news and detalls of the Company's activities plus inks to its business websttes The
irvestor Information section contains up-to-date information for shareholders including comprehensive share pnce information, financial
results, dvidend payment dates and amounts, and Stock Exchange announcements There is also a comprehensive share services
section on the website which includes information on buying, seling and transfermng shares, and on the acton to be undertaken by
shareholders in the event of a change in personal crcumstances, for example, a change of address

Further shareholder information may be found at pennon-group co uk
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Share fraud warning

Share fraud includes scams where investors are called out of the blue and coffered shares that often tum out to be worthless or non-

axistent, or are offered an inflated pnce for shares that they own These calls come from fraudsters operating in *boiler roomg' that

are mostly based abroad, often they imply a connection to the company concemed and they can be very persistent and extremely

persuasive Whilst high profits are promised, those who buy or sell shares in this way usually lose ther money The Financial Services

Authorty (FSA} has found most share fraud victims are expenenced mvestors who lose an average of £20,000, with around £200

million lost i the UK sach year

Protect yourself

If you are offered unsolicted investment advice, discounted shares, a premium pnce for shares you own, or free company or research

reports, you should take these steps before handing over any money

1 Get the name of the person and crganisation contacting you

2 Check the FSA Register at fsa_gov uk/fsaregister to ensure that they are authonsed

3 Use the detals on the FSA Register to contact the firm

4 Call the FSA Consumer Helplne on 0845 606 1234 If there are no contact detalls on the FSA Register or you are told that the
Register 1s out of date

5 Ifthe calls persist, hang up

6 REMEMBER: if it sounds too good to be true, it probably i1s!

If you use an unauthonsed firm to buy or sell shares or other mvestments, you will not have access to the Financial Ombudsman

Senace or Financial Seraces Compensation Scheme (FSCS) f things go wrong

Details of any share dealing facilties that the Company endorses will be ncluded in Company mailings

Report a scam

If you are approached about a share scam you should tell the FSA using the share fraud reporting form at fsa gov.uk/scams,
where you ¢an find out about the latest investment scams You can also call the Consumer Helpline on 0845 606 1234

If you have already paid money to share fraudsters you should contact Action Fraud on 0300 123 2040.
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